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Definitions

In this interim report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms have the meanings set forth below:

RAREA - BXEZEEN - T

“14th Five-Year”

==t

aR>=

BUTHE -

the five-year period from 2021 to 2025 for the implementation of the “14th Five-Year
Plan” of the People’s Republic of China

[+mE] B PEARANMBEER AR E JH5F - B120214F 520255

“2023 AGM” our Company’s 2023 annual general meeting held on May 30, 2024

[2023FERFBFAE B ARARN2024F5A30A BHK2023FERFAFAE

“Aggregate Company” YCIH Aggregate Co., Ltd.* (EFEERW AR BIRAF]), a subsidiary of our Company

RI¥EYE UNCIE  EEERDARERAR @ RARRZHEAR

“Articles of Association” the Articles of Association of YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
(as amended, modified or otherwise supplemented from time to time) of the Company

KREIEE)] B (EEERZESMERRETIRMNERARER)ETREET -« B AE T R #7T)

“Baoshan Building Material” YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building Material Co., Ltd.* (EEE&RILKEEMEREA
7l), a subsidiary of our Company

[R L AT B EEERRUKEERMARLAR - ARREIZHMEAF

“Board” the board of Directors of our Company

[E2g] B ARAEEE

“China”, “Mainland China”, “PRC" or the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this interim report only, excluding

“State” Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan region of the PRC
[FRE - [HEEW] - [2E] - TRA]  REARANE  WEREFEHT - TREREES CRPFIFNTHRERAEDER
REIAN e

“Company” or “our Company” YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

VNSNS & EEgRgesltRREIROBRATR

“controlling shareholder(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules and unless the context
requires otherwise, refers to YCIH and/or YOIC (as the case may be)

[ RRAR 3R B ABEELMRAAMMEFTHEE  BERXEISEAIEIN  EEMERR HEINEE
(RIERME)

“Corporate Governance Code” the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 (formerly Appendix 14) to
the Hong Kong Listing Rules

[{hEER<TAI] BB LTRAIMERCT (FIEMHEE+ ) MR EE a~F R
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“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Domestic Share(s)”

[RER]

"Green Development Company”

[ ERAR |

“Group” or “we"”

[ SE ] ekl 314P ]

“H Share(s)”

[HA ]

"High-tech Enterprise(s)”

[T ]

“HKD" or “HK$"

Byl

“Hong Kong”

(&%

“Hong Kong Listing Rules”

[&& EmARA

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

[ & BB 22 ]

Definitions

the director(s) of our Company
RRBES

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, which are subscribed for and paid up in RMB

ARAFRAFFREEARE1.00THE®EE - UARBRERER

YCIH Green Development Co., Ltd.* (EfERAACERABRAR]), a subsidiary of our
Company

EHERGEEERERAT - RARFZHELRF
the Company and its subsidiaries
KRB REWE QA

overseas listed foreign invested ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company,
with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are listed and traded on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

ARRBBEAREREEARE1.007TTHRIN ETINE BB - REBBZAER L
MmhEE

a knowledge-intensive and technology-intensive economic entity that continuously carries
out research and development as well as transformation of technological achievements
under the High and New Technology Areas with Key State Support issued by the State
and forms independent core intellectual property rights and carries out business activities
on this basis

FERIRK BB R B RS RMRE)HEE R - 5 EEITH IR R R RE
fb - AR EZ LB EMEMERE - WA SERFRGEESHNMMT R LRMEREN

R P = e
%&/@E%ﬁ

Hong Kong dollars and Hong Kong cents, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BIEREN - BEREEEE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEEFRITHR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

ERBMRES EARR - KTRHER] - f RS AR M R Bk
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EEMERHMERAT]

ETHERGESMUREREIBROBRAR 3
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Definitions

“independent third party(ies)”

[(BIE=7]

"KMEIC”

[&#% ]

“KMEIC Group”

[ ]

"kWh"

[kwWh |

“Listing”

[ 7]

“Latest Practicable Date”

[RIEEFRAI1THE

“m3"

[32735K]

“Main Board”

=

“Model Code”

%Al

“Polymer Company”

persons or entities which, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, are not considered as connected persons of the
Company under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

REEEEL —ABERARMAA - FERERE  RETELTRATHERARA
ZEBATHALTHELR

Kunming Economic-Technological Development Zone Investment & Development (Group)
Co., Ltd.*

BRGERMAERRERE(EE)BRAR

KMEIC and its subsidiaries

R RERB AR

kilowatt-hour, a unit of energy measurement

TRE @ 2—AgE8EEMA

the listing of the H Shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
HAR 7 2 7B B 22 P 4R 7

September 6, 2024, being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this
interim report

2024579 H6R - AR TSR 2 KRB AT A H]

cubic meter

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel with GEM of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange

MEBMRMMEENEET S (T EERETS) - BYNEEH X MGEMIL B AW 1TE
1

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix C3 (formerly Appendix 10) to the Hong Kong Listing Rules

B LRI S CI (RIS ) PR L BT AESHETESF X I NITETA))

YCIH Polymer Material Co., Ltd.* (EME&&D FMEBR2AT]), a subsidiary of our
Company

EEREED THRERAT - AAATZHBAT
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“Qujing Building Material”

[ a5

"Reporting Period”

[ ]

“RMB”

AR

"SFO”

(&7 KB 15RH1)]

“Share(s)”

[t ]

“Shareholder(s)”

[RR

“subsidiary(ies)”

M AR

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”

[EER ]

“Supervisor(s)”

B

“Supervisory Committee”

[EEEg ]

"YCIH"

[EmEk]

“YCIH Group”

[EmEkEE ]

Definitions

YCIH Quijing Building Material Co., Ltd.* (EfMZ&HIFEM BRAF]), a subsidiary of
our Company

EERREEEMARAR - REARE ZHB AR
for the six months ended June 30, 2024

#H %2024 6 A30H IL/XEA

Renminbi, the lawful currency of China

ARY - PEMEEEH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

(EHEPEGIDEBEDESTIE) - ETRHERT - MFTRAEA TS KB

the ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, comprising H Shares and Domestic Shares

RABIRAFHGREBEARE1.00THEBER - BEHREAER
holder(s) of the Share(s)

ESREEESZEPN

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
BEBEELTRAETHIRE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
BEBEBLTRAPETHRE

the supervisor(s) of our Company

EAN/N] e

the supervisory committee of our Company

RAARERS

Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.*, a controlling shareholder
of our Company under the meaning of the Hong Kong Listing Rules

EHEERREEREEBRAR  ARARIRES ETRARET 2 AR
YCIH and its subsidiaries

EERR R AN BAT

ETHERGESMUREREIBROBRAR 5
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Definitions

“yYolc”

[EsMEE ] i
“Yunnan Province”
[EfmE ] i

“Yuxi Building Material”

[ EE@EM ] b
nop
[%] b

Yunnan Provincial Overseas Investment Co., Ltd.*, a controlling shareholder of our
Company under the meaning of the Hong Kong Listing Rules

EMAFIMEEBRAT - AARARNER LMRANRET 25 RARR
Yunnan Province, China
FEZEEE

YCIH Yuxi Building Material Co., Ltd.* (EF &1 T Z&EM AR F), a subsidiary of our
Company

EHRREREMERRT - RARTF ZHELRF
per cent

Bt

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this interim report have been subject to rounding. Accordingly, figures shown as totals
in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding them. Any discrepancies in any table or chart between the

total shown and the sum of the amounts listed are due to rounding.

Kb BB E TEREL AT FEFELIERIA » Bt - ETXIEHRAIABBAR L BEZ BB F R EHABT - (B R BB 25T

AT - BRI ARTE

* For identification purpose only
[l
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CORPORATE NAME

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 1847

REGISTERED OFFICE

YCIH Zhaotong Development Building
Zhaotong Avenue

Zhaoyang District, Zhaotong

Yunnan Province, the PRC

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

5/F and 9/F, YCIH Development Building

188 Linxi Road

Information Industrial Base

Economic and Technological Development Zone, Kunming
Yunnan Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31/F., Tower Two, Times Square
1 Matheson Street

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

https://www.ynhnt.com

BOARD

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhangjian

Mr. Zhang Long

Ms. Wang Fang (employee Director)
(appointed on May 30, 2024)

Mr. Liu Zhen (appointed on May 30, 2024)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yang lJia
Mr. Yang Jie

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

Mr. Yu Dingming

Mr. Li Hongkun
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Company Information
/NEIE- 35

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Wu Xinhe

Mr. Yang Guanglei
Mr. Gu Feng

Ms. Li Na

Mr. Guo Huan

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Hongkun (Chairman)
Ms. Yang lJia

Mr. Yang Jie

Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas
Mr. Yu Dingming

REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Dingming (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Zhen

Ms. Yang lJia

Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas
Mr. Li Hongkun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Dingming (Chairman)
Mr. Li Zhangjian

Mr. Zhang Long

Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas
Mr. Li Hongkun

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Zhangjian (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Long

Ms. Wang Fang

Mr. Yang Jie

Mr. Li Hongkun

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zhang Long
Mr. Leung Chi Kit

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Liang Yuwei
Mr. Leung Chi Kit (ACG,; HKACG)
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LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law
Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

Suites 3203-3207, 32/F
Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central, Central
HKSAR

As to PRC law

Jia Yuan Law Offices
F408, Ocean Plaza

158 Fuxing Men Nei Street
Xicheng District

Beijing, PRC

AUDITOR

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants LLP
8/F, Block A, Fu Hua Mansion

No. 8 Chaoyangmen Beidajie,

Dongcheng District

Beijing, PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China, Kunming, Panlong Branch

Bank of China, Kunming, Economic and Technological Development Zone Branch

Huaxia Bank, Kunming, Dongfeng Branch

Industrial Bank, Kunming Branch

Agricultural Bank of China, Kunming Panlong Branch
Everbright Bank, Kunming Qianju Street Branch
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Financial Highlights
B RE

Currency: RMB million
Bl ARBERT

January- January- Change in
June 2024 June 2023 percentage
202451-6 A 2023%F1-6 A4 HEBHESL
Items EHA (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEST) (Rggesst)
(Restated)
(#s51)
Total operating income EEBIA 354.2 739.8 -52.1%
Gross profit EH| 27.2 74.2 -63.3%
Total profit (Total losses are shown B 4RzE (18R - 158 -24.5 -14.3 -71.3%
with “-*) HP)
Net profit (Net losses are shown with “-") SFERE CEER AL - 158E ) -27.9 -10.6 -163.2%
Net profit attributable to owners of the BENEARIMEENFANE -25.5 -13.0 -96.2%
parent company (Net losses are shown CFEIBUAT-5ES)
with “-")
Basic earnings per share (RMB) ERGRYzE(ARET) -0.06 -0.03 -100.0%
Note: G

The unaudited consolidated financial statements and interim results of the Group for the six months ended AEEFHE20245F6 A308 1N E A REETE TS
June 30, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises RERFHEECRB(PEARKIMB A G 2L])
(“PRC ASBE"), and the comparative figures relating to the same period in 2023 have been appropriately ([PECEEFERDER - P Kk 22023F FAHLREE

adjusted in accordance with PRC ASBE. BREFECESFEAELEE 2 B -

The comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2023 used in the “Management Discussion and ~ ZNF $R[ & I /@ 5t im 2 D47 | — E0FT AR 6920234 A Ly 815
Analysis” section of this interim report are restated figures. RICEY| BB -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

l. INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Currently, the international environment is characterized by growing uncertainties,
such as intensified local conflicts, stubbornly high inflation, etc., which have made the
global economy struggle to move forward amidst turmoil. In the face of a generally
sluggish external economic environment and shrinking domestic demand, the recovery
process of China’s macroeconomy still appears rather tortuous. The demand for ready-
mixed concrete has persistently weakened due to various factors, including the ongoing
contraction of real estate investment and the deceleration in infrastructure investment
growth. According to the statistical data from the National Bureau of Statistics of China,
from January to June 2024, China's fixed asset investment (excluding rural households)
increased by 3.9% period-on-period, whereas the real estate development investment
decreased by 10.1% period-on-period. According to the statistical data from the Yunnan
Provincial Bureau of Statistics (Ef& #aT/@), in the first half of 2024, the province's
fixed asset investment (excluding rural households) decreased by 6.9% period-on-period,
whereas the real estate development investment decreased by 39.9%. According to the
data analysis of the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the production of ready-mixed
concrete in China decreased by 10.8% period-on-period from January to June 2024.
On the whole, only Beijing and Hubei Provinces saw a growth in the cumulative output
of commercial concrete, both of which recorded a single-digit increase. The cumulative
output of the remaining 29 provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities declined
to varying degrees, with Yunnan Province’s output dropped by even more than double
digits. According to the data analysis of the National Bureau of Statistics of China,
during the first half of 2024, the average price among concrete markets in China
exhibited an obvious downward trend, with prices falling by 11.5% period-on-period.
All of these factors have had a certain impact on the business operations of the Group,
posing serious challenges to the exploration of new markets and the transformation
and upgrades of the Group.

B E & am AT

— - TEHE
Al BRRETBERZEN - FIbEzem
Bl - BRESTTE SREHEETEETR
HREERIT o TEINBRBRIBREHENK - AIE
KAKEHREZHENBERT @ REHERBLCED
EEERNBESR AN - IEHERERE
i ERRENRMBESAEZNTE © B
BRTERTEHER - BEERKNBHETH
& 2024F 1268 2EHEBETEERE(TE
BFE)RALIER3I% @ BHERABRERLL T
[£10.1% - RIBZEE R BHEE - 2024
FLEEF  2AETBEERETERR)AL
TF#6.9% & BHEMERE TFE39.9% ° RIE
BERFTBEEIN - 2024F1E68 - 2FHE
PRBTIESRLTM108% @ BEKE R
B RFBIL2EE TSR T Rt ESHIR
#BE - BRBHAEME  Ep20ERETR
SEEHRTARETR  EZHAEEREE
MBBWME - BREERSBREEST - 2024
FE¥F  2EBRRELTHHEZRBEETE
B EBRBELTET11.5% © ELEREBY
AEBEBHRELET —THFE  HETHE
R - BAARIEE T BRIE o PkEL o

ETHERGESMUREREIBROBRAR 1
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

B IR &Y am B 0 AT

Il. BUSINESS OVERVIEW

() Overview

The Company is a ready-mixed concrete producer located in Yunnan Province and
also a national High-Tech Enterprise. We have a team with extensive management
experience and robust technical capabilities, and have powerful research and development
capabilities with an integration of technical research and development, results promotion
and application and technical services. We have introduced modernized, scientific and
green and environmentally-friendly manufacturing concepts into our production, and
lead and drive the technological progress and green and low-carbon development in the
concrete industry of Yunnan Province. In recent years, the Company has continued to
carry out transformation and upgrading, and established a diversified business landscape
focusing on the production of ready-mixed concrete, including ultra-high performance
concrete (“UHPC”) and related products, and supplemented with the production of
cement, aggregates, polycarboxylic admixtures, functional mineral dope, commercial
mortar, phosphogypsum and other products, basically forming the production capacity
layout for synchronous business development covering the east, west, south and north
markets in the main urban area of Kunming, as well as prefectures and cities in Yunnan
Province. Our business scope covers housing construction and infrastructure construction
including railways, highways, integrated pipeline networks and other projects. We have
established a complete industrial chain of “technical research and development, resource
processing, production and sales”.

As at June 30, 2024, the Group had 34 concrete batching plants and 68 production
lines with an annual production capacity of 16.63 million m®. The Group also had 191
concrete transporters (including 73 electric mixer trucks and 118 fossil-fuelled mixer
trucks), 13 electric loaders, 7 unmanned electric loaders, 10 electric self-dumping
aggregate transport trucks, 11 electric heavy-duty truck tractors, 10 bulk material
transport semi-trailers, 5 self-dumping semi-trailers, along with 3 power swapping

stations, and 2 photovoltaic power stations.

() Results of operation

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Group produced and sold the ready-
mixed concrete of 1.079 million m3, representing a period-on-period decrease of
53.7%. The Group recorded a total operating income of approximately RMB354.2
million, representing a period-on-period decrease of approximately 52.1%; a total
profit of approximately RMB-24.5 million, representing a period-on-period decrease
of approximately 71.3%; a net profit of approximately RMB-27.9 million, representing
a period-on-period decrease of approximately 163.2%; and a net profit attributable
to owners of the parent company of approximately RMB-25.5 million, representing a
period-on-period decrease of approximately 96.2%.

12 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

1. By business category

The following table sets forth the operating income, operating costs, gross margin and
change in percentage by business category of the Group for the six months ended June
30, 2023 and the six months ended June 30, 2024.

%Eﬁgqﬂﬁ /\/_\4‘)_/[

1. RBEKER

TR AEEZRRBEBERNEE202346 A
305¢ﬁ1ﬂ&ﬁ§2024¢6ﬂ305¢ﬁ1ﬂ
MEEWA - EEXAK - EFEUREEHE D
Lkt e

For the six months ended June 30,

HZ6A30ALL~EA
2024 (in RMB'000,000) 2023 (in RMB'000,000) Change in percentage (%)
2045 (ARBEET) WBFNREEET) ZHESL (%)
Operating Operating Gross Operating ~ Operating Gross Operating ~ Operating Gross
Business % income costs  margin (%)  income costs  margin (%)  income costs margin
EERA  EEHA O ERR%) £xWA ERNA O EFER%) 2RRA 2RRA ENE
Ready-mixed concrete and related products ~ FEHERL RABEER 317.7 295.6 7.0% 704.4 636.5 96%  -549%  -536%  -27.1%
Admixtures SN0 17.8 147 174% 2.0 178 191%  -191%  -174%  -8.9%
Aggregates DhEH - - - 46 30 348% - - -
Cements and admixtures KERBAR 6.4 5.6 12.5% 3.5 3.1 11.4% 82.9% 80.6% 9.6%
Quality and technology services BERRS 0.9 0.5  444% - -
Other businesses b 1.4 10.6 7.0% 53 52 19%  1151%  103.8%  268.4%
Total @5t 354.2 327.0 1.7% 739.8 665.6 100%  -521%  -50.9%  -23.0%

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the majority of the Group’s operating income
was derived from the production and sales of ready-mixed concrete and related products,
of which the Group’s operating income generated from the production and sales
of ready-mixed concrete and related products was approximately RMB317.7 million,
accounting for approximately 89.7% of the total operating income.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a gross profit of approximately RMB27.2
million (the first half of 2023: approximately RMB74.2 million), and the overall gross
margin for the first half of 2024 was approximately 7.7%, representing a decrease of
2.3 percentage points from approximately 10.0% for the corresponding period of 2023.
Such decreases of gross profit and gross margin were mainly due to the decrease in
total operating income by approximately 52.1% compared to the corresponding period
of 2023, whereas the operating costs decreased by approximately 50.9% compared to
the corresponding period of 2023, which led to a higher decrease magnitude of total
operating income than that of operating costs. For detailed reasons for the decreases
“IIl. FINANCIAL REVIEW"
of this chapter. In the first half of 2024, the gross margin was 7.0% for the production

in total operating income and operating costs, please refer to

and sales of ready-mixed concrete and related products, 17.4% for the production and
sales of admixtures, 12.5% for the sales of cements and admixtures, 44.4% for the
business of quality and technology services and 7.0% for other businesses.
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2. By customer category

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the operating income generated by the
Group from independent third-party customers was approximately RMB104.1 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 50.4% compared with approximately RMB209.8
million for the corresponding period in 2023; and its proportion to the income for the
first half of 2024 amounted to 29.4%, representing an increase of 1.0 percentage point
as compared with 28.4% for the corresponding period of 2023.

(lll) Major operation and management measures
1. Carrying out market expansion in a smooth and orderly manner, and
seeking progress while maintaining stability for operation quality

In the first half of 2024, the Group firmly established rational business mindset and made
progress in large-scale projects, external markets as well as new products and businesses.
Firstly, the Group has made achievements in the exploration of large-scale projects within
the province and successfully won the bid for the centralized production and supply
tasks of concrete for the Kunming Changshui International Airport Reconstruction and
Expansion Project (Phase Il). The Group won the bid for the supply tasks of concrete
and aggregates in the Yuanmou-Dayao Highway Project. For the Wenshan Guniangzhai
Project, matters such as attending to mining procedures and formulating mine design
proposals continued to move forward. Secondly, the Group achieved remarkable results
in exploring the external market. Baoshan Building Material’s operating income from
external market accounted for more than 99% of its total operating income, while
occupying a regional market share of 65%. For the first time, Polymer Company’s share
of contracts signed in respect of the external market accounted for more than half of
the total amount of contracts signed by itself. Thirdly, the operation of new products
and businesses has yielded positive results. Green Development Company proactively
explored the operation strategy of pursuing multiple green and low-carbon building
materials businesses simultaneously, increased its market promotion effort on various
new products and businesses such as the utilization of bulk solid waste, and signed
multiple new material supply contracts. Polymer Company focused on “chain extension,
replenishment and reinforcement” and vigorously laid out the production and operation
of new green products such as waterborne coatings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2. Intensifying reform and innovation, and steadily improving the quality
of development

In the first half of 2024, the Group continued to promote reform and innovation. The
Company has comprehensively improved its corporate governance level through the
“eight actions” including the action to intensify the reform of state-owned enterprises,
the action to create corporate governance demonstrations, and the special action to
rectify mixed-ownership enterprises. Firstly, the Group has successfully completed the
re-election of the Board and the Supervisory Committee, optimized and refined the
composition of the special committees of the Board and continuously enhanced its
significant rules and regulations such as the Articles of Association, thereby consistently
enhancing its corporate governance structure and institutional framework. Secondly,
the Group meticulously selected premium subsidiaries as its orientation and expedited
the successful listing of its subsidiaries, Polymer Company and Yuxi Building Material, in
the Yunnan Equity Exchange Center Co., Ltd. Not only did this facilitate the financing
and intellectual integration of both subsidiaries, but it also further enhanced our
reputation within the industry. Thirdly, the Company focused on implementing two
major scientific and technological projects planned by the Yunnan Province Science
and Technology Department in the first half of 2024. Through a large number of
repeated tests, the Group has developed feasible solutions to the performance problems
of the phosphogypsum-based cementitious materials that have been developed, and
formed a systematic understanding in respect of the impact of the use of recycled
aggregates including phosphogypsum fine aggregates and light fine aggregates on the
performance of concrete, which laid a solid foundation for the practical application of
phosphogypsum-based materials and the utilization of recycled aggregates. Fourthly, in
the first half of 2024, the Group applied for 1 first prize and 1 second prize of Yunnan
Provincial Science and Technology Progress Award, as well as the 2024 Engineering
Construction Science and Technology Female Innovation Award (T 232 & F £
MEAIFTEE) granted by China Construction Association of Construction Enterprise
Management. The Group has newly obtained the authorization for 17 utility model
patents. The local standards “Technical Regulations for the Application of High-Strength
Concrete in Yunnan Province” ( (2R s o Rk L FE R BITAR2) ) primarily edited by
the Group has been released and will be implemented on November 1, 2024. Meanwhile,
within the Group, on the basis of the 4 existing subject companies that have passed the
certification for National High-Tech Enterprise, 3 additional subject companies have been
certified as innovative small- and medium-sized enterprises, and 4 additional subject
companies have been certified as Specialized, Refined, Featured and Original Small- and
Medium-sized Enterprises.
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& Exerting a continuous impelling force in green and low-carbon development,

and gathering vigorous momentum for green transformation
In the face of intense market competition, the Group persists in green and low-carbon
development, adheres to transformation and upgrading, and consistently forges a
benchmark for green and low-carbon development. The new quality low-carbon logistics
system consisting of “photovoltaic power generation system + intelligent charging,
swapping and storing facilities + new-energy transportation equipment + unmanned
driving equipment + intelligent monitoring platform” has embraced continuous
improvement. As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Group’s new energy electric vehicles
have travelled a total of approximately 2.30 million kilometers, reducing comprehensive
freight costs by approximately RMB19.00 million and reducing carbon dioxide emissions
by approximately 6,600 tons. In addition, the photovoltaic power generation system has
fully covered the electricity purposes of production, office and household consumption
in Jingkai green production base, generating a total of approximately 1.50 million kWh
of electricity (of which approximately 500,000 kWh are grid-connected sales), saving
electricity costs while generating a total of approximately RMB1,000,000 in income from
electricity sales, and reducing carbon dioxide emissions by approximately 1,200 tons.
Existing charging stations and swapping stations have charged and swapped a total of
approximately 4.50 million kWh of electricity, of which approximately RMB1.20 million
was generated from operating charging businesses for external customers. In addition,
according to the “List of Green Manufacturers in Yunnan Province for 2024" (Ef4 2024
FEL B RER E) released by the Department of Industry and Information Technology
of Yunnan Province (the “Department of Industry and Information Technology
of Yunnan Province”) on July 18, 2024, Polymer Company was shortlisted on the
recommendation list of green factories in the building materials industry. The scaled
effects of green and low-carbon development and the demonstration-driven effects
of the Group have preliminarily emerged, leading to significant improvements in both
economic and social benefits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

4. Enhancing foundational management, elevating innovative momentum
Faced with the challenging industry landscape and sluggish market conditions during the
first half of this year, the Group continued to strengthen its foundational management.
Firstly, we continued to consolidate the management over indicators and costs, integrating
FFEZE) and (K AREREE
I2) with the performance-linked compensation appraisal of each grassroots unit to

“one profit and five rates” (— “cost quota management”
establish a forewarning mechanism, while implementing timely rectification measures
to production-operation units with cost deviations, which brought on outstanding
correction effect. Secondly, we bolstered the management of key engineering projects
by advance planning and comprehensive coordination to safeguard the successful
undertaking and progress of these projects. During the peak construction periods of
large-scale projects, multi-departmental collaboration, active participation, coordination
of resources were achieved to provide all-around support through the means of on-site
presence, on-site investigation and research, and on-site supervision. Thirdly, human
resources management was reinforced. We continued to implement a comprehensive
“ Accountability of Station Managers”, enhancing the development of grassroots station
managers. We conducted comprehensive assessments for station managers of batching
plants and laboratory directors, and made role adjustments based on the assessment
results. Simultaneously, we reserved backup talents for these positions, enriching the
Company’s talent pool and ensuring a strong, complete, and optimal lineup of grassroots
management personnel, thereby further strengthening the establishment of talent teams
for key and large-scale projects.

(IV) Business update

1. Major projects

In the first half of 2024, the Group fully engaged in concrete production and supply for
various highway construction projects and other key construction projects within Yunnan
Province, which included highway projects such as Eshan-Shiping-Honghe Highway and
Chengjiang-Huaning Highway, as well as several non-highway projects like the Panxi
Supporting Infrastructure Construction Project of Huaning Area in Yunnan Tonghai
Industrial Park, and the Western Yunnan Grain Reserve Center Construction Project in
Baoshan. In the second half of the year, while prioritizing the reliable supply for existing
projects, the Group will focus on closely monitoring several large-scale projects under
newly signed contracts, which include, but not limited to, the Kunming Changshui
International Airport Reconstruction and Expansion Project.

2. New products and businesses

In the first half of 2024, the Group has made progress in new businesses and new
products. The Group successfully signed contracts for prefabricated concrete components
such as trench covers, rainwater grates, and spreader covers. The types of prefabricated
components have been further diversified in addition to the existing RPC cover plates.
Polymer Company has made substantive progress and breakthroughs in exploring the
(4F T ite)
waterborne green coatings brand and building a green production base of waterborne

waterborne coatings business, including officially launching the “Haonaishi”

coatings in Nanhua County, Chuxiong Yi Autonomous Prefecture, which allows itself to
successfully sign contracts and gradually realize independent production and delivery.
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lll.  FINANCIAL REVIEW

() Total operating income

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Group realized a total operating income
of approximately RMB354.2 million, representing a decrease of 52.1% compared to the
corresponding period of 2023. Among them, the sales income of ready-mixed concrete,
the main product of the Group, and related products amounted to approximately
RMB317.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB386.7 million or 54.9%,
compared to the corresponding period in 2023. Such decreases were mainly attributable
to the shrinking of the concrete market and intensified competition in the construction
industry, leading to the decrease in both the sales volume and the average unit selling
price of ready-mixed concrete by 53.7% and 2.6%, respectively. In addition to the sales
income of ready-mixed concrete and related products, our operating income during
the Reporting Period also came from the sales of admixtures, cements and admixtures,
as well as related quality and technology services and other businesses. The following
table sets forth the breakdown of the income of the Group for the six months ended
June 30, 2024 and the six months ended June 30, 2023:

For the six months ended
June 30, 2024

= - B¥EE

(—) EHEHBWA
BHZE2024F6A30BIEANEA AEEEFRE
HBEW AN ARE3IS42BE T - 20234F
HRE1K52.1% - Hp - FEER AR BREL
MABEREERANBARK3I778ET
R2023F R EHARKE386.7AET - BIE
549% c WETHREIERBETERRELMS
Z45 - BFEMNE o BHERLIHEES R FHH
EEED R TM53.7%K%2.6%FTE - BRIEHE
T RAMEEREERAN RBEHA - &K
PIFEEWRA TR EHEINNE - KEREE
B BB ERINRE REMER - TERHT
NEEHZE202456 308 L/~ E A K%202356
A308 1L/~ 8 A H U ABR4E -

For the six months ended
June 30, 2023

HBZE20245F6 A30HLAEA #HZE20235F6H30H (L8 A

RMB in  Percentage RMB in Percentage

million of income million of income

ARBEET {(HBRALE AR®EESET (GWALE

Ready-mixed concrete and related products TaRRE + KRB E M 317.7 89.7% 704.4 95.2%
Admixtures S0 17.8 5.0% 22.0 3.0%
Aggregates waR - - 4.6 0.6%
Cement and admixtures KEREBER 6.4 1.8% 35 0.5%
Quality and technology services E 2RSS 0.9 0.3% - -
Other businesses B 11.4 3.2% 5.3 0.7%
Total a5 354.2 100.0% 739.8 100.0%

() Total operating costs

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the total operating costs generated by
the Group amounted to approximately RMB391.7 million, representing a decrease
of RMB346.9 million or 47.0%, as compared to approximately RMB738.6 million for
the corresponding period in 2023. Among them, the operating costs amounted to
approximately RMB327.0 million, representing a decrease of RMB338.6 million or 50.9%,
as compared to approximately RMB665.6 million for the corresponding period in 2023.
The decrease in operating costs was mainly due to the significant decrease in the sales
volume of certain products during the Reporting Period, including ready-mixed concrete
and related products, admixtures and aggregates.
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()  Profitability

1. Total profit

The Group recorded a total profit of approximately RMB-24.5 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2024, representing a decrease of 71.3% compared to the corresponding
period of 2023. This was mainly due to the decrease of approximately RMB385.6
million in the total operating income during the Reporting Period as compared to the
corresponding period in 2023.

2. Income tax expense

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the income tax expense of the Group was
approximately RMB3.4 million. It is estimated that the effective tax rate for the whole
year is 13.9%.

3. Net profit

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Group realized a net profit for the Reporting
Period of approximately RMB-27.9 million, representing a decrease of 163.2% compared
to the corresponding period of 2023. The basic earnings per share was RMB-0.06.

(IV) Administration expense

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the administration expenses were approximately
RMB33.0 million (for the six months ended June 30, 2023: approximately RMB40.2
million), representing a period-on-period decrease of 17.9%, mainly due to the decreases
in litigation fees, rental fees and other expenses during the Reporting Period over the
same period of last year.

(V) General information of assets and liabilities

As at June 30, 2024, the total assets of the Group were approximately RMB4,209.5
million (December 31, 2023: approximately RMB4,455.8 million), representing a decrease
of 5.5% as compared with that as at the end of 2023. The assets were mainly accounts
receivables, monetary funds, and fixed assets. Such assets accounted for 94.1% of
the total assets, with accounts receivables and other assets accounting for 83.4% and
10.7% of the total assets, respectively.

As at June 30, 2024, the total liabilities of the Group were approximately RMB2,917.2
million (December 31, 2023: approximately RMB3,135.6 million), representing a decrease
of 7.0% as compared with that as at the end of 2023. Among them, 17.9% (December
31, 2023: 13.9%) were short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings and long-term
borrowings due within one year, and 81.4% (December 31, 2023: 84.8%) were accounts
payables, other payables, notes payable, employee benefits payable and taxes and dues
payable.
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(VI) Borrowings and solvency

As at June 30, 2024, the total borrowings of the Group were approximately RMB522.0
million (December 31, 2023: approximately RMB437.1 million), all of which were bank
borrowings, of which approximately RMB509.7 million was repayable within one year;
approximately RMB12.3 million was repayable within two to five years.

As at June 30, 2024, the weighted average effective interest rate for bank borrowings of
the Group was 4.71%. And for the six months ended June 30, 2024, the total interest
expenses of the Group were approximately RMB12.5 million (for the six months ended
June 30, 2023: approximately RMB9.4 million) and the profit before interest and tax was
approximately RMB-12.0 million (for the six months ended June 30, 2023: approximately
RMB-4.9 million). Therefore, the interest coverage ratio (profit before interest and tax
divided by interest expenses) was -1.0 (for the six months ended June 30, 2023: -0.5),
mainly resulting from the losses during the first half of 2024.

As at June 30, 2024, the gearing ratio (i.e. total liabilities divided by total assets) of the
Group was 69.3% (December 31, 2023: 70.4%).

(VIl) Liquidity and capital resources

The Group focuses on maintaining a reasonable capital structure and continuously
improving its profitability in order to maintain a good credit standing and sound
financial position.

The capital resources of the Group mainly include cash flows generated from operation
activities, loans from financial institutions and its own funds, which are mainly used for
operating expenses and loan repayments. No financial instruments were used by the
Group for hedging purposes.

As at June 30, 2024, total current assets of the Group were approximately RMB3,882.0
million (December 31, 2023: approximately RMB4,114.6 million), including: (i) monetary
funds of approximately RMB235.2 million (December 31, 2023: approximately RMB322.5
million), accounting for 6.1% of current assets (December 31, 2023: 7.8%); (i) accounts
receivable and notes receivables of approximately RMB3,566.4 million (December 31,
2023: approximately RMB3,714.5 million), accounting for 91.9% of current assets
(December 31, 2023: 90.3%); and (iii) prepayments, other receivables and other current
assets of approximately RMB56.1 million (December 31, 2023: approximately RMB48.0
million), accounting for 1.5% of current assets (December 31, 2023: 1.2%).

As at June 30, 2024, the current ratio (i.e. current assets divided by current liabilities)
of the Group was 133.9% (December 31, 2023: 133.8%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, net cash outflow from operating activities
was approximately RMB123.1 million (for the six months ended June 30, 2023: net
cash inflow of approximately RMB27.6 million), of which cash inflow from operating
activities amounted to approximately RMB663.6 million (for the six months ended June
30, 2023: approximately RMB371.2 million); cash outflow from operating activities
stood at approximately RMB786.7 million (for the six months ended June 30, 2023:
approximately RMB343.5 million). The change in cash inflow from operating activities
was mainly due to an increase of approximately RMB199.1 million in cash received
from the sale of commodities and provision of labour services during the Reporting
Period compared to the corresponding period in 2023, coupled with an increase of
approximately RMB93.4 million in other cash received from operating activities compared
with the same period in 2023. The change in cash outflow from operating activities
was mainly due to an increase of approximately RMB540.7 million in cash paid for
commodities procurement and receipt of labour services during the Reporting Period
compared with the same period in 2023.

IV. HUMAN RESOURCES
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As at June 30, 2024, we employed a total of 929 employees (June 30, 2023: 991).  R2024%6H30H » HMIH£E929%EE (2023
The table below sets out a breakdown of the number of employees by role as at June  F6A30H : 99145 ) o NREFIFKFIHR2024F6
30, 2024 FA30 BRI EI D EVE B ABFIE -

Number
Role e AH
Management B 125
Production management HEEE 233
Quality and technology B2/ 183
Procurement (materials supply) RE(MEHE) 80
Marketing 5 H#E 120
Administration and finance 1T A 75 173
Others EH 15
Total &5 929

The Group recruits employees in the open market, and has established a scientific,
reasonable, fair and impartial remuneration management system. The remuneration of
employees mainly includes fixed salary, allowances and subsidies, performance-related
salary and benefits. In accordance with the PRC laws, the Group also makes contributions
to pension, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund for employees. For the six months
ended June 30, 2023 and the six months ended June 30, 2024, employee benefits
and labor expenses were approximately RMB83.1 million and approximately RMB74.7
million, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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We consider employees to be our most valuable resource for our success. To ensure
the quality of employees at all levels, we have set up internal training programs to
provide training for employees. In accordance with the Company’s development goals
and focusing on annual key tasks, key businesses, and talent development status, the
Company continuously refines various training systems. It gradually achieves the scientific,
standardized, and institutionalized management of training work. The implementation
plan of all-staff training and examinations has been formulated, with a focus on
qualification and certification training, key personnel training, fundamental management
training, new employee training, all-staff training, and specialized education and training
on party ethics. In the first half of 2024, the Group organized 164 employees who were
eligible for intermediate and senior professional titles of engineering series for 2024
to participate in training and theoretical examinations. In order to improve the ability
of the Group’s employees to perform their roles and duties in their job positions and
comprehensively promote employees to hold certificates, 127 certificates related to job
positions were also obtained or renewed. In the second half of the year, the Company
will prioritize management training in areas such as quality technology, production
safety, investment and financing, risk control, state-owned enterprise reform, and
material management. The Company will continue to carry out the work of obtaining
and renewing certificates, and organize comprehensive training and examinations for
all employees. During the Reporting Period, we did not have any operation interruption
attributable to major labor disputes nor any complaints or claims from employees that
were seriously adverse to our business. The Directors believe that we maintain a good
relationship with employees and the Group did not have any major labor disputes that
had a material impact on its normal business management during the Reporting Period.

V. MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND

INVESTMENTS

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company did not make any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. As at June 30,
2024, the Group did not hold any significant investments.

VI. CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

During the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Group’s land use right of state-owned
construction site with a cost of approximately RMB12.08 million was pledged to a bank
as collateral for the borrowings of the Group. Save as disclosed in this interim report,
as at June 30, 2024, the Group did not have any other charge on its assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

VIl. FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Although the Company operates in China and collects revenues and pays costs/fees
in RMB, the Company is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and has raised
proceeds denominated in HKD of approximately HK$366.11 million (less the underwriting
commission and other estimated expenses paid and payable by the Company for the
global offering (the “Global Offering”)). As at June 30, 2024, the balance of the
Group's carrying cash and bank deposits denominated in HKD amounted to approximately
HK$1.14 million. As of August 27, 2024, the balance of bank deposits of the Group
denominated in HKD was approximately HK$1.14 million. We settled foreign exchange
in a timely manner by paying attention to exchange rate changes to reduce the effect
of exchange rate fluctuations on foreign currency held by us.

VIIl. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at June 30, 2024, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

IX. MATERIAL INVESTMENT PLAN

According to the green and low-carbon development plans of the PRC and Yunnan
Province, the Group will take “leading the transformation and upgrading of traditional
industries to green and low-carbon” as the primary investment direction. This aims to
optimize the industrial layout and structure, enhance comprehensive competitiveness,
and seize the economic development opportunities in Yunnan Province’s industrial parks.
Firstly, the Group plans to continuously deploy and optimize its regional green and low-
carbon system. This involves promoting the planning, investment and construction of
key projects such as the Zhaotong and Dehong green new material production bases,
and coordinating the planning, investment and construction of other regional industrial
solid waste green recycling and low-carbon building materials industrial parks, such as
comprehensive utilization of phosphogypsum. Secondly, the Group will engage in the
acquisition of new energy equipment and facilities, green and low-carbon upgrading and
transformation, and related equipment procurement. Examples include procuring pure
electric transporters, pure electric aggregate transporters, and establishing distributed
photovoltaic power stations and other green new energy equipment and facilities.
Thirdly, the Group will actively participate in mine restoration and treatment in regional
markets of Yunnan Province, promote relevant business development of aggregates,
and strengthen the coordinated development of industrial chain. If the aforementioned
investment projects are undertaken within the next year, their source of funding will
mainly come from the proceeds from the Global Offering of the Company or the
Company’s working capital.
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X. OUTLOOK

Despite the economic recovery after the stable transition of the prevention and control
of epidemic could be a process of wave-like development and tortuous advance, the
fundamentals of China’s long-term economic improvement have not changed. In recent
years, China has been strongly implementing the strategy of building a powerhouse which
is dominant in science and technology, manufacturing and transportation, advocating
green and low-carbon development, supporting the real economy by financial services,
driving the construction of enormous infrastructure and transportation system, the
development of metropolitan area and urban agglomeration etc. under “two new-types
and one major development” (namely new-type infrastructure construction, new-type
urbanization and construction of major engineering projects for transportation, water
conservancy etc.), which will bring along new and huge market demand for the concrete
industry. Meanwhile, Yunnan Province proactively implements the national strategy,
formulating provincial strategies, goals and measures in accordance with the provincial
situation, and economic stabilization and quality improvement policies continue to yield
results. Provincial GDP realized approximately RMB1.46 trillion in the first half of 2024,
representing an increase of 3.5% period-on-period, and the social economy development
has continued to improve.

() Strengthen policy research and judgement, and seize
development opportunities

In the second half of the year, we will further improve our policy research and judgment
ability, earnestly study and profoundly comprehend the spirit of the economic work
conference of the central government and Yunnan provincial government and other
relevant meetings, and pay close attention to and keep abreast of industry development
policies. In particular, we will reinforce the research and analysis over the “2024 Policies
and Measures to Further Promote Economic Stabilization and Quality Improvement”
(20245 — PHBACBIREIREHEREE) ) issued by the People’s Government
of Yunnan Province in February 2024, and the list of provincial major projects for the
year 2024 together with the list of projects of the “top priority” published by the
Development and Reform Commission of Yunnan Province in May 2024. In addition, as
green and low-carbon development is widely promoted, there will be broad prospects
and an enormous market in the recycling and utilization of industrial solid waste,
especially the comprehensive utilization of phosphogypsum resources in the future. In
December 2023, 13 departments and bureaus including the Department of Industry
and Information Technology of Yunnan Province and the Development and Reform
Commission of Yunnan Province jointly issued the “Work Plan for Comprehensively
Promoting the Comprehensive Utilization of Phosphogypsum in Yunnan Province”
((ZEAEHEMASHZRAFBIIESZR) ), proposing that by 2025, throughout the
province, there will be an effective expansion of comprehensive utilization channels for
phosphogypsum, leading to a significant enhancement in the level of comprehensive
utilization. The aim is to achieve a 75% comprehensive utilization rate and establish
dynamic equilibrium between comprehensive consumption (including both comprehensive
utilization and harmless disposal) and production volume, while ensuring the orderly
consumption of existing phosphogypsum. At present, the governments and relevant
departments of Yunnan Province and Kunming City are actively promoting related
work. On the basis of research and development investment and capacity construction
in the comprehensive utilization of phosphogypsum resources in the early stage, the
Company will firmly grasp this opportunity, to find breakthroughs for the development
of the Company and create a profit growth pole.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

() Establish robust operational system, and improve quality
and efficiency of operations

We will continue to reinforce our leading position in operations and strengthen our
operational management. Firstly, to establish a robust operational system. We wiill
strengthen top-level design, optimize resource allocation and element guarantee, give
full play to the Company’s advantages of integrated operation, and strengthen the
demonstration and leading role of key projects and outstanding units. We will unlock
the potential of prefectural subsidiaries to seize local markets and promote market
penetration across all regions. By pushing forward Polymer Company, Aggregate
Company, and Green Development Company as specialized companies to enhance
our core competitiveness, we will increase our market share in the core regions in the
province and earnestly “gaining presence”. We will continue to strengthen internal and
external collaboration, strengthen cooperation with diversified platforms such as the
government, central enterprises, and large local private enterprises, explore innovative
cooperation models, and maintain customer relationships and market cultivation.
Secondly, to anchor at projects of high quality. We will actively connect with large
proprietors and projects, penetrate into large markets, undertake large-scale projects,
focus our operations on high-end projects, priority engineering and landmark engineering
projects, and continue to expand the highland of market operations. At the same
time, we are committed to establishing a leadership liaison system for major projects
and a mechanism for tackling major projects, and concentrate our efforts to ensure
the implementation of major projects. Attaching close importance to 22 industrial
fields such as industry-prosperous province, development zones revitalization, and port
construction, we will actively participate in key provincial projects such as hydropower
stations, water conservancy projects, relocation of Degin County, as well as reconstruction
and expansion of Kunming-Yuxi Highway, and continue to consolidate the market
fundamentals within the province. Thirdly, to amplify the high-quality promotion and
implementation of new products and businesses. We will improve the internet model
for marketing new products and businesses by forging the online + offline system, and
increase the efforts in research and development and promotion of new products such
as green building materials and comprehensive utilization of bulk solid waste. We will
vigorously promote the demonstration application of phosphogypsum and new building
materials products, expand the products application scenarios of phosphogypsum in
terms of comprehensive utilization in depth and breadth, so as to achieve an increase
in utilization. We will also actively introduce “small but exquisite” “small but aesthetic”
and “small but specialized” prefabricated concrete and phosphogypsum products in the
market to maximize the benefits of our existing resources while seizing new markets,
exploring emerging demands, and creating new momentum.
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(lll)  Pursue innovation-driven development, and vigorously
develop new quality productive forces
We will adhere to the core strategy of innovation-driven development, as technological
innovation is deemed as an important means of promoting the development of new
quality productive forces in the traditional construction industry. We will be driven
by scientific and technological innovation, take green and low-carbon elements as
fundamental principles, and orient ourselves towards digital and intelligent technologies.
We will focus on national priorities and emerging market demands, and promote
the green transformation and upgrading of traditional industries through enhanced
digitalization and intelligence standards, thereby fostering more application scenarios.
On the one hand, we will bolster the breakthrough in key core technologies, further
increase the research and development and promotion of new products and businesses
such as phosphogypsum building materials products, RPC cover plates, UHPC products,
commercial mortar, powder materials, etc., especially in the comprehensive utilization
of phosphogypsum resources to accelerate the use of phosphogypsum to produce
new products such as curbstones, phosphogypsum aggregates, and phosphogypsum
aggregate permeable bricks. On the other hand, we will also continuously amplify
the advantages of digital empowerment, positioning “digitalization” as an emerging
momentum for development. The construction and promotion of the digital supply chain
financial platform for concrete information will be unceasingly intensified to continuously
digitize business and assets, and lay a robust foundation for supply chain management.
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Milestone Events from 2024 to Date

l. GREEN AND LOW-CARBON DEVELOPMENT

In recent years, the Group has built the country’s first new quality low-carbon logistics
system consisting of “photovoltaic power generation system + intelligent charging,
swapping and storing facilities + new-energy transportation equipment + unmanned
driving equipment + intelligent monitoring platform”, continuously deepening its green
and low-carbon reform, leading the green transformation and upgrading in the industry,
and achieving remarkable results in green and low-carbon development. Firstly, the
Company was selected as one of the excellent cases in Chapter 11 “Environmental
Responsibility” of the case chapter of the “Yunnan Province State-Owned Enterprises
Social Responsibility (ESG) Blue Book 2023" ( (ZFEBA R M EEM(ESG)ERE
(2023)) ). Secondly, the charging, swapping and storage integrated energy station of
Jingkai green production base was awarded the honor of “Green Energy Comprehensive
Demonstration Station” of Kunming for the year 2023 in the event organized by the
Association of Kunming New Energy Vehicles (EFM¥T8EB/THEITERE) under the
supervision of Kunming Municipal Commission of Development and Reform, Bureau of
Industry and Information Technology of Kunming, and Kunming Civil Affairs Bureau.
Thirdly, at the 2023 annual meeting of the Kunming Bulk Cement and Commercial
Concrete Association (E2BAT ARSE /K ER fh R £ 1 E), Jingkai green production base
was honored as an “Advanced Enterprise in Green Certification” (4k 2275 S (b ).
Fourthly, Polymer Company was listed on the “List of Green Manufacturers in Yunnan
Province for 2024" (ZEFE20245 E4EEESR E) released by the Department of
Industry and Information Technology of Yunnan Province on July 18, 2024.

Il. EXTERNAL MARKET AND LARGE-SCALE PROJECTS

In recent years, the Group has been constantly consolidating its market fundamentals in
Kunming and prefecture-level cities, meticulously cultivating the regional markets within
the province, deeply exploiting the external customer base, strengthening “high-end”
operations, concentrating its business resources on large customers and large-scale
projects, actively striving to undertake landmark projects and key engineering projects,
and being committed to building a business pattern of “production-driven operations,
and operation-driven development” (AAEERLEE - MAELRERE). Since 2024, the
Group has successively signed concrete supply contracts for a number of projects,
with the proportion from external market amounting to 48%, and it still maintains a
strong momentum in expanding the market externally. In particular, Baoshan Building
Material’s operating income from external market accounted for more than 99% of its
total operating income, while occupying a regional market share of 65% in Baoshan.
In addition, through continuous tracking and effort, the Group successfully won the
bid for the centralized production and supply projects of concrete for the Kunming
Changshui International Airport Reconstruction and Expansion Project (Phase II), in which
the Company was a member of the consortium, and won the bid for the supply tasks
of concrete and aggregates in the Yuanmou-Dayao Highway Project.
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Milestone Events from 2024 to Date
2024 FESEEEH

lll. TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION

The Group pioneered the concept of using phosphogypsum to produce “phosphogypsum
artificial stone” for the first time in China, which has attracted widespread attention
in the society. Currently, phosphogypsum artificial stone can be processed into various
specifications of aggregates and has been successfully applied in concrete production.
A series of high value-added phosphogypsum products produced are gradually being
introduced into the market.

Furthermore, in March 2024, the Company successfully passed the re-evaluation for
High-Tech Enterprise, marking its third consecutive recognition as a national High-Tech
Enterprise since its initial accreditation in 2017. In June 2024, the Company, Yuxi Building
Material, Qujing Building Material, and Baoshan Building Material were recognized as
Specialized, Refined, Featured and Original Small- and Medium-sized Enterprises of
Yunnan Province. The Company, Qujing Building Material, and Baoshan Building Material
were also certified as innovative small- and medium-sized enterprises.

IV. SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT

From 2024 onwards, the Group has been constantly deepening the reform of state-owned
enterprises to its subsidiaries, so as to comprehensively strengthen the construction and
management of these subsidiaries. In February and March 2024, the Company integrated
and set up three independent legal entity subsidiaries in Kunming, Chuxiong, and Lijiang,
and gradually pushed forward the application for ready-mixed concrete production
qualifications, laying a foundation for the Group to continue deepening its presence in
the three regional markets. In June 2024, Yuxi Building Material and Polymer Company
successfully listed on the Yunnan Equity Exchange Center Co., Ltd., laying a solid
foundation for their brand publicity, market promotion, and financing and intellectual
integration. Both companies were listed on the basic level — the Sci-Tech Innovation
Board (RH¥&I#11R) and the Specialized, Refined, Featured and Original Board (/&%
#711R), with abbreviations of Yuxi Building Material and YCIH Polymer, respectively, and
trading codes of 600552 and 600553, respectively.

V. CONSTRUCTION OF CORPORATE CULTURE

With the core of co-construction Party-mass, from 2024 to present, the Group continued
to carry out a series of corporate culture building activities with various forms and
rich contents to further enhance the sense of gain and happiness among all staff and
constantly strengthen the cohesion and centripetal force of the Group. Such activities
include but not limited to the cultivation of “Green Navigation & Innovation Dream &
Architecting the Future” labor union brand, the joint construction of “Small Station,
Big Energy” trainee station with Yunnan Provincial Construction Technical Vocational
School (EFE 25+ T E4) and Yunnan Infrastructure Investment Co., Ltd. (EFI &%
IR MBI E R {5 B R A A)), and the establishment of “Station+Green Mobility+Display
Platform” by integrating new businesses and products into campus development. The
mass organizations joined forces to create a series of distinctive events for “GHPC Well-
Being”, including the Spring Festival cultural performance, the Spring Festival carnival
"Gathering Women's Strength to Build Dreams with GHPC”, the “Five-in-One” Women's
Day activities, and the “GHPC Cup” staff basketball match.
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I. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has been committed to improving corporate governance standards since
its establishment. It has established a modern corporate governance structure comprising
the general meeting, the Board, the Supervisory Committee and the senior management
that effectively exercise checks and balances on each other and operate independently,
which emphasizes the corporate governance principles of transparency, accountability
and safeguarding the rights and interests of all Shareholders.

Code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The Articles of Association also stipulate that
the Directors and Supervisors shall be appointed for a term of three years. The term of
the second session of the Board and the Supervisory Committee expired on January 28,
2024. As the nomination of candidates for directors and supervisors of the new session
of the Board and the Supervisory Committee had not yet been completed at that time,
and in order to maintain the continuity and stability of the work of the Board and the
Supervisory Committee, the relevant re-election had been postponed. Meanwhile, the
terms of office of the special board committees of the second session of the Board
had also been correspondingly extended. The Company completed the re-election of
the third session of the Board and the Supervisory Committee on May 30, 2024. The
aforementioned postponement of the re-election resulted in the Company’s temporary
deviation from code provision B.2.2. All members of the second session of the Board
and the Supervisory Committee had continued to fulfill their respective duties and
responsibilities of Directors and Supervisors in accordance with the requirements of the
laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association until the re-election work
was completed. The postponed re-election of the Board and the Supervisory Committee
did not affect the normal operation of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, for the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company had
complied with the principles and all applicable code provisions as set out in Part 2 of
the Corporate Governance Code.

II. MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct for all Directors,
Supervisors and relevant employees of the Company (as defined in the Corporate
Governance Code) to conduct transactions of the Company'’s securities. After specific
inquiries made to all Directors and Supervisors, all Directors and Supervisors have
confirmed that they have continued to strictly comply with the required standards set
out in the Model Code for the six months ended June 30, 2024.

lll. INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend paying any interim dividend for the six months ended
June 30, 2024.
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IV. AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The audit and risk committee of the Company (the “Audit and Risk Committee”)
consists of five members, including three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Hongkun (chairman), Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas and Mr. Yu Dingming, and two
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Yang Jia and Mr. Yang Jie.

The Audit and Risk Committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line with the
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the Group's
unaudited condensed consolidated interim results for the six months ended June 30,
2024 and this interim report.

V. CHANGES IN MEMBERS OF THE BOARD AND THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

In view of the expiry of the terms of office of the second session of the Board and the
Supervisory Committee, the Company elected the non-employee Directors of the third
session of the Board and the non-employee representative Supervisors of the third
session of the Supervisory Committee at the 2023 AGM, and also held a Board meeting
and a Supervisory Committee meeting on the same day to elect the chairman of the
Board, the vice chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Supervisory Committee.
In addition, the employee Director of the third session of the Board and the employee
representative Supervisors of the third session of the Supervisory Committee were elected
at the joint meeting of the employee representative delegations (group) leaders of the
Company. For details, please refer to the 2023 AGM circular dated April 26, 2024 and
the poll results announcement of the 2023 AGM dated May 30, 2024 published by
the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the composition of the third session of the Board and
the Supervisory Committee was as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Zhangjian (chairman)

Mr. Zhang Long (vice chairman)
Ms. Wang Fang (employee Director)
Mr. Liu Zhen

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Yang lJia
Mr. Yang Jie

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas

Mr. Yu Dingming

Mr. Li Hongkun

Supervisors:

Mr. Wu Xinhe (chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
Mr. Yang Guanglei

Mr. Gu Feng

Mr. Guo Huan (employee representative Supervisor)
Ms. Li Na (employee representative Supervisor)
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VI. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE ESTABLISHMENT OF
THE BOARD COMMITTEES AND CHANGES IN
MEMBERSHIP

The Company has established five Board committees since its listing, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee,
the Strategy Committee and the Risk Management and Control Committee. In light of
the actual working needs, at the Board meeting held on May 30, 2024, the Company
adjusted the establishment of those five Board committees, and changed them to
four committees after the adjustments, namely the Audit and Risk Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee and the Strategy
and Investment Committee. The following Board members were appointed as members
of the third session of the Board committees subsequent to the adjustments:

(1) Audit and Risk Committee: Mr. Li Hongkun (chairman), Mr. Yu Dingming, Mr.
Wong Kai Yan Thomas, Ms. Yang Jia and Mr. Yang lJie;

(2) Nomination Committee: Mr. Yu Dingming (chairman), Mr. Li Hongkun, Mr.
Wong Kai Yan Thomas, Mr. Li Zhangjian and Mr. Zhang Long;

(3) Remuneration and Evaluation Committee: Mr. Yu Dingming (chairman), Mr. Li
Hongkun, Mr. Wong Kai Yan Thomas, Mr. Liu Zhen and Ms. Yang Jia; and

(4) Strategy and Investment Committee: Mr. Li Zhangjian (chairman), Mr. Zhang
Long, Ms. Wang Fang, Mr. Yang Jie and Mr. Li Hongkun.

VIl. CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Li Na, an employee representative Supervisor, ceased to serve as the vice chairwoman
of the labor union, the director of Female Worker Committee (Z L*F) and the
secretary of the First Party Branch of the Company since March 2024, and has started
to serve as the secretary of the Party Branch and the chairwoman of the labor union of
Baoshan Building Material since March 2024. She has started to serve as a director and
the deputy general manager of Baoshan Building Material since August 2024.

On March 28, 2024, Mr. Lu Jianfeng ceased to serve as an executive Director, the vice
chairman, the authorized representative, a member of the Nomination Committee
and the Strategy Committee of the Company; Ms. Hu Zhurong ceased to serve as an
executive Director (employee Director) and a member of the Nomination Committee
of the Company; Mr. Zhang Long was appointed as the authorized representative of
the Company. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
March 28, 2024 published by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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On April 25, 2024, Mr. Yu Dingming, an independent non-executive Director, was
appointed as an independent director of Yunnan Yunwei Company Limited (27 Z4
i B R /AE]) (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600725).

On May 30, 2024, as a result of the re-election of the Board, Ms. Wang Fang was
appointed as an executive Director (employee Director) and a member of the Strategy
and Investment Committee; and Mr. Liu Zhen was appointed as an executive Director
and a member of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee. For details, please refer
to the circular dated April 26, 2024 and the poll results announcement of the 2023
AGM dated May 30, 2024 published by the Company on the websites of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

On June 28, 2024, Ms. Zhao Zilan was appointed as the general counsel of the Company.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated June 28, 2024
published by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period and as at the Latest Practicable
Date, the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company confirmed
that, there were no changes in the information required to be disclosed under Rule
13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

VIIl. PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities for the six months ended June 30, 2024 (including
the sale of any treasury shares (as defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules)). The
Company did not have any treasury shares as at June 30, 2024.

IX. PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

As at October 31, 2019, the net proceeds from the Global Offering of the Company
was approximately HK$366.11 million (equivalent to approximately RMB329.50 million).
The Company did not issue any equity securities thereafter. With regard to the proceeds
from the Global Offering, the Board adjusted the use and amount from time to time in
accordance with the national and industry policies, the Company’s development strategy
and development progress of projects, and made announcements in accordance with
the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, the Board changed the use of the proceeds from the
Global Offering available for further decision-making at the time on February 7, 2024
and June 28, 2024, respectively. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated February 7, 2024 and June 28, 2024. Accordingly, the actual usage
of the proceeds from the Global Offering during the Reporting Period is as follows:
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Table of usage of the proceeds from the Global Offering as

of June 30, 2024
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HZE202456A308 2B ERBR
EHERABRE

Unit: RMB'000 000 I : AREEET

Amount of Amount of
increase/decrease  increase/decrease
Unutilized upon change upon change
amount as at of usage on of usage on Unutilized
December 31,  February 7, 2024 June 28,2024  Utilized Amount amount as at
2023 7A2024%2R7H  1R2024%6A28H during the June 30, 2024
No. Usage of Proceeds "ot R2023F12A310 REAREEEN/ HEAZBEEM, Reporting Period #2024F6H30R
R ERARE ABALE HONESHE HOWEE BEHRDALE ABREH
1 Improvement, integration and expansion of the 0.01 Reduced by 0.01 / / /
existing concrete production lines JA0.01
YE  BARBREAMERIAER
2 Construction of new product manufacturing base 0.00 / / / /
MREMEERN
3 Acquisition and consolidation of aggregate mining 19.54  Reduced by 15.00  Reduced by 0.31 0.88 335
resources and investments in related fixed assets H15.00 H0.31
DENBLERKE 25 EHETEERE
4 Technical renovation of concrete production and 27.00  Reduced by 0.24  Reduced by 20.12 0.74 5.90
related equipment purchases and investments in 0.24 #420.12
fixed assets
RRTEERMNEREBRBRE  BTEERE
5  Research and development of new products and new 1.67 / Reduced by 0.35 0.00 1.32
technologies and related equipment purchases and H0.35
investments in fixed assets
HER  FENHEEEREEE  BTEER
g
6  Upgrading and renovation of green and low-carbon 28.76  Reduced by 13.00 / 10.32 5.44
concrete and purchases of new energy equipment B213.00
and facilities, new concrete production lines and
related equipment
BRI R EERRIUERIERRERE  HRE
RIEEGLABRERE
7 Upgrading and renovation of green and low-carbon 65.52  Reduced by 9.00  Reduced by 19.75 2.83 33.94
concrete, purchases of new energy equipment and H49.00 BA19.75
facilities, new concrete production lines and related
equipment and equity investment
RRISEERARIERNERRERE - HRE
RIAEGRARRERE - RERE
8  Working capital and general corporate purposes / Increased by 37.25 Increased by 40.53 61.54 16.24
2ELER—RARASE #137.25 E140.53
Total &% 142.50 76.31 66.19
Note:  There were no changes in all the names of the abovementioned uses during the Reporting Period. 3 A EFrE A BERS R EZL -

THRRGERUERRERIRNERAR

20247 Hf 3R &

33



Other Information

HAth &

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated June 28, 2024 in relation to
the change in use of proceeds from the Global Offering, the Company’s proceeds from
the Global Offering available for further decision-making amounted to approximately
RMB40.53 million as of the last adjustment date of the proceeds from the Global Offering
(being June 28, 2024). On June 28, 2024, the Board resolved to use the remaining
proceeds from the Global Offering available for decision-making of approximately
RMB40.53 million for working capital and general corporate purposes.

During the period from June 28, 2024 to the Latest Practicable Date: under “working
capital and general corporate purposes”, the Company has actually utilized approximately
RMB2.48 million, and the unutilized amount is approximately RMB13.76 million. Taking
into account the information currently available, the Board reasonably estimates that
all the unutilized proceeds from the Global Offering are expected to be utilized by the
end of 2026.

X. INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at June 30, 2024, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company
had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which should be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
are taken or deemed to be held under such provisions of the SFO), or which would be
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
to therein, or which would be required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Xl. RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period did the Company or its subsidiaries enter into
any arrangement to enable the Directors or Supervisors to acquire benefits through
acquisition of the Shares or debentures of the Company or any other corporation, nor
had any Directors, Supervisors or their spouses or children aged under 18 been granted
any rights to acquire Shares or debentures of the Company or any other corporation
or exercised any of such rights.
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Xll. INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at June 30, 2024, to the knowledge of the Directors, the following parties (other
than the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares, which is required to be disclosed to
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and has been entered in

the register kept by the Company according to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate
percentage of the
number of the
corresponding class

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Number of  Long/short of issued Shares share capital
Name Capacity/Nature of interest  Class of Shares Shares (share)  position ERESRERTRE (HERTRTEAERE
#E 5%/ R#tE ReRR RABBA(R) HA/ %8 HAZBNEI ZBRAS
YCIH fete ) Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 228,600,000  Long position 73.18% 51.22%
Interest held by controlled Domestic Shares 51,450,000  Long position 16.47% 11.53%
corporations et
Total: 280,050,000  Long position 89.65% 62.75%
EERRre ESABA RER 228,600,000  ff& 73.18% 51.22%
SEAERA R RER 51,450,000 {18 16.47% 11.53%
CE 280,050,000  ff& 89.65% 62.75%
YOIC tee2 Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 51,450,000  Long position 16.47% 11.53%
BOMEE R EHAAA &k 51,450,000 & 16.47% 11.53%
KMEIC tote3) Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 32,340,000  Long position 10.35% 7.25%
g ESABA RER 32,340,000 8 1035% 7.25%
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and ~ Interest held by controlled H Shares 13,388,000  Long position 10.00% 3.00%
Technology Co., Ltd. Mete® corporations et
FHERRG AR AR REEER AR " HR 13,388,000 #f& 10.00% 3.00%
Zoomlion H.K. Holding Co., Limited "% Interest held by controlled H Shares 13,388,000  Long position 10.00% 3.00%
corporations et 4
HESBRI(FE )RR R AR SHREER A ER Hik 13388000 Hf& 10.00% 3.00%
Zoomlion International Trading (H.K.)  Beneficial owner H Shares 13,388,000  Long position 10.00% 3.00%
Co., Limited (ete®
PRENERES(BE)ERAN  BREAA Hik 13383000 #& 10.00% 3.00%
China Resources Company Limited "¢ Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
corporations et
MEEEEERAF SRR A R Hik 40,164,000  §f8 30.00% 9.00%
China Resources In. tete> Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
corporations et
EHRHBRAR SREER AR Hik 40,164,000 18 30.00% 9.00%
EHERGESMRERRELIROHABR AR 35
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Approximate
percentage of the
number of the
corresponding class

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Number of  Long/short of issued Shares share capital
Name Capacity/Nature of interest ~ Class of Shares Shares (share)  position HEEERCRTRG HERTRIEERE
#E 5/ EEME RHER RAZE(R) #&/ %R BAZENEI XA
CRC Bluesky Limited et Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
corporations et
CRC Bluesky Limited *5) REEBRAMER ) Hi 40,164,000 A 30.00% 9.00%
China Resources (Holdings) Company ~ Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
Limited et corporations et
ERH(RE)ARAR SRR AR Hik 40,164,000  §F8 30.00% 9.00%
CRH (Cement) Limited et Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
corporations )
EREEOKE)BRAR M REAERA R Hik 40,164,000  ff2 30.00% 9.00%
China Resources Building Materials Interest held by controlled H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
Technology Holdings Limited ¢ corporations et
EFRIMRERER LR REEERS AR Hik 40,164,000  fF8 30.00% 9.00%
China Resources Cement Holdings (Hong  Beneficial owner H Shares 40,164,000  Long position 30.00% 9.00%
Kong) Limited (et
EFKRER(FE)BRARM EGfEAN Hik 40,164,000  §f& 30.00% 9.00%
Kunming Iron & Steel Holdings Co. Ltd. ~ Beneficial owner H Shares 12,360,300 Long position 9.23% 2.77%
ERREERERAT ESHBA Hik 12360300 & 9.23% 2.77%
Hua An Fund Management Co., Ltd. Others (Mot H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
Others (o) H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%
Total: 20,487,000  Long position 15.30% 4.59%
EREGEEERARA Efpre Hik 12,350,000 42 9.22% 2.77%
oy e HE 8,137,000 & 6.08% 1.82%
R 20,487,000 ff8 15.30% 4.59%
Hua An Fund - QDI single asset Others e H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%
management plan of YCIC
Investment
ERES—EHRIRAQD Efer HIR 8,137,000 W& 6.08% 1.82%
E-EEEEE
Yunnan Communications Investment & ~ Others (e ?) H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%
Construction Group Co., Ltd. "ee”)
ERERBRARREIARAR M) EfpED Hik 8,137,000 {18 6.08% 1.82%
YCIC Investment Co., Ltd. Mee? Beneficial owner H Shares 8,137,000  Long position 6.08% 1.82%
Beneficial owner H Shares 8,137,000  Loanable shares 6.08% 1.82%
EMRERRABRRRMT EHAAA HIR 8,137,000 HE 6.08% 1.82%
EREAA HIR 8,137,000 AHELHKR 6.08% 1.82%
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Other Information

H o &+

Approximate
percentage of the
number of the
corresponding class

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Number of  Long/short of issued Shares share capital
Name Capacity/Nature of interest ~ Class of Shares Shares (share)  position HEEERCRTRG HERTRIEERE
#E 5/ EEME RHER RAZE(R) #&/ %R HAZHNEAL XA
Hua An Fund - QDI single asset Others "ot H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
management plan of Yunnan State
Farms
EZEe—ZREQI Efp e Hik 12,350,000 ##& 9.22% 2.77%
E—REERHI
Yunnan State Farms Group Co., Ltd. "<& Beneficial owner H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
ERREEEARALRR EGHBA Hik 12,350,000 & 9.22% 2.77%
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holdings  Beneficial owner H Shares 12,500,000  Long position 9.34% 2.80%
Group Co., Ltd.
EMEIERAREEERALLR EREAA Hik 12,500,000 H#& 9.34% 2.80%
YUNNAN PROVINCIAL ENERGY Interest held by controlled H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LTD Mete) corporations e
YUNNAN PROVINCIAL ENERGY REEERERER HIR 12,350,000 & 9.22% 2.77%
INVESTMENT GROUP CQ., LTD!%2)
Yunnan Energy Investment (HK) Beneficial owner H Shares 12,350,000  Long position 9.22% 2.77%
Co. Limited ®ete?)
Yunnan Energy Investment (HK) EalEAA HiR 12,350,000 & 9.22% 2.77%
Co. Limited =
HWABAO TRUST CO., LTD (w10 Trustee (e 10 H Shares 12,360,300 Long position 9.23% 2.77%
HWABAO TRUST CO., LTD"1 CEN HRx 12360300 #& 9.23% 2.77%

Notes:

Q)

@)

State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of People’s Government of Yunnan
Province (ZEEARBNEEEELEEERZEE) holds 97.35% equity interest in YCIH and
Yunnan Provincial Department of Finance (274 B EEE) holds 2.65% equity interest in YCIH.

YOIC is wholly-owned by YCIH. By virtue of the SFO, YCIH is deemed to be interested in the
51,450,000 Domestic Shares held by YOIC.

State-owned Assets Administration Commission of Kunming Economic and Technological
Development Zone (R A& ER TR # & BEIH EEZE R Z 88) holds 90% equity interest in KMEIC
and Yunnan Provincial Department of Finance (EF5%& B/ B EE) holds 10% equity interest in KMEIC.

Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co., Ltd. (PEFERIEHER A F) is the sole
shareholder of Zoomlion H.K. Holding Co., Limited (B¢ ERL (F#) £ AR 2 A]), which in turn
is the sole shareholder of Zoomlion International Trading (H.K.) Co., Limited (P HEfERIBIERE 5 (
&) BRAT).

GEE
M

(©)

4

THRRGERUERRERIRNERAR

ERAARBAAEAEEEEREAGHEE
R 1297.35% H R 1 - BRI B B A B
$212.65% IR °

BHOREHEZHERZERE - RIKEHFR
HEEN)  EEEEWRAREIINEEREN
51,450,0000% A& B R i 5 1S o

EREERMAEEREEEERZESRAL
90% MK - EEE MBS EEIR10%M
T -

TEHREMBNARARSTHEN(FE)ERE
RAFMME—RBIR - MPBER(EE)ERER
RARTHENBERE S (FE)BRRFHME—
AR o
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Other Information

HAth &

(10)

China Resources Company Limited (R BIZE AR A7) is the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of China Resources Inc. (ZEE %5 B BR A ]), which in turn is the beneficial owner
of the entire issued share capital of CRC Bluesky Limited, which in turn is the beneficial owner
of the entire issued share capital of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited ZEJE (55E) &
BR A ®]), which in turn is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of CRH (Cement)
Limited (8% @ (7KE) AR 2 7)) and Commotra Company Limited (& & A R 2 a]). CRH (Cement)
Limited GEFEE (7KJE) AR A A]) directly held approximately 68.63% of the issued share capital
of China Resources Building Materials Technology Holdings Limited (2 Bz B2 AR A7),
whereas Commotra Company Limited (& & #BFR /A7) directly held approximately 0.09% of the
issued share capital of China Resources Building Materials Technology Holdings Limited (%872
MEHEIZREEBR A R)), which in turn is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of
China Resources Cement Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (£5E7KR1E (B8) AR A 7).

Hua An Fund Management Co., Ltd. GEZEEEIRAFMR A A)) is the asset manager of two asset
management plan products, (i) Hua An Fund — QDII single asset management plan of Yunnan
State Farms; and (ii) Hua An Fund — QDII single asset management plan of YCIC Investment.

YCIC Investment Co., Ltd. (£ 32 % £ E1% & A R A &) is wholly-owned by Yunnan Communications
Investment & Construction Group Co., Ltd. (Ef& R iBIEEZZEMAR A A]). YCIC Investment
Co., Ltd. (EE £ EE E AR Q7)) invested in the underlying Shares issued by the Company as
client through Hua An Fund — QDI single asset management plan of YCIC Investment. By virtue
of the SFO, Yunnan Communications Investment & Construction Group Co., Ltd. (2 & R @&
BEEEEERAR) is deemed to be interested in the 8,137,000 H Shares held in the Hua An
Fund — QDI single asset management plan of YCIC Investment.

Yunnan State Farms Group Co., Ltd. (E® 22 £ B H R &2 7)) invested in the underlying Shares
issued by the Company as client through Hua An Fund — QDI single asset management plan of
Yunnan State Farms.

Yunnan Energy Investment (HK) Co. Limited is wholly-owned by YUNNAN PROVINCIAL ENERGY
INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LTD. By virtue of the SFO, YUNNAN PROVINCIAL ENERGY INVESTMENT
GROUP CO., LTD is deemed to be interested in the 12,350,000 H Shares held by Yunnan Energy
Investment (HK) Co. Limited.

By virtue of the SFO, HWABAO TRUST CO., LTD, as trustee, is deemed to be interested in the
12,360,300 H Shares held by HWABAO OVERSEAS INVESTMENT SERIES 2 NO 42-8 QDII SINGLE
MONEY TRUST.

Save as disclosed above, as at June 30, 2024, to the knowledge of the Directors, no other

person (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company) had

any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which are required to

be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register
as specified in Section 336 of the SFO.

XIll. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Group did not have any significant events after
the Reporting Period.
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Prepared by: YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEAER

As at June 30, 2024

20246 H30H

Currency: RMB

R EmERZESMEERELTROBR AR By : AR#T
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
2024F6A30H  2023412A31H
NOTES V (Unaudited) (Audited)
Items 1HH MR (REEET) (g5
(Restated)
(I &%)
Current assets: REEE :
Monetary funds w5 1 235,232,226.55  322,465,298.50
Financial assets held for trading ROECRHEE
Derivative financial assets MTESHEE
Notes receivable eSS 2 57,523,181.67 27,774,990.13
Accounts receivable FEHBRTR 3 3,508,940,332.05  3,686,689,249.57
Receivables financing FEWR IR R E 4 3,999,830.71 7,288,317.02
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 5 13,398,929.85 11,870,667.77
Other receivables H b e Y 3R 6 22,581,155.26 19,683,070.15
Including: Interest receivable Hep - RIS
Dividends receivable FEUAR
Inventories FE 7 20,208,118.98 22,358,657.17
Contract assets BREE
Assets held for sale REGEEE
Non-current assets due within one year —FRRERNERBEE
Other current assets HimEhEE 8 20,144,232.32 16,436,631.24
Total current assets REBEEST 3,882,028,007.39 4,114,566,881.55
Non-current assets: FERBEE :
Debt investments BEERE
Other debt investments Hib EERE
Long-term receivables REAFE R
Long-term equity investments RERERE
Investments in other equity instruments HibERTAKRE
Other non-current financial assets HibIEReemEE
Investment properties AN B E
Fixed assets EE&E 9 217,062,696.87 219,924,809.43
Construction in progress TEETRE 10 21,228,768.07 16,068,374.55
Productive biological assets EEMEMEE
Oil and gas assets MREE
Right-of-use assets EREEE 11 9,480,286.85 21,904,177.69
Intangible assets m AR 12 40,776,961.27 41,347,835.23
Development expenses Fa sz
Goodwill B
Long-term deferred expenses REAGHER
Deferred tax assets RIEFRISTHEE 13 37,821,946.99 40,819,283.38
Other non-current assets Hib3EREEE 14 1,085,663.72 1,122,800.00
Total non-current assets FRBEESH 327,456,323.77 341,187,280.28
Total assets BEAS 4,209,484,331.16  4,455,754,161.83

ETHERGESMUREERLIBROBRAR
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Cont'd)

eHEEREBER(E)

As at June 30, 2024

R2024%6 A30A
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
20245 6H30H 2023%12A31H
NOTES V (Unaudited) (Audited)
Items 1HH MR (REEET) (g2
(Restated)
(i&E35))
Current liabilities: REAE :
Short-term borrowings REER 15 461,310,656.62 384,405,074.51
Financial liabilities held for trading REMEERBE
Derivative financial liabilities MTHEERABE
Notes payable FEfZ 1% 16 214,004,698.88  406,620,384.55
Accounts payable FETER K 17 1,768,295,147.01 1,878,323,338.46
Advances from customers TEWRIE
Contract liabilities aRBE 18 7,274,228.82 9,093,770.02
Employee benefits payable JE A~} B8 T35 A 19 118,446,973.03 97,811,086.61
Taxes and dues payable ERTE 20 4,781,497.71 6,775,131.68
Other payables HAtbET R 21 267,678,667.89 270,417,078.13
Including: Interest payable Hep o ERFLE
Dividends payable FERTAR R 12,516,288.09 15,134,758.09
Liabilities held for sale REFERE
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREIERSERE & & 22 56,668,360.32 21,680,854.71
Other current liabilities EtrneaE 23 921,467.42
Total current liabilities RBRBESTT 2,899,381,697.70  3,075,126,718.67
Non-current liabilities: FEREBEME :
Long-term borrowings KHIfER 24 12,271,402.52 51,027,735.85
Bonds payable ERES
Including: Preferred shares Hrep o BER
Perpetual bonds XEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 25 4,061,882.84 8,306,624.37
Long-term payables REAFER K
Long-term employee benefits payable £ HA R AT B T 5 A
Provisions astafE 26 1,504,480.24 1,105,112.04
Deferred income IR 2
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFSHAE 13
Other non-current liabilities Hib3Eme B &
Total non-current liabilities FRBEMEET 17,837,765.60 60,439,472.26
Total liabilities BESs 2,917,219,463.30  3,135,566,190.93
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Cont'd)
eHEEEER(E)

As at June 30, 2024

20246 H30H

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
20246 H30H  2023%12H31H
NOTES V (Unaudited) (Audited)
Items 1BH MR (REEET) (gez=5)
(Restated)
(52&E75))
Shareholders’ equity: R -
Share capital &N 27 446,272,000.00 446,272,000.00
Other equity instruments Hit#EsmT A
Including: Preferred shares Hep - B
Perpetual bonds KEEE
Capital reserve BARRNTE 28 303,383,982.18 303,383,982.18
Less: Treasury stock B BT
Other comprehensive income E iR & e
Special reserve HIAHE 29 9,019,609.20 9,013,952.98
Surplus reserve BHRDTE 30 94,909,590.28 94,909,590.28
Undistributed profit RARFE 31 360,598,056.28 386,083,715.52
Total shareholders’ equity attributable BENEBARARRERST 1,214,183,237.94  1,239,663,240.96
to the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests DY R ER 78,081,629.92 80,524,729.94
Total shareholders’ equity RREZSF 1,292,264,867.86  1,320,187,970.90
Total liabilities and shareholders’ BENRRERET 4,209,484,331.16  4,455,754,161.83

equity

Legal representative: Li Zhangjian

EERRA : FERE

Principal in charge of accounting: Liu Zhen

TESFIERRA SR

Head of the accounting department: Wang Zhenkun

BRHERERRA TR

THERGERUEREREIRNERAR
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Balance Sheet of the Parent Company
BRAIBERER

As at June 30, 2024
R2024F6 H30H

Prepared by: YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
RELEN - TRERGESIERRRLIROERAF

Currency: RMB
Bl - ARMT

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
2024%6H30H 2023%F12H31H
NOTES XV (Unaudited) (Audited)
Items BH MaE+® (REEET) (ge5=5t)
(Restated)
(i &%)
Current assets: REEE :
Monetary funds BEE® 175,450,506.45 307,506,793.64
Financial assets held for trading RN EREE
Derivative financial assets PTHEERMEE
Notes receivable eSS 31,914,844.10 9,752,157.18
Accounts receivable FEHBRTR 1 2,942,719,670.10  2,996,028,453.45
Receivables financing FEWFIERE 1,270,107.21 5,915,000.00
Prepayments TEfTFRIB 8,730,261.42 9,390,127.04
Other receivables H b e Y3k 2 82,533,864.40 134,937,542.53
Including: Interest receivable Hep - EICHIE
Dividends receivable JRE W R 31,672,818.93 31,672,818.93
Inventories A 13,593,839.35 15,711,045.35
Contract assets BREE
Assets held for sale REREEE
Non-current assets due within one year —FREIERSERE A E
Other current assets HipmEhEE 19,578,182.72 15,522,120.42
Total current assets REBEEST 3,275,791,275.75  3,494,763,239.61
Non-current assets: FERBEE :
Debt investments BRERE
Other debt investments HibEERE
Long-term receivables R EAFE IR
Long-term equity investments RERIERE 3 148,135,602.32 148,135,602.32
Investments in other equity instruments HibEm TAKRE
Other non-current financial assets HibIEmB e mEE
Investment properties & 1 o EE
Fixed assets BEEE 171,528,957.06 167,881,791.71
Construction in progress EETR 20,754,002.15 15,553,744.22
Productive biological assets EEMEMEE
Oil and gas assets HREE
Right-of-use assets ERELE 8,114,163.94 22,429,141.72
Intangible assets mAE 29,676,308.10 30,125,642.04
Development expenses AR

Goodwill (EES

21,603,659.09
285,663.72
400,098,356.38
3,675,889,632.13

24,030,627.64
322,800.00
408,479,349.65
3,903,242,589.26

Long-term deferred expenses REAGHER
Deferred tax assets BEEFSTHEE
Other non-current assets HibIEmBEE
Total non-current assets EREBEESTT
Total assets EEHA
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Balance Sheet of the Parent Company (Cont'd)
BARIEERERGE)

As at June 30, 2024

K20244F6 5308
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
2024%6H30H 2023%F12H31H
NOTES XV (Unaudited) (Audited)
Items 1BH MaE+a (REEES) (#e5=5)
(Restated)
(i &%)
Current liabilities: REAE :
Short-term borrowings REAER 367,676,001.73 270,849,172.59
Financial liabilities held for trading RHUHCRBE
Derivative financial liabilities MTESHBE
Notes payable ERRR 189,004,698.88 405,508,186.57
Accounts payable FERTBRFR 1,511,466,978.79  1,648,159,491.91
Advances from customers TEGRIE
Contract liabilities aRERE 3,447,421.47 3,269,575.95
Employee benefits payable JE A< B8 T3 A 78,712,260.48 69,585,605.33
Taxes and dues payable R 1,122,957.54 1,424,064.91
Other payables HAbER R 289,522,430.84 249,299,180.50
Including: Interest payable Hep - EAFIE
Dividends payable JEAT AR A 2,775,881.76 2,775,881.76
Liabilities held for sale REFEEE
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREIERSERE & & 35,377,795.52 18,957,168.57
Other current liabilities Hibme 8 & 448,164.79
Total current liabilities RBEBESTT 2,476,778,710.04  2,667,052,446.33
Non-current liabilities: FRBEE :
Long-term borrowings REAER 2,067,735.85 30,027,735.85
Bonds payable FEfTES
Including: Preferred shares Hep o EER
Perpetual bonds KAEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,179,213.11 8,886,321.87
Long-term payables REAFER K
Long-term employee benefits payable £ HA PR AT B T 57 A
Provisions SR RERE 1,504,480.24 1,105,112.04
Deferred income R 2
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTSFIBE
Other non-current liabilities Hib3Eme 8 &
Total non-current liabilities FRBEMEET 6,751,429.20 40,019,169.76
Total liabilities BESE 2,483,530,139.24  2,707,071,616.09
THERGECRMERETIRNERAA 43
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Balance Sheet of the Parent Company (Cont’d)
BRARIEERERE)

As at June 30, 2024

R2024F6 H30H
June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
2024%6H30H 2023%F12H31H
NOTES XV (Unaudited) (Audited)
Items HE M+ R (REEET) (#e2=5)
(Restated)
(g=51)
Shareholders’ equity: R -
Share capital &N 446,272,000.00 446,272,000.00
Other equity instruments Hit#EsmTA
Including: Preferred shares Hep o BER
Perpetual bonds KB
Capital reserve BARRTE 484,266,176.43 484,266,176.43
Less: Treasury stock o EIFAR
Other comprehensive income Hib#r e W
Special reserve BIEFE 3,271,429.57 3,350,724.48
Surplus reserve BEHRNTE 65,828,564.36 65,828,564.36
Undistributed profit FRHEFH 192,721,322.53  196,453,507.90
Total shareholders’ equity RREZESTT 1,192,359,492.89 1,196,170,973.17
Total liabilities and shareholders’ BEMBRREREST 3,675,889,632.13  3,903,242,589.26
equity
Legal representative: Li Zhangjian Principal in charge of accounting: Liu Zhen Head of the accounting department: Wang Zhenkun
FEERRA  FEE FERTIEEEA - ik EERIEEEA ¢ ik
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Prepared by: YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

ARELEENT -

THRRME BRI RO ARAR

Consolidated Income Statement

AN 1 N
&P AER
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

Currency: RMB
Bl - ARMT

January-June January-June

2024 2023
2024%1-6 8 2023%1-6 8
NOTES V (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Items BH MR (REEET) (REE )
(Restated)
(Fz&7))
I. Total operating income — - BEARA 354,163,146.97 739,816,289.33
Including: Operating income Hep o 22l A 32 354,163,146.97 739,816,289.33
Il. Total operating costs = EEERK 391,730,562.30 738,585,251.50
Including: Operating costs Hrh o RN 32 327,021,052.10 665,636,337.20
Taxes and surcharges Tt K Fan 33 2,888,009.47 6,085,797.95
Selling expenses HEEA 34 9,501,283.92 9,169,941.34
Administrative expenses BB 35 32,995,808.87 40,217,145.91
Research and development HEEA 36 6,046,256.07 8,943,930.96
expenses
Financial expenses M5EA 37 13,278,151.87 8,532,098.14
Including: Interest expenses Hep : FISEH 12,500,818.50 9,396,127.11
Interest income F B U A 615,919.37 1,160,820.83
Add: Other income hn s Elikes 38 1,414,176.39 1,635,471.45
Investment income (Losses are shown BB Was (FRRLAT - 157 39 -3,001,601.53 -986,255.89
with “-") H71)
Including: Income from investments Heh - HEEE M
in associates and joint B ERER
ventures & & e
Gains on derecognition LA BRBK AR 5T
of financial assets EMNEHE
measured at amortized ERILER
cost Wz
Net exposure hedge gains (Losses N O = H s (4825 A
are shown with “-") [-15%3E51)
Gains on changes in fair value (Losses AR EEZE W (BX
are shown with “-") LAT- 15%3851)
Credit impairment losses (Losses are ERRERR(BRNU 40 14,108,982.38 -9,724,747 .61
shown with “-") [-15%3E5]
Impairment losses on assets (Losses BEREEKGERN
are shown with “-") [-15%3E%1)
Gains on asset disposal (Losses are BERE W (18K 41 1,521,307.08 144,686.97
shown with “-") [-15%3E%1)
Ill. Operating profit (Losses are shown = - EERE(EEU -5 -23,524,551.01 -7,699,807.25
with “-") =5))
Add: Non-operating income hn o EEEINRA 42 2,882,052.85 888,508.62
Less: Non-operating expenses W EHEINE 43 3,868,632.12 7,456,360.69
IV. Total profit (Total losses are shown g - R AR (E 8RR - 58 -24,511,130.28 -14,267,659.32
with “-") =5l
Less: Income tax expenses B FTSBER 44 3,434,327.55 -3,633,281.59
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Consolidated Income Statement (Cont’d)

FAIER(E)

For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

NOTES V

Items HH MR

January-June
2024
2024%1-68
(Unaudited)
(REEET)

January-June
2023
2023%1-6H
(Unaudited)
(REFEET)
(Restated)
(fz&7))

V. Net profit (Net losses are shown with F - FRIECREEU - 5RES)
=)
1. Classified by the attribution of
ownership
Net profit attributable to owners of
the parent company (Net losses are
shown with “-")
Gains or losses on non-controlling

interests (Net losses are shown

(D BFEEEESE

HERERARMEEN
FERE CFE1E
AT - 153851
LERRIER OFER
VAT - 153851

with “-")
2. Classified by continuity of (D) REEFEMESE
operations
Net profit from continuing operations FREAC TR CFEIBIA

[-15%4E51)
£ AR OF B 1R A
[-15%4E51)
- AR S WS B R FHE

(Net losses are shown with “-")
Net profit from discontinued operations
(Net losses are shown with “-")
VI.Net other comprehensive income after 7=
tax
Net after-tax amount of other BEREARMAAERNEM
comprehensive income attributable to FREWmmEIEFE
owners of the parent company

1. Other comprehensive income that (=) TreE D fEE R EAb
cannot be reclassified to profit or Z*/\LBZEE
loss

2. Other comprehensive income to be (D) ES B RN A
reclassified to profit or loss iAW

Net after-tax amount of other RO BARR B E Al
comprehensive income attributable to i? Hﬂlﬁnﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬁ@%ﬁ
non-controlling interests
VIl. Total comprehensive income +t - REWERE

Total comprehensive income attributable S SYNGINES R oFFEe)
to owners of the parent company Wz sag
Total comprehensive income attributable BEER BRI ARE Kam
to non-controlling interests ok
Vil. Earnings per share: N - SR :
1. Basic earnings per share (=) EXR R
2. Diluted earnings per share (D) mEekiks

-27,945,457.83

-25,485,659.24

-2,459,798.59

-27,945,457.83

-27,945,457.83
-25,485,659.24

-2,459,798.59

-0.06
-0.06

-10,634,377.73

-12,978,353.76

2,343,976.03

-10,634,377.73

-10,634,377.73
-12,978,353.76

2,343,976.03

-0.03
-0.03

Legal representative: Li Zhangjian
EERERA - FEE

Principal in charge of accounting: Liu Zhen
ITESFIEREA - 2k
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Prepared by: YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

REEN  THERFERUERRRLRNERAT

Income Statement of the Parent Company

SHNCTRIYEP

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

B E2024F6 H30H 1L A

January-June

Currency: RMB
By - ARKET

January-June

2024 2023
2024%1-68 2023%1-6 4
NOTES XV (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Items b= ME+TE (REHE) (REEFER)
(Restated)
(5 53%1)
I. Operating income - EERA 4 255,567,351.11 566,968,523.46
Less:Operating costs B KR 4 228,551,849.27 531,246,962.84
Taxes and surcharges i K Ftan 1,849,191.72 3,534,170.88
Selling expenses HEEH 4,930,261.58 5,422,119.63
Administrative expenses EBER 22,236,664.57 28,784,698.92
Research and development expenses HEER 4,924,632.39 7,461,216.92
Financial expenses W &R 8,865,181.98 4,813,815.40
Including: Interest expenses He o FEER 8,290,655.64 5,942,500.01
Interest income FBIA 571,786.18 967,678.23
Add:Other income o Efnlas 990,779.90 869,517.29
Investment income (Losses are shown & s (AR BAT- 5% 5 -291,917.37 -84,357.36
with “-*) 7))
Including: Income from investments Hep - HEEENES
in associates and joint EEERNRE
ventures Wz
Gains on derecognition LABE SRR AN ET =
of financial assets KB E AR
measured at 1k
amortized cost R S
Net exposure hedge gains (Losses SF O E Bk Es (B A
are shown with “-") [- 1574851))
Gains on changes in fair value (Losses AREEZFKE (BRI
are shown with “-") [- 157 4851))
Credit impairment losses (Losses are 2R EIRR (BRI 13,248,653.41 -4,235,994.58
shown with “-") SRIET
Impairment losses on assets (Losses BEMEEKRGEKRNT-]
are shown with “-") SRiESI)
Gains on asset disposal (Losses are BERE Wz (38R 1,594,199.07 146,504.36
shown with “-*) Eiedl))
Il. Operating profit (Losses are shown = - EERE(EEU-5RES) -248,715.39 -17,598,791.42
with “-")
Add: Non-operating income o EEINRA 1,827,738.10 469,483.76
Less: Non-operating expenses W EHEINT 2,884,239.53 5,941,409.14
lll. Total profit (Total losses are shown = FBAE(SBAREU - 5% -1,305,216.82 -23,070,716.80
with “-") =5
Less: Income tax expenses B S THER 2,426,968.55 -4,114,125.16
THERGECRMERETIRNERAA 47
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Income Statement of the Parent Company (Cont'd)

NEIRER(E)

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A
January-June January-June
2024 2023
2024%1-6 8 20234 1-6 8
NOTES XV (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Items BH M+ (REEET) (R &)
(Restated)
(I &%)
IV. Net profit (Net losses are shown [0 FEFEOREE U - J5RES) -3,732,185.37 -18,956,591.64
with “-")
1. Net profit from continuing operations (—) BELEFRECFEE -3,732,185.37 -18,956,591.64
(Net losses are shown with” -") LAT-15%3851))
2. Net profit from discontinued (=) IS FRBECFEE
operations LAT- 573851
(Net losses are shown with” -")
V. Net other comprehensive income i HitGEWanBEeFE
after tax
1. Other comprehensive income that () TReE N B A
cannot be reclassified to profit or loss iAW
2. Other comprehensive income to be (D) ES B RN EA
reclassified to profit or loss irE W
VI. Total comprehensive income AR =1l 6 -3,732,185.37 -18,956,591.64
VII. Earnings per share: + - SRkE :
1. Basic earnings per share () EXR R
2. Diluted earnings per share (D) mEekikas
Legal representative: Li Zhangjian Principal in charge of accounting: Liu Zhen  Head of the accounting department: Wang Zhenkun
FEERKRA  FEE FERFIEEEA : 2k B EEA - Tk
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
aMIRERNER
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

Prepared by: YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

Currency: RMB

mELEN c EMERZER MR TIRNERAR By ARMT
January-June January-June
2024 2023
2024F1-6 A 20234 1-6 A
NOTES V (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Items 1BA MR (REEES) (REsE=T)
(Restated)
(&&E75)
I. Cash flows from operating activities: — K& FHELENRESRE :
Cash received from sales of goods or HEMm ~ RESHEKEINIR 546,781,244.71 347,707,770.21
provision of services &
Received tax refunds W B BB B R i
Other cash received from operating WEIE L EBFANIR  4501) 116,817,281.90 23,459,176.84
activities &
Subtotal of cash inflows from REEHRER/A NG 663,598,526.61 371,166,947.05
operating activities
Cash paid for purchase of goods or receipt BERR  BEXSBINHR 706,871,133.95 166,200,795.44
of services &
Cash paid to and for employees THEBTIRABRT IR 41,629,775.72 69,603,461.78
&
Taxes paid AR EERE 20,008,253.30 78,006,445.40
Other cash paid for operating activities SN EMBELEESHEAMNE  45(1) 18,219,126.93 29,737,040.84
&
Subtotal of cash outflows from RETBHRERSHH D& 786,728,289.90 343,547,743.46
operating activities
Net cash flow from operating RETHELENEERE -123,129,763.29 27,619,203.59
activities FE
Il. Cash flows from investing activities: = - REFHELENBRERE :
Cash received from disinvestment B8 & W 23R &
Cash received from investment income S8 & = W B /3R &
Net cash recovered from the disposal of REETEE BREEME 964,868.00 633,974.00
fixed assets, intangible assets and other M REIEEWE AR IFRE
long-term assets
Net cash received from the disposal of BET AR REAMEEE Y
subsidiaries and other business units B IR & FEE
Other cash received from investing activities — UZ|H b EIEEESNH @RI
&
Subtotal of cash inflows from REFTERESRA DT 964,868.00 633,974.00
investing activities
Cash paid for the acquisition of fixed BEETEE  BEEENE 11,906,975.37 24,854,455.54
assets, intangible assets and other long- HRPEESNNES
term assets
Cash paid for investments REZ MRS
Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and BEFRE REMEEENE
other business units IR )55
Other cash paid for investing activities AT HE M RIS B E BB R IR
&
Subtotal of cash outflows from RETBRSHH D& 11,906,975.37 24,854,455.54
investing activities
Net cash flow from investing RETHEENRSRE -10,942,107.37 -24,220,481.54
activities FE
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Cont'd)
EHBEREXR(E)

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA
January-June January-June
2024 2023
2024F1-6 A 20239 1-6 A
NOTES V (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Items BA MR (REEES) (REsE:T)
(Restated)
(I E5))
lll. Cash flows from financing activities: = - E&FHELENRERE
Cash received from investments Y& & W B H93R &
Including: Cash received by subsidiaries Hep : FREIRKDERRE
from non-controlling interests’ &
investments WE|RH 2
Cash received from borrowings BREERKEIHNRE 481,302,550.46 416,627,735.85
Other cash received from financing Wﬂﬁ@iﬁiiééﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ
activities i3
Subtotal of cash inflows from BEEIHRESR/ADE 481,302,550.46 416,627,735.85
financing activities
Cash for debt repayments Eﬁ{ﬁﬁkiﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁ 368,885,977.34 371,796,582.59
Cash paid for dividends, profits PELARF] - FESERFEZ 11,240,314.17 8,573,590.35
appropriation or payments of interest FHR &
Including: Dividends and profits paid to Hep : FREIR 4D EARR 800,000.00
non-controlling interests by EORR A ~ A
subsidiaries
Other cash paid for financing activities SNEMEAEEFHEANE  4501) 848,012.64 18,590,207.98
KA
Subtotal of cash outflows from BEEHRSMH/NG 380,974,304.15 398,960,380.92
financing activities
Net cash flow from financing EETHELNESRE 100,328,246.31 17,667,354.93
activities R

VI.

. Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on

cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash ki)
equivalents
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash
equivalents
Closing balance of cash and cash
equivalents

CERSBHHRER

RESENNTE

- RERREEEYFEME

e BRe RIReEEWER
A
HBARRERBREEEYRE

8,302.01

-33,735,322.34

69,873,194.18

36,137,871.84

339,059.83

21,405,136.81

133,292,281.25

154,697,418.06

Legal representative: Li Zhangjian

EERRA  FER
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Principal in charge of accounting: Liu Zhen
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Cash Flow Statement of the Parent Company

Prepared by: YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

mBER  EERgEeSEERRIROERAT]
Items HE

NOTES XV

= ARy = —~
SARIRERER
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

Currency: RMB

By : ARBT
January-June January-June
2024 2023
202451-6A 2023%1-6H
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REET) (REEFERT)
(Restated)
(K& E35)

Cash flows from operating activities: —

Cash received from sales of goods or
provision of services

Received tax refunds

Other cash received from operating
activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from

operating activities

Cash paid for purchase of goods or
receipt of services

Cash paid to and for employees

Taxes paid
Other cash paid for operating activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from
operating activities
Net cash flow from operating
activities
Cash flows from investing activities: —
Cash received from disinvestment
Cash received from investment income
Net cash recovered from the disposal of
fixed assets, intangible assets and other
long-term assets
Net cash received from the disposal of
subsidiaries and other business units
Other cash received from investing
activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from
investing activities
Cash paid for the acquisition of fixed
assets, intangible assets and other
long-term assets
Cash paid for investments
Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and
other business units
Other cash paid for investing activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from
investing activities
Net cash flow from investing
activities

- REFHELENRSRE

HEMm - RESHREINIR
&

Y B i B SRR

Yo B B B O R BV B R R IR
Cia

REFBHRERMADET

BERM
&
SNEBTEABTXIrR
Cia

XA EIBERE

XA EAD SRR B BRI
&
REFHRERME D&

EEBHRAOR

RETHELENRERE
R

- REFHEENHRERE :

W e EKREINE &

SR E KRR EINERE

REBETEE  BPEEMHE
i REIEE R @ IR S F

BREFRRREMEEELK
BN F R

Yo Bl B B4R VR B B BRI IR
&
REFZBRESRA D&

BRETEE BEEMHE
i REEESNHRE

REXHRE

RS FRARREMERENT
VIR & %

SN E MR EE B A AR
£
REFHRSR DG

RETHELENRERE
R

212,997,156.33 535,142,015.15

915,683,432.14 517,591,604.07

1,128,680,588.47 1,052,733,619.22
657,652,372.18 526,285,119.01
32,190,046.84 36,910,255.39

11,961,242.72
558,101,115.75

42,382,275.78
460,421,458.18
1,259,904,777.49  1,065,999,108.36

-131,224,189.02 -13,265,489.14

819,900.00 633,974.00

819,900.00 633,974.00

10,877,475.37 23,409,517.54

10,877,475.37 23,409,517.54

-10,057,575.37 -22,775,543.54

ETHERGESMUREERLIBROBRAR 51
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Cash Flow Statement of the Parent Company (Cont'd)

BRARESRER(E

For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

Items

HH

January-June

2024

202451-6A

NOTES XV (Unaudited)
fE+R (REEET)

January-June
2023
20239 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RiesEst)
(Restated)
(#&75))

lll. Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from investments
Cash received from borrowings
Other cash received from financing
activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from
financing activities
Cash for debt repayments
Cash paid for dividends, profits
appropriation or payments of interest
Other cash paid for financing activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from
financing activities
Net cash flow from financing
activities
IV. Effect of exchange rate fluctuations
on cash and cash equivalents
V. Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash
equivalents
VI. Closing balance of cash and cash
equivalents

CBEEHELENRSRE -

M U 5 U B 89 R
BEERKEIHNRE
Wﬂﬁ@ﬁiéé@ﬁ@%ﬁ

£

EETEHRESRA DG
Eﬁ&ﬁiﬁmﬁﬁ
SERA ~ FUASERF S
FHIRE
iﬁﬁmﬁ BEBHE BN
iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&¢ﬁ

BEERHELNESRE
Pk

- EXSHHRERREEEY

2

CRERASEEWTFEME

o BYER e KRS HEMR
#

CHARRERREEEWHRE

371,177,658.57

371,177,658.57

285,280,000.00
8,251,259.51

653,087.64

294,184,347.15

76,993,311.42

8,302.01

-64,280,150.96

66,064,371.30

1,784,220.34

349,627,735.85

349,627,735.85

331,680,000.00
5,013,084.50

336,693,084.50

12,934,651.35

339,059.83

-22,767,321.50

110,692,775.09

87,925,453.59

Legal representative: Li Zhangjian

EERRA : FEE

Principal in charge of accounting: Liu Zhen
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

P

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

A4

£

B AR

&5

N

HZE2024F6H30H 17
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Notes to the Financial Statements

l. BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANY

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Company”, and collectively as the “Group” when including subsidiaries) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Yunnan Province, People’s Republic of China on June
19th, 2007 by YNJG Green High-Performance Concrete Co., Ltd. As at June 30, 2024,
the registered capital of the Company was RMB446,272,000.00. The registered address
is beside Zhaotong Avenue, Zhaoyang District, Zhaotong City, Yunnan Province (Yunnan
Construction Investment Zhaotong Development Building).

The H Shares issued by the Company have been listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
from October 31, 2019 onwards.

The Group is in the construction industry and is principally engaged in the research
and development, production and sale of commercial concrete, concrete admixtures,
aggregates, and cement. Business scope: licensed projects: recycling of renewable
resources (except productive scrap metal);building intelligent system design; road cargo
transportation (excluding dangerous goods); construction professional operations; power
generation business, transmission business, power supply (distribution) business; power
supply business (For projects subject to approval by law, business activities can only
be carried out after approved by the relevant departments, with specific business
projects subject to the approval of the relevant departmental approval documents or
licenses)general projects: manufacture of cement products; manufacture of non-metallic
mineral products; manufacture of lime and gypsum; manufacture of concrete structural
components; manufacture of lightweight building materials; manufacture of building
blocks; manufacture of new building materials (excluding hazardous chemicals); processing
of renewable resources; cement products sales; non-metallic minerals and products sales;
building materials sales; concrete structural components sales; synthetic materials sales;
lightweight building materials sales; building blocks sales; renewable resources sales;
technical services, technology development, technology consulting, technology exchange,
technology transfer, technology promotion; machinery and equipment sales; machinery
and equipment leasing; non-residential real estate leasing; land use right leasing; stone
processing for construction; domestic trade agency; new material technology research
and development; special chemical products manufacturing (excluding hazardous
chemicals); special chemical products sales (excluding hazardous chemicals); chemical
products production (excluding licensed chemical products); chemical products sales
(excluding licensed chemical products); solid waste management; construction waste
regeneration technology research and development; software development; electric
vehicle charging infrastructure operation; battery sales; energy-saving management
services; contract energy management. In addition to projects subject to approval
by law, carry out business activities independently in accordance with the law with a
business license).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

l. BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANY (Cont‘d)

The parent company of the Company is Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding
Group Co., Ltd., and the ultimate controlling party is the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Yunnan Provincial People’s Government.

For details of the Company’s subsidiaries, please refer to “VI. Changes in the scope of
consolidation” and “VII. Interests in other entities” in this note.

Il. BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1. Basis for the preparation

The Group's financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, based
on transactions and events that have actually occurred, in accordance with the PRC ASBE
issued by the Ministry of Finance and related regulations, and the relevant disclosures
required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Hong Kong Listing Rules,
and based on the accounting policies and estimates described in “Note lIl. Significant
accounting policies and accounting estimates”.

According to the Consultation Conclusions on the Acceptance of Mainland Accounting
and Auditing Standards and the Engagement of Mainland Accounting Firms for Mainland
Incorporated Companies Listed in Hong Kong issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
in December 2010 and the corresponding amendments to the Hong Kong Listing Rules,
as well as the relevant documents of the Ministry of Finance and the China Securities
Regulatory Commission, with the consideration and approval of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on May 30, 2024, the Company has adopted the PRC
ASBE for the preparation of the financial statements starting from the year 2024 and has
taken into account the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Hong Kong Listing Rules in the preparation of the financial statements herein.
For details please refer to the announcement of the Company dated March 28, 2024
and the circular of the Company dated April 26, 2024.

Among the comparative financial data of the Group for the six months ended June
30, 2023 prepared in accordance with the PRC ASBE and the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS"), respectively, there is no difference in the amount of net
assets; the amount of net profit prepared in accordance with PRC ASBE increased by
RMB858,873.13 as compared to IFRS, which was due to differences in the accounting
of production safety expenses.

2. Going concern

The Group has evaluated the going concern ability within 12 months since the end
of the reporting period and has not found any event or condition causing substantial
doubt about the going-concern ability. The financial statements are presented on a
going concern basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

1. Statement of compliance with Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises

The financial statements prepared by the Company comply with the requirements of

the PRC ASBE and give a true and complete picture of the financial position, operating

results, and cash flows of the Company and the Group.

2.  Accounting period
The accounting period of the Group is from January 1 to December 31 of the calendar
year.

3. Operating cycle

The Group's operating cycle is 12 months, and the period from January 1 to December
31 of each year is regarded as one operating cycle, which is used as the criterion for
classifying the liquidity of assets and liabilities.

4. Functional currency
The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi (RMB).

5. Accounting for business combinations under common
control and not under common control

Assets and liabilities acquired by the Group as a consolidator in a business combination
under common control are measured at the book value of the consolidated party in the
consolidated statements of the ultimate controlling party at the date of consolidation.
The difference between the book value of the net assets acquired and the book value of
the consideration paid for the merger is adjusted to capital reserves; if capital reserves
are not sufficient to offset the difference, retained earnings are adjusted.

Identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities of the acquiree acquired in a
business combination not under common control are measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. The cost of the combination is the sum of the fair value of cash or
non-cash assets paid, liabilities issued or assumed, and equity securities issued by the
Group to obtain control over the acquiree at the date of purchase, and each directly
related expense incurred in the business combination (for business combinations achieved
in stages through multiple transactions, the cost of the combination is the sum of the
costs of each individual transaction). If the cost of the merger is greater than the share
of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree acquired in the merger,
the difference is recognized as goodwill; if the cost of the merger is less than the share
of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree acquired in the merger,
the fair value of each identifiable asset, liability, and contingent liability acquired in the
merger, and the fair value of non-cash assets of consolidation consideration or equity
securities issued are first reviewed, and if, after the review, the cost of the merger is
still less than the share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree
acquired in the merger, the difference is recognized as non-operating income in the
period of the merger.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

6. Preparation of consolidated financial statements
The Group includes all controlled subsidiaries and structured entities in the scope of the
consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, if the accounting policies or accounting
periods adopted by a subsidiary and the Company are not consistent, the necessary
adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiary in accordance with
the Company’s accounting policies or accounting periods.

All significant internal transactions, transaction balances, and unrealized profits within the
scope of consolidation are eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated statements.
The shares of owners’ equity of subsidiaries that are not attributable to the parent
company and the shares of net profit or loss, other comprehensive income, and total
comprehensive income for the period that are attributable to non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated financial statements under “non-controlling interests,
gains or losses on non-controlling interests, other comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests and total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling
interests”, respectively.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations under common control, their
operating results and cash flows are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the beginning of the period of consolidation. When preparing the comparative
consolidated financial statements, the relevant items in the prior year’'s financial
statements are adjusted as if the reporting entity formed by the merger had existed
since the point at which control by the ultimate controlling party began.

If the equity interest in an investee under common control is acquired step by step
through multiple transactions, which ultimately results in a business combination,
when preparing the consolidated statements, adjustment is made as if it had existed in
its current state from the time when the ultimate controlling party began to exercise
control; in the preparation of the comparative statements, the relevant assets and
liabilities of the consolidated party are consolidated into the comparative statements in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements to the extent that such assets or liabilities
are consolidated no earlier than at the point when the Group and the consolidated party
are both under the control of the ultimate controlling party. The relevant items under
owner's equity in the comparative statements are adjusted for the net assets increased
due to consolidation. In order to avoid double-counting of the value of the net assets of
the combined party, for the related gains and losses, other comprehensive income and
other changes in net assets recognized for the long-term equity investments held by the
Group before reaching the combination between the later of the date of acquisition of
the original shareholding and the date on which the Group and the combined party are
under the ultimate control of the same party and the date of combination, the opening
retained earnings and current profit or loss for the comparative statement period should
be written down, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

6. Preparation of consolidated financial statements (Cont’d)
For a subsidiary acquired through a business combination not under common control,
the results of operations and cash flows are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date the Group obtains control. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted on the basis
of the fair value of each identifiable asset, liability, and contingent liability determined
at the date of purchase.

If the equity interest in an investee not under common control is acquired step by step
through multiple transactions, which ultimately results in a business combination, in
preparing the consolidated statements, the equity interest in the acquiree held prior to
the date of purchase is remeasured at the fair value of the equity interest in the acquiree
at the date of purchase, and the difference between the fair value and its book value
is recognized as investment income for the period; other comprehensive income under
the equity method of accounting and changes in owners’ equity other than net profit or
loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution in respect of equity interests in
the acquiree held prior to the date of purchase shall be transferred to investment gains
and losses in the period in which the purchase date falls, except for other comprehensive
income arising from the remeasurement of changes in net liabilities or net assets of the
defined benefit plan by the investee.

Where the Group partially disposes of its long-term equity investment in a subsidiary
without loss of control, for the difference between the disposal price and the share
of the subsidiary’s net assets calculated on a continuing basis from the purchase
date or the combination date corresponding to the disposal of the long-term equity
investment, the capital premium or equity premium shall be adjusted in the consolidated
financial statements, or the retained earnings shall be adjusted if the capital reserves
are insufficient to be written down.

If the Group loses control over an investee due to, for example, the disposal of a portion
of an equity investment, the remaining equity interest shall be remeasured at its fair
value at the date of the loss of control in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. The difference between the sum of the consideration obtained from the
disposal of equity interest and the fair value of the remaining equity interest and the
share of the original subsidiary’s net assets continuously calculated from the date of
purchase or the date of consolidation based on the original shareholding ratio is included
in investment gains and losses in the period in which control is lost, and goodwill is also
written down. Other comprehensive income, etc. related to original equity investments in
the subsidiary is transferred to current investment gains and losses when control is lost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

6. Preparation of consolidated financial statements (Cont’d)
When the Group disposes of its equity investment in a subsidiary in stages through
multiple transactions until it loses control over the subsidiary if each transaction of
disposing of equity investment in the subsidiary until it loses control over the subsidiary
belongs to a package deal, each transaction shall be accounted for as a single transaction
of disposing of the subsidiary and losing control of the subsidiary; provided, however,
that the difference between the price of each disposal prior to the loss of control and
the share of the subsidiary’s net assets corresponding to the investment disposed of
is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as other comprehensive income
and transferred to investment gains and losses for the period of the loss of control
when control is lost.

7. Classification of joint venture arrangements and
accounting treatment of joint operations

The Group's joint arrangements include joint operations and joint ventures. For jointly-
operated projects, the Group recognizes assets held and liabilities assumed individually
and assets held and liabilities assumed on a share basis as a joint venture partner in a
jointly-operated project and recognizes the related revenues and expenses individually
or on a share basis in accordance with the relevant agreements. If a transaction with
a joint operation occurs for the purchase or sale of an asset that does not constitute
a business, only the portion of the gain or loss resulting from the transaction that is
attributable to the other participants in the joint operation is recognized.

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the Group's cash flow statement represents cash on hand and deposits that
are readily available for disbursement. Cash equivalent in the cash flow statement
refers to the investment with a term not more than 3 months and high liquidity and
is easily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

9. Foreign currency operations and translation of foreign
currency financial statements

(1) Foreign currency transactions

The Group's foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB amounts at the spot
exchange rate on the date of the transaction. At the balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into RMB using the spot exchange rate
at the balance sheet date. The resulting translation differences are recognized directly
in profit or loss for the current period, except for the exchange differences arising from
special borrowings in foreign currencies for the acquisition or production of assets eligible
for capitalization, which are treated in accordance with the principle of capitalization.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

9. Foreign currency operations and translation of foreign
currency financial statements (Cont’d)

(2) Translation of foreign currency financial statements

Assets and liabilities items in the foreign currency balance sheet are translated using
the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date; owners’ equity items, except for
“undistributed profits”, are translated at the spot exchange rate at the time of the
operation; and income and expense items in the income statement are translated
using the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction. The foreign currency
statement translation differences arising from the above translation are presented in
other comprehensive income. Cash flows in foreign currencies are translated using the
spot rate at the date the cash flows occur. The amount of the effect of exchange rate
changes on cash is presented separately in the cash flow statement.

10. Financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognized when the Group becomes a party
to a financial instrument contract.

(1) Financial assets

1) Classification, recognition basis, and measurement of financial assets

Based on the business model for managing financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of financial assets, the Group classifies financial assets as financial
assets at amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies financial assets as financial assets at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met: @ the business model for managing the financial assets
is to collect the contractual cash flows. @ the contractual terms of the financial asset
provide that the cash flows arising on a specific date are only payments of principal and
interest based on the outstanding principal amount. Such financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, with related transaction costs recognized in the initial recognition
amount; they are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Amortization under the
effective interest method, impairment, exchange gains or losses, and gains or losses
on derecognition of such financial assets that are not part of any hedging relationship
are recognized in current profit or loss. The Group’s financial assets that fall into this
category include accounts receivable, notes receivable, and other receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

10. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont’d)
(1) Financial assets (Cont‘d)
1) Classification, recognition basis, and measurement of financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group classifies financial assets as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met: @ the business model
for managing the financial assets is to both collect the contractual cash flows and to
sell the financial assets. @ the contractual terms of the financial asset provide that the
cash flows arising on a specific date are only payments of principal and interest based
on the outstanding principal amount. Such financial assets are initially measured at fair
value, and the related transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount.
All gains or losses arising from such financial assets that are not part of any hedging
relationship are recognized in other comprehensive income, except for credit impairment
losses or gains, foreign exchange gains or losses, and interest on such financial assets
calculated using the effective interest method; upon derecognition of the financial assets,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income should
be transferred from other comprehensive income to profit or loss for the current period.
The Group's financial assets that fall into this category include receivables financing.

The Group recognizes interest income based on the effective interest rate method.
Interest income is determined by multiplying the book balance of the financial assets
by the effective interest rate, except for the following cases: @ for purchased or
underlying financial assets that are credit impaired, interest income is determined from
initial recognition based on the amortized cost of the financial assets and the credit-
adjusted effective interest rate. @ for purchased or underlying financial assets that are
not credit-impaired but become credit-impaired in subsequent periods, interest income
is determined in subsequent periods based on the amortized cost of the financial assets
and the effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

10. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont’d)
(1) Financial assets (Cont’d)
1) Classification, recognition basis, and measurement of financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group designated the investments in non-trading equity instruments as financial
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. This designation,
once made, cannot be revoked. Investments in non-trading equity instruments designated
by the Group as at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially measured
at fair value, with related transaction costs recognized in the initial recognition amount;
except for dividends received (other than those attributable to the cost recovery portion of
the investment), which are recognized in profit or loss, all other related gains and losses
(including exchange gains and losses) are recognized in other comprehensive income and
cannot be subsequently transferred to current profit or loss. When they are derecognized,
the cumulative gains and losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are transferred from other comprehensive income to retained earnings.

Financial assets, other than those classified as at amortized cost and those classified
as at fair value through other comprehensive income as described above, are classified
by the Group as at fair value through profit or loss. Such financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, and the related transaction costs are recognized directly in current
profit or loss. Gains or losses on such financial assets are recognized in profit or loss.

If the contingent consideration recognized by the Group in a business combination not
under common control constitutes a financial asset, the financial asset is classified as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

When the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies
all affected related financial assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

10. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont’d)

(1) Financial assets (Cont’d)

2) Recognition basis and measurement for transfer of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when one of the following conditions is met:
@ the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset are terminated;
@ the financial asset is transferred and the Group transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; @ the financial asset is transferred
and the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset and does not retain control over the financial asset.

If a transfer of a financial asset as a whole satisfies the derecognition condition, the
difference between the book value of the transferred financial asset at the date of
derecognition and the sum of the consideration received for the transfer and the
cumulative amount of changes in fair value previously recognized directly in other
comprehensive income corresponding to the derecognized portion is recognized in
current profit or loss (The financial asset involved in the transfer meets both the following
conditions: the Group's business model for managing the financial assets is to collect
the contractual cash flows; the contractual terms of the financial assets provide that
the cash flows arising on a specific date are solely payments of interest based on the
principal amount.)

If a partial transfer of a financial asset satisfies the conditions for derecognition,
the book value of the financial asset transferred as a whole is apportioned between
the derecognized portion and the unrecognized portion according to their respective
relative fair values. The difference between the apportioned overall book value of
the aforementioned financial asset and the sum of the consideration received for the
transfer and the amount corresponding to the derecognized portion of the accumulated
changes in fair value previously recognized in other comprehensive income that should
be apportioned to the derecognized portion is recognized in current profit or loss (The
financial asset involved in the transfer meets both the following conditions: the Group's
business model for managing the financial assets is to collect the contractual cash flows;
the contractual terms of the financial assets provide that the cash flows arising on a
specific date are solely payments of interest based on the principal amount.)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

10. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont’d)

(2) Financial liabilities

1) Classification, recognition basis, and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group classifies financial liabilities as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost,
which are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method, except for the following:

@) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (including derivatives that
are financial liabilities), including financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.
Such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value and dividend and interest expenses
related to the financial liabilities recognized in profit or loss.

@ Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets that do not qualify
for derecognition or the continued involvement in the transferred financial
assets. Such financial liabilities are measured by the Group in accordance with
the provisions of the standards related to the transfer of financial assets.

® Financial guarantee contracts that do not fall under @ or @ above, and loan
commitments to lend at below-market interest rates that do not fall under @
above. The Group, as the issuer of such financial liabilities, measures them after
initial recognition at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with the provisions of the relevant standard on impairment of
financial instruments and the amount initially recognized less accumulated
amortization determined in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
income standard.

If the contingent consideration recognized by the Group as a purchaser in a business
combination not under common control forms a financial liability, the financial liability
is accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

10. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont’d)

(2) Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

2) Conditions for derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability or a portion of the financial liability for which the obligation has been
discharged is derecognized when all or part of the present obligation of the financial
liability has been discharged. If the Group enters into an agreement with a creditor
to replace an existing financial liability by assuming a new financial liability and the
contractual terms of the new financial liability are materially different from those of
the existing financial liability, the existing financial liability is derecognized and the new
financial liability is recognized at the same time. If the Group materially modifies all or
part of the contractual terms of an existing financial liability, the Group derecognizes
the existing financial liability or a portion thereof and recognizes the modified financial
liability as a new financial liability. The difference between the book value of the
derecognized portion and the consideration paid is recognized in current profit or loss.

3) Methodology for determining the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities

The Group measures the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at prices in
the principal markets or, if no principal market exists, at prices in the most advantageous
market and using valuation techniques that are applicable at the time and supported by
sufficient available data and other information. There are three levels of inputs used in
fair value measurements: level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that are available at the measurement date; level 2 inputs
are inputs other than level 1 inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the
related assets or liabilities; and level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the underlying
assets or liabilities. The Group gives the highest priority to the level 1 inputs and the
lowest priority to the level 3 inputs. The level to which the fair value measurement
results belong is determined by the lowest level to which the inputs that are significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole belong.

The Group's investments in equity instruments are measured at fair value. However, in
limited circumstances where there is insufficient recent information available to determine
the fair value or where the range of possible estimates of fair value is wide and the cost
represents the best estimate of fair value within that range, the cost may represent the
appropriate estimate of fair value within that range of distribution.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

10. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont’d)

(4) Offset of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately in the balance
sheet and are not offset against each other. However, when the following conditions
are also met, the net amount after mutual offset is presented in the balance sheet:
@ the Group has a legal right to offset the recognized amount and such legal right is
currently enforceable; and @ the Group plans to settle on a net basis or to realize the
financial assets and settle the financial liabilities at the same time.

(5) Distinction between financial liabilities and equity instruments and
related treatment

The Group distinguishes financial liabilities from equity instruments in accordance with
the following principles: 1) If the Group cannot unconditionally avoid the performance
of a contractual obligation by delivering cash or other financial assets, that contractual
obligation meets the definition of a financial liability. Some financial instruments do
not explicitly contain terms and conditions for the obligation to deliver cash or other
financial assets, but may indirectly create contractual obligations through other terms
and conditions. 2) If a financial instrument is required to be settled with or may be
settled with the Group’s own equity instruments, it is necessary to consider whether
the Group’s own equity instruments used to settle the instrument are intended as a
substitute for cash or other financial assets or are intended to give the holder of the
instrument a residual interest in the assets of the issuer after deducting all liabilities. In
the former case, the instrument is a financial liability of the issuer; in the latter case,
the instrument is an equity instrument of the issuer. In certain circumstances, if a
financial instrument contract stipulates that the Group must or may settle the financial
instrument with its own equity instrument, where the amount of the contractual right
or contractual obligation is equal to the quantity of its own equity instrument available
or to be delivered multiplied by its fair value at the time of settlement, whether the
amount of the contractual right or obligation is fixed or varies wholly or partially based
on changes in variables (e.g. interest rates, the price of a commodity or the price of a
financial instrument) other than the market price of the Group’s own equity instrument,
the contract is classified as a financial liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

10. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont’d)
(5) Distinction between financial liabilities and equity instruments and
related treatment (Cont’d)

In classifying financial instruments (or their components) in the consolidated statements,
the Group considers all terms and conditions agreed between the members of the
Group and the holders of the financial instruments. An instrument should be classified
as a financial liability if the Group as a whole has an obligation to deliver cash, other
financial assets or settle in a manner that otherwise causes the instrument to become
a financial liability as a result of the instrument.

If financial instruments or their components are financial liabilities, the related interest,
dividends, gains or losses, and gains or losses arising from redemption or refinancing
are recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

If financial instruments or their components are equity instruments, the Group treats
them as a change in equity and does not recognize changes in the fair value of the equity
instruments upon their issuance (including refinancing), repurchase, sale or cancellation.

(6) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group accounts for impairment and recognizes loss provisions on the basis of
expected credit losses for: 1) financial assets measured at amortized cost; 2) financial
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (the financial assets
involved meet all of the following conditions: the Group’s business model for managing
the financial assets is to collect the contractual cash flows; the contractual terms of the
financial assets provide that the cash flows arising on a specific date are solely payments
of interest based on the principal amount); 3) lease receivables; 4) contract assets; 5)
financial guarantee contracts.

Expected credit loss is the weighted average of credit losses on financial instruments
weighted by the risk of default. Credit losses represent the difference between all
contractual cash flows receivable by the Group under the contract and all cash flows
expected to be collected, discounted at the original effective interest rate, which is the
present value of the entire cash shortfall.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

10. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont’d)

(6) Impairment of financial instruments (Cont’d)

For notes receivable, accounts receivable and financing receivables arising from ordinary
operating activities, such as sales of goods and rendering of services, the Group measures
the loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit losses rate, regardless of whether
or not there is a significant financing component.

For items other than those mentioned above, the Group measures the provision for
losses in accordance with the following circumstances: @ for financial instruments with
no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group measures the
provision for losses at the amount of expected credit losses over the next 12 months; @
for financial instruments with a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group measures the provision for losses at an amount equal to the expected credit
losses over the entire life of the instrument; @ for purchased or underlying financial
assets that are credit impaired, the Group measures the provision for losses at an amount
equal to the expected credit loss over the entire life of the instrument.

For financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (the
financial assets involved meet all of the following conditions: the Group's business model
for managing the financial assets is to collect the contractual cash flows; the contractual
terms of the financial assets provide that the cash flows arising on a specific date are
solely payments of interest based on the principal amount), the Group recognizes their
provision for credit losses in other comprehensive income and recognizes the impairment
loss or gain in profit or loss without reducing the book value of the financial asset as
stated in the balance sheet. The amount of increase or reversal of the provision for
credit losses on financial instruments other than those listed above is recognized as
impairment loss or gain in profit or loss.

For financial instruments with Group credit risk at the balance sheet date, the Company
assumes that their credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
and measures the provision for losses based on expected credit losses over the next
12 months.

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

= EESHEREFMGE
(#&)

10. TRIEENEHMBEE)

(6) LRI ENRMEGM
AEBMBEREHERS  SHEBEZAREL
SEBT A M FEUR 4~ B L B N0 M 2 O
B BRREGESEABRENRS  AEEBR
RRE(EFE TS BB AR BIER LR -

B batE B SN - BEMIAE - AKERR T
B ETEEAEE : NERRAR B TIAFERRER
BEZNNSRHTE  AEERBRARI12(EA
MIRBERBANSEAERAER  2ERA
REEERREREZRZMNEMTA - &K
ERRAENZeMIAREAFTEARNRASAR
REANSEIESRRER  BEIRESE
AEARENESRTR  AEERBEZNE
EfFEEANTERE IR RN B BRI -

UNAABENEEEZHF AR MES KR
SRMEESRNESREERKTA THEME
SEEEZEREENEBRAZAKEAER
RERnERER: ZEREENARIETHRE
EREAHEANRER  ER/YASSER
AEPNF SN - AEEEE LS Wash
REERBRERE - URRERKEFIE
AEHEG  TRIZEHEEEEEARGBR
FIREEREEE - BRI ZINER T ANE
REBAEFENEMNIEOSE  (ERRERXE
SAEETAERIEE o

HREEERABRAAEREERARNESR
TH AEERKEERRERA NGERRYL
AREREE I - RIBARK12E A AR FERERE
REtERKLER -

ETHERGESMUREERLIBROBRAR 71
20247 Hf 5 &



Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

10. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont’d)

(6) Impairment of financial instruments (Cont’d)

The Group calculates interest income on financial instruments that are in the first and
second stages, as well as those with lower credit risk, based on their book balances not
net of impairment allowances and effective interest rates. For financial instruments in
third stage, interest income is calculated on the basis of their book balance less amortized
cost after provision for impairment and the effective interest rate.

For accounts receivable for which there is objective evidence of impairment and for
other accounts receivable for which an individual evaluation is applicable, a separate
impairment test is performed, the expected credit loss is recognized, and an individual
provision for impairment is made. When information about expected credit losses cannot
be evaluated at a reasonable cost for accounts receivable or individual financial assets
for which no objective evidence of impairment exists, the Group classifies the receivables
into portfolios based on credit risk characteristics and calculates the expected credit
losses on the basis of the portfolios, which are determined as follows:

1) Accounts receivable
Portfolio 1 — Receivables from YCIH Group and its subsidiaries

Portfolio 2 — Receivables from third parties and other related parties

2) Other receivables
Portfolio 1 — Deposits, guarantees and employee reserves receivable (“Deposits and
guarantees portfolio”)

Portfolio 2 — Receivables from YCIH Group and its subsidiaries
Portfolio 3 — Other accounts receivables

For accounts receivable classified into portfolios, the Group calculates expected credit
losses by referring to historical credit loss experience and preparing a statement of the
number of days overdue for accounts receivable against the expected credit loss rate for
the entire duration of the accounts receivable, taking into account the current situation
as well as forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

10. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont’d)

(6) Impairment of financial instruments (Cont’d)

For notes receivable, receivables financing and other receivables classified into portfolios,
the Group calculates expected credit losses by reference to historical credit loss experience,
taking into account current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions
through default risk exposures and expected credit loss rates within the next 12 months
or over the entire duration.

The Group recognizes the provision for losses provided or reversed in profit or loss for
the current period. For debt instruments held at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group then adjusts other comprehensive income while recognizing
impairment losses or gains in profit or loss for the current period.

11. Inventories
The Group's inventories mainly include raw materials, turnover materials and finished
goods.

Inventories are maintained on a perpetual inventory basis and are valued at actual
cost at the time of acquisition; the weighted-average method is used to determine the
actual cost of inventories when they are claimed or issued. Low-value consumables and
packaging are amortized using the one-time reversal method.

The net realizable value of inventories of merchandise used directly for sale, such as goods
in stock, work-in-process, and materials held for sale, is determined as the estimated
selling price of such inventories less estimated selling expenses and related taxes; the
net realizable value of inventories of materials held for production is determined as the
estimated selling price of the finished goods produced less the estimated costs to be
incurred until completion, estimated selling expenses and related taxes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

12. Contract costs

(1) Method of determining the amount of assets related to contract costs
The Group's assets related to contract costs include contract performance costs and
contract acquisition costs.

Contract performance costs, which are costs incurred by the Group to perform a contract
that are not regulated by other ASBEs and that also meet the following conditions, are
recognized as contract performance costs as an asset: the costs are directly related to
a current contract or expected contract to be obtained, including direct labor, direct
materials, manufacturing costs (or similar costs), costs explicitly borne by the customer
and other costs incurred solely as a result of that contract; the costs increase the
Group's future resources available to meet its performance obligations; and the costs
are expected to be recovered.

Contract acquisition costs, i.e., incremental costs incurred by the Group to acquire a
contract that is expected to be recovered, are recognized as an asset; if the amortization
period of the asset does not exceed one year, it is charged to current profit or loss as
incurred. Incremental costs are costs that would not have been incurred had the Group
not obtained the contract (e.g., sales commissions). Expenses incurred by the Group
to obtain a contract other than incremental costs expected to be recovered (such as
travel expenses that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was
obtained) are charged to current profit or loss as incurred, except for those explicitly
borne by the customer.

(2) Amortization of assets related to contract costs

The Group’s assets related to contract costs are amortized to current profit or loss
using the same basis as that used to recognize revenue from the goods to which the
assets relate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

12. Contract costs (Cont’d)

3) Impairment of assets related to contract costs

In determining impairment losses on assets related to contract costs, the Group first
determines impairment losses on other assets related to contracts recognized in
accordance with other relevant ASBEs; then, if the book value of the asset is higher
than the sum of the remaining consideration that the Group expects to obtain for the
transfer of the commodity related to the asset and the estimated costs to be incurred
for the transfer of the related commodity, a provision for impairment should be made
for the difference, and the difference should be recognized as impairment loss on assets.

If there is a subsequent change in the factors for impairment in previous periods, such
that the aforementioned difference is higher than the book value of the asset, the
original provision for impairment is reversed and recognized in current profit or loss,
but the book value of the reversed asset should not exceed the book value of the asset
at the date of reversal assuming no provision for impairment was made.

13. Long-term equity investments
The Group’s long-term equity investments mainly consist of investments in subsidiaries,
investments in associates and investments in joint ventures.

The Group bases its judgment of joint control on the fact that all participants or a
combination of participants collectively control the arrangement and that the policies
of the activities related to the arrangement must be unanimously agreed by those
participants who collectively control the arrangement.

The Group is generally considered to have significant influence over an investee when it
owns more than 20% but less than 50% of the voting rights in the investee, either directly
or indirectly through a subsidiary. If the Group holds less than 20% of the voting rights
in the investee, it needs to judge whether it has significant influence over the investee by
also taking into account the facts and circumstances such as having representatives on
the board of directors or similar authority of the investee, or participating in the process
of formulating financial and operating policies of the investee, or having significant
transactions with the investee, or sending management personnel to the investee, or
providing key technical information to the investee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
13. Long-term equity investments (Cont’d)

An investee unit over which control is formed is a subsidiary of the Group. For long-term
equity investments acquired through a business combination under common control, at
the date of combination, the share of the book value of the net assets of the combined
party in the consolidated statements of the ultimate controlling party is used as the
initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment. If the book value of the net
assets of the combined party at the date of combination is negative, the cost of long-
term equity investments is determined at zero.

If an equity interest in an investee under common control is acquired in stages through
multiple transactions, resulting in a business combination, which is a package transaction,
the Group accounts for each transaction as one transaction to obtain control. If the
transactions are not a package deal, at the date of combination, the post-combination
share of the book value of the net assets of the combined party in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party is used as the initial investment cost
of the long-term equity investment. For the difference between the initial investment
cost and the sum of the book value of long-term equity investments before reaching
combination and the book value of the consideration paid for further acquisition of
shares at the date of combination, the capital reserves shall be adjusted, and if capital
reserves are insufficient to be written down, the retained earnings shall be written down.

For long-term equity investments acquired through a business combination not under
common control, the cost of the combination is used as the initial investment cost.

If the acquisition of an equity interest in an investee not under common control through
multiple transactions in steps that ultimately result in a business combination is a
package transaction, the Group accounts for each transaction as one transaction to
obtain control. If the transactions are not a package deal, the sum of the book value of
the equity investment originally held and the cost of the new investment is used as the
initial investment cost to be accounted for under the cost method. If the equity interest
held prior to the date of purchase is accounted for under the equity method, the related
other comprehensive income accounted for under the original equity method is not
adjusted for the time being, and the same basis of accounting as that used for the direct
disposal of the related assets or liabilities by the investee is used for the disposal of the
investment. For equity interests held prior to the date of purchase that are non-trading
equity instruments designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income,
cumulative changes in fair value that were previously recognized in other comprehensive
income are not transferred to current profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
13. Long-term equity investments (Cont’d)

In contrast to the long-term equity investments acquired through business combination
mentioned above, for long-term equity investments acquired by paying cash, the actual
purchase price paid is used as the investment cost; for long-term equity investments
acquired by issuing equity securities, the fair value of equity securities issued is used as
the investment cost; for long-term equity investments invested by investors, the value
agreed in the investment contract or agreement is used as the investment cost.

The Group accounts for its investments in subsidiaries using the cost method and its
investments in joint ventures and associates using the equity method.

For long-term equity investments accounted for by the cost method for subsequent
measurement, the book value of the cost of long-term equity investments is increased
by the fair value of the cost amount paid for the additional investment and the related
transaction costs incurred when the additional investment is made. Cash dividends or
profits declared by the investee are recognized as investment income at the amount
entitled.

For long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method for subsequent
measurement, the book value of long-term equity investments is increased or decreased
accordingly with changes in the owners’ equity of the investee. In particular, in
recognizing the share of net profit or loss in the investee, the net profit of the investee
is recognized based on the fair value of each identifiable asset, etc. of the investee at
the time the investment is acquired, in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies
and accounting periods, and after offsetting the portion of the gain or loss from internal
transactions with associates and joint ventures that is attributable to the investee in
proportion to the shareholding.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
13. Long-term equity investments (Cont’d)

The difference between the book value and the actual acquisition price of long-term
equity investments disposed of is recognized as investment income in the current period.
For long-term equity investments accounted for using the equity method, the related
other comprehensive income previously accounted for by the equity method should be
accounted for on the same basis as the that of direct disposal of the related assets or
liabilities by the investee upon the termination of the equity method of accounting,
and the owner’s equity recognized as a result of changes in the owner’s equity of the
investee other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution
should be transferred in full to current investment income upon the termination of the
equity method of accounting.

If a portion of an equity investment is disposed of and so on, and joint control or
significant influence over the investee is lost, the difference between the fair value
and the book value of the remaining equity interest at the date of loss of joint control
or significant influence is recognized in current profit or loss if the remaining equity
interest after disposal is accounted for by applying ASBE No. 22 — Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Instruments (Caikuai [2017] No. 7). Other comprehensive
income recognized on the original equity investment due to the adoption of the equity
method of accounting is accounted for on the same basis as that of the direct disposal
of the related assets or liabilities by the investee when the equity method of accounting
is discontinued and carried forward proportionately. Owners’ equity recognized as a
result of changes in the investee’s owners’ equity other than net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income, and profit distribution should be transferred proportionately to
current investment income.

If control over the investee is lost as a result of the disposal of part of the long-term
equity investment, and the remaining equity interest after disposal is capable of exercising
joint control or significant influence over the investee, it is accounted for under the
equity method instead, and the difference between the book value of the equity interest
disposed of and the consideration for disposal is recognized as investment income,
and the remaining equity interest is adjusted as if it had been accounted for under
the equity method from the time of acquisition; if the remaining equity interest after
disposal is unable to exercise joint control or exert significant influence over the investee,
the accounting treatment shall be in accordance with ASBE No. 22 — Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Instruments (Caikuai [2017] No. 7), and the difference between
the book value of the equity interest disposed of and the consideration for disposal is
recognized as investment income, and the difference between the fair value and the
book value of the remaining equity interest at the date of loss of control is recognized
in current profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
13. Long-term equity investments (Cont’d)

If transactions of the step-by-step disposal of equity to loss of controlling interest are
not a package deal, the Group accounts for each transaction separately. If they are a
package deal, each transaction is accounted for as a transaction in which a subsidiary
was disposed of and control was lost, but the difference between the disposal price
and the book value of the long-term equity investment corresponding to the equity
interest disposed of in each transaction before the loss of control is recognized as
other comprehensive income and is transferred to profit or loss in the period when
control is lost.

14. Investment properties

Investment properties, including land use rights that have already been leased out,
buildings that are held for the purpose of leasing, and buildings that are being constructed
or developed for future use for leasing. Measured using the cost model.

The Group's investment properties are depreciated using the average life method. The
depreciable life, estimated residual value rate, and annual depreciation rate of investment
properties are shown below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

15. Fixed assets

The Group's fixed assets are tangible assets with the following characteristics at the
same time, i.e., held for the purpose of production of goods, provision of services,
leasing, or business management, with a useful life of more than one year and with
a large unit value.

Fixed assets are recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with them will flow to the Group and their cost can be measured reliably. The Group's
fixed assets include houses and buildings, machinery and equipment, transportation
equipment, electronic equipment, and other equipment.

The Group depreciates all fixed assets, except for those that are fully depreciated and
continue to be used and land that is separately recorded in the accounts. The provision
for depreciation is made using the straight-line method. The categorized depreciable
life, estimated residual value rate and annual depreciation rate of the Group's fixed
assets are as follows:
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Estimated Annual
Depreciable life residual value depreciation
No. Category (years) rate (%) rate (%)
FFa% =Yl WEER(F) FAFTERER(%) FINEE(%)
1 Houses and buildings 2-30 3 3.23-48.50
FEEEEY
2 Machinery equipment 3-10 3 9.70-32.33
HERR M
3 Transportation equipment 5-8 3 12.13-19.40
BHIA
4 Electronic equipment B 3 32,33
BFRIE
5 Other equipment 2-5 3 19.40-48.50
H R
The Group reviews the estimated useful life, estimated net residual values, and ZAE£BREFEERT @ HEEEENEE

depreciation methods of fixed assets at the end of each year, and treats any changes
as changes in accounting estimates.

16. Construction in progress

Construction in progress is carried forward to fixed assets at the estimated value from
the date it reaches the intended usable state, based on the project budget, cost, or
actual cost of construction, etc. Depreciation starts from the following month, and the
difference in the original value of fixed assets is adjusted after the completion of the
final accounting procedures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

17. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to fixed assets, investment properties,
inventories, and others that require more than one year of acquisition and construction
or production activities to reach their intended usable or saleable condition are capitalized
when the expenditure on the assets has been incurred, the borrowing costs have been
incurred and the acquisition and construction or production activities necessary to bring
the assets to their intended usable or saleable condition have commenced; capitalization
ceases when the assets acquired, constructed or produced that qualify for capitalization
reach their intended usable or saleable condition, and borrowing costs incurred thereafter
are recognized in current profit or loss. If assets eligible for capitalization are abnormally
suspended in acquisition or construction or production for more than three months
continuously, the capitalization of borrowing costs shall be suspended until the restart
of acquisition or construction, and production activities of the assets.

Interest expenses actually incurred in the current period on special borrowings are
capitalized, net of interest income earned on unused borrowed funds deposited in
banks or investment income earned on temporary investments; general borrowings
are capitalized based on the weighted-average amount of accumulated asset expenses
in excess of the portion of special borrowings multiplied by the capitalization rate of
the general borrowings occupied. The capitalization rate is determined based on the
weighted-average interest rate of general borrowings.

18. Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets represent the right of the Group as a lessee to use the leased assets
during the lease term.

(1) Initial measurement

At the inception date of the lease term, the Group initially measures the right-of-use
asset at cost. The cost includes the following four items: @ the initial measurement
amount of the lease liability; @ the amount of lease payments made on or before the
commencement date of the lease term, less the amount related to the lease incentives
already enjoyed if lease incentives exist; @ the initial direct costs incurred, i.e., the
incremental costs incurred to reach the lease; and @ the costs expected to be incurred
to disassemble and remove the leased asset, restore the site where the leased asset
is located, or restore the leased asset to the condition agreed under the terms of the
lease, except for those incurred for the production of inventories.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
18. Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

(2) Subsequent measurement

After the commencement date of the lease term, the Group adopts the cost model for
the subsequent measurement of right-of-use assets, i.e. right-of-use assets are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Where the
Group remeasures the lease liabilities in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
leasing standards, the book value of the right-of-use assets is adjusted accordingly.

3) Depreciation of right-of-use assets

The Group depreciates right-of-use assets from the commencement date of the lease
term. Right-of-use assets are normally depreciated from the month in which the lease
term commences. The amount of provision for depreciation is charged to the cost of
the related assets or to the current profit or loss, depending on the use of the right-
of-use assets.

In determining the depreciation method for right-of-use assets, the Group makes
decisions based on the manner in which the economic benefits associated with the
right-of-use assets are expected to be consumed and depreciates the right-of-use assets
on a straight-line basis.

In determining the depreciable lives of right-of-use assets, the Group follows the
following principles: if it is reasonably certain that ownership of the leased assets will
be obtained at the end of the lease term, depreciation is charged over the remaining
useful life of the leased assets; if it is not reasonably certain that ownership of the leased
assets will be obtained at the end of the lease term, depreciation is charged over the
shorter of the lease term and the remaining useful life of the leased assets.

(4) Impairment of right-of-use assets
If a right-of-use asset is impaired, the Group depreciates it subsequently based on its
book value after deducting the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

19. Intangible assets

(1) Measurement, useful life, and impairment test

The Group's intangible assets, including land use rights and software, are measured
at actual cost at the time of acquisition. For intangible assets acquired, the actual
cost is determined by the actual price paid and related other expenses; for intangible
assets invested by investors, the actual cost is determined by the value agreed in the
investment contract or agreement, but if the agreed value in the contract or agreement
is not fair, the actual cost is determined by the fair value; intangible assets acquired in
a merger not under common control that is owned by the acquiree but not recognized
in its financial statements are recognized as intangible assets at fair value at the time
of initial recognition of the acquiree’s assets.

Land use rights are amortized evenly over the years from the commencement date of
the grant; software is amortized evenly over the shortest of the estimated useful life,
the contractual beneficiary life, and the effective life prescribed by law. The amortization
amount is charged to the cost of the related assets and current profit or loss according
to the beneficiaries. The estimated useful life and amortization method of intangible
assets with finite useful life are reviewed at the end of each year, and any changes are
treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are recognized when, for various reasons, it
is not possible to foresee the period over which they will generate economic benefits
for the Group. In each accounting period, the Group reviews the estimated useful life
of intangible assets with indefinite useful life.

B H5 R M et (48D

For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

=  BEESHEREEEE
(#&)
19. EFEEE
(1) HESE - ERAEG - HEUR
AEEBVEETE HLERE - HZ - 12
BSEBHNEERANE - HF - BANELE
EOREREMOERMERN LN HES

BHERA  REFERANELEE  BIKREAR
ApHEOENEEETERKAL  BaR%
BRERAOEBEIARYN  BRAABERTEER

A HER—ZHTEHTRSEBEE S H#
ENEEEMBHRRPAERNELEE @ &

HEBE N EEETVIIRERE - A REE
ERBELEE
T AR ERRER  REEEFRT

BEE R REAERER ARRENR
BFERIEERENEUFR =T REED
HIFI M - BT BRREX M AR
BEERAMERELS - HERSHERNEN
EEMBERTG MEHETENEFFERL
THETERZ  WMBELNRE - AERSFHARTE
BEE -

HRERERELEREAANEETRLER
mHR MEIREASHIEENETE
E - EFEe8E  AEEHERSFH TR
EHETEEMNEHEATETER

ETHERGESMUREERLIBROBRAR 83
20247 Hf 5 &



Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
19. Intangible assets (Cont’d)

(2) internal research and development expenditure

The Group's research and development expenditures are categorized into research-
phase expenditures and development-phase expenditures based on the nature of
the expenditures and whether the ultimate formation of intangible assets from the
research and development activities is subject to a high degree of uncertainty. Research-
phase expenditures are recognized in profit or loss when incurred; development-phase
expenditures are recognized as intangible assets when the following conditions are met:

@) It is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it can be used
or sold;

@ There is an intent to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

® A market exists for the product produced using the intangible asset or a market

exists for the intangible asset itself;

@ There is sufficient technical, financial, and other resource support to complete
the development of the intangible asset and there is the ability to use or sell
the intangible asset;

® The development-phase expenditures attributable to the intangible asset can be
measured reliably.

Development-phase expenditures that do not meet the above conditions are recognized
in profit or loss when incurred. Development expenditure that has been recognized in
profit or loss in previous periods is not recognized as an asset in subsequent periods.
Development-phase expenditures that have been capitalized are presented as development
expenses on the balance sheet and are transferred to intangible assets from the date
the project becomes ready for its intended use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

20. Impairment of long-term assets

The Group examines long-term equity investments, investment properties measured using
the cost model, fixed assets, construction in progress, right-of-use assets, intangible assets
with finite useful life, and operating leases at each balance sheet date, and performs
impairment tests when indicators of impairment exist. Goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at the end of each year, regardless
of whether there is an indication of impairment.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
the present value of the asset’s estimated future cash flows. The fair value of an asset
is determined based on the price of a sales agreement in an arm’s length transaction;
if no sales agreement exists but an active market for the asset exists, the fair value is
determined based on the buyer’s bid for the asset; if no sales agreement and no active
market for the asset exists, the fair value of the asset is estimated based on the best
available information. Disposal costs include legal fees, related taxes, and removal costs
related to the disposal of assets, and direct costs incurred to bring the assets to a saleable
condition. The present value of the expected future cash flows of an asset is determined
by discounting the asset at an appropriate discount rate based on the expected future
cash flows arising from its continuing use and eventual disposal. The provision for asset
impairment is calculated and recognized on an individual asset basis. If it is difficult to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of the
asset group is determined using the asset group to which the asset belongs. An asset
group is the smallest combination of assets that can generate cash inflows independently.

Goodwill that is separately presented in the financial statements is tested for impairment
by apportioning the book value of the goodwill to the asset group or combination of asset
groups that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination. If the
test results indicate that the recoverable amount of an asset group or a combination of
asset groups that contain apportioned goodwill is less than its book value, a corresponding
impairment loss is recognized. The amount of the impairment loss is first set off against
the book value of goodwill apportioned to the asset group or the combination of asset
groups, and then against the book value of each asset other than goodwill in the asset
group or the combination of asset groups on a pro-rata basis based on the proportion
of the book value of each asset other than goodwill.

After the impairment test, if the book value of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the difference is recognized as an impairment loss. Once an impairment loss is recognized
for the above assets, it will not be reversed in subsequent accounting periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

Ill. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
21. Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities reflect the Group’s obligation to transfer goods to customers for
consideration received or receivable from customers. If the customer has paid the contract
consideration or the Group has acquired the unconditional right to receive the contract
consideration before transferring the goods to the customer by the Group, a contract
liability is recognized for the amount received or receivable at the earlier point of the
actual payment or the amount due and payable by the customer.

22. Employee benefits
Employee benefits of the Group include short-term employee benefits, post-employment
benefits, termination benefits, and other long-term benefits.

Short-term remuneration mainly includes employee salaries, bonuses, allowances and
subsidies, employee welfare costs, medical insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance, housing provident fund, trade union funds, employee education
expenses, short-term paid leaves, etc. The actual short-term remuneration incurred is
recognized as a liability in the accounting period in which the employees render services
and is charged to current profit or loss or to the cost of related assets, depending on
the object of benefit.

Post-employment benefits mainly include basic endowment insurance premiums
and unemployment insurance and are classified as defined contribution plans and
defined benefit plans according to the risks and obligations assumed by the Company.
Contributions made to a separate entity under a defined contribution plan in exchange
for services rendered by employees during the accounting period at the balance sheet
date are recognized as a liability and charged to current profit or loss or to the cost of
related assets, depending on the object of benefit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

23. Lease liabilities

(1) Initial measurement

The Group initially measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
outstanding at the commencement date of the lease term.

1) lease payments

Lease payments, which are payments made by the Group to the lessor related to the
right to use the leased asset during the lease term, include: @ fixed payments and
material fixed payments, net of amounts related to lease incentives if lease incentives
exist; @ variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, which is determined
at initial measurement based on the index or rate at the beginning date of the lease
term; @ the exercise price of the purchase option if the Group reasonably determines
that the purchase option will be exercised; @ the amount to be paid to exercise the
option to terminate the lease if the lease term reflects that the Group will exercise the
option to terminate the lease; and ® the amount expected to be paid based on the
residual value of the guarantee provided by the Group.

2) Discount rate
In calculating the present value of the lease payments, the Group uses the lessee’s
average borrowing rate as the discount rate.

(2) Subsequent measurement

After the commencement date of the lease term, the Group subsequently measures
the lease liability according to the following principles: @ when interest on the lease
liability is recognized, the book value of the lease liability is increased; @ when lease
payments are made, the book value of the lease liability is reduced; and @ when there
is a change in the lease payments due to revaluation or lease modification, the book
value of the lease liability is remeasured.

The Group calculates interest expense on lease liabilities at a fixed periodic rate for each
period of the lease term and recognizes it in profit or loss for the current period, except
when it should be capitalized. The periodic interest rate is the discount rate used by
the Group for the initial measurement of the lease liability or the revised discount rate
used by the Group when the lease liability is required to be remeasured at the revised
discount rate due to a change in the lease payments or due to a change in the lease.
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

Ill. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
23. Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

3) Remeasurement

After the commencement date of the lease term, the Group remeasures the lease liability
at the present value of the changed lease payments and adjusts the book value of the
right-of-use asset accordingly when the following occurs. If the book value of the right-
of-use asset has been reduced to zero but the lease liability is subject to further reduction,
the Group recognizes the remaining amount in profit or loss for the current period.
@ changes in the amount of the substantive fixed payment (in this case, discounted
using the original discount rate); @ changes in the amount expected to be payable on
the residual value of the guarantee (in this case, discounted using the original discount
rate); @ changes in the index or rate used to determine the lease payment (in this case,
discounted using the revised discount rate); @ changes in the appraisal result of the
purchase option (in this case, discounted using the revised discount rate); ® changes in
the appraisal result or actual exercise of the lease renewal option or lease termination
option (in this case, discounted using the revised discount rate).

24. Provisions

The Group recognizes a liability for operations related to external guarantees, discounting
of commercial acceptance bills, pending litigation or arbitration, product quality
guarantees, and other contingencies if the following conditions are met: the obligation
is a present obligation assumed by the Group; it is probable that the performance of
the obligation will result in an outflow of economic benefits from the enterprise; and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Provisions are measured initially on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the related present obligation, taking into account factors such as the
risks and uncertainties associated with the contingency and the time value of money.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the best estimate is determined
by discounting the relevant future cash outflows; the increase in the book value of the
provisions due to the unwinding of discounts over time is recognized as interest expense.

If all or part of the expenditure required to settle the provision is expected to be
reimbursed by a third party, the amount of reimbursement is recognized separately
as an asset when it is substantially certain that it will be received, and the amount of
reimbursement recognized does not exceed the book value of the provision.

The book value of provisions is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is adjusted
appropriately to reflect the current best estimate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

25. Revenue
The Group's operating income mainly consists of revenues such as revenue from sales
of goods and revenue from quality and technology services.

(1) Revenue recognition principles
The Group recognizes revenue when it has fulfilled its performance obligations under the
contract, that is, when the customer obtains control of the relevant goods or services.

Where a contract contains two or more performance obligations, the Group apportions
the transaction price to each individual performance obligation at the beginning of the
contract in proportion to the relative share of the individual selling price of the goods
or services promised by each individual performance obligation and measures revenue
based on the transaction price apportioned to each individual performance obligation.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled as a result of the transfer of goods or services to the customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The transaction price recognized by the
Group does not exceed the amount for which it is highly probable that there will be no
material reversal of revenue recognized in the aggregate when the relevant uncertainty
is removed. The amounts expected to be returned to customers are accounted for as
liabilities and are not included in the transaction price. Where there is a significant
financing component in the contract, the Group determines the transaction price based
on the amount payable in the hypothetical case where the customer will pay in cash
as soon as control of the goods or services is acquired. The difference between this
transaction price and the contract consideration is amortized over the term of the contract
using the effective interest method. If, at the contract start date, the Group expects
that the interval between the customer’s acquisition of control of the goods or services
and the customer’s payment of the price does not exceed one year, the existence of a
significant financing component in the contract is not considered.
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

Ill. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
25. Revenue (Cont’d)

(1) Revenue recognition principles (Cont‘d)

A performance obligation is fulfilled within a certain period of time if one of the following
conditions is met; a performance obligation is fulfilled at a certain point in time if none
of the following conditions are met:

1) The customer obtains and consumes the economic benefits arising from the
Group's performance at the time of the Group’s performance.

2) The customer is able to control the commodities under construction in the course
of the Group's performance.

3) The goods produced in the course of the Group’s performance are of
irreplaceable use and the Group is entitled to receive payment for the cumulative
portion of performance completed to date throughout the term of the contract.

For performance obligations that are satisfied within a certain period of time, the Group
recognizes revenue in accordance with the progress of performance during that period,
and the progress of performance is determined by the output method. When the
progress of performance is not reasonably determinable, if the costs already incurred by
the Group are expected to be reimbursed, revenue is recognized in the amount of the
costs already incurred until the progress of performance can be reasonably determined.

For performance obligations performed at a point in time, the Group recognizes revenue
at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the relevant goods or services.
In determining whether the customer has acquired control of the goods or services, the
Group considers the following indications:

1) The Group has a present right to receive payment in respect of the goods or
services.

2) The Group has transferred legal ownership of the goods to the customer.

3) The Group has physically transferred the goods to the customer.

4) The Group has transferred the principal risks and rewards of ownership of the

goods to the customer.

5) The customer has accepted the goods or services, etc.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

Ill. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
25. Revenue (Cont’d)

(1) Revenue recognition principles (Cont‘d)

The Group’s rights to receive consideration for goods or services that have been
transferred to customers are presented as contract assets, and contract assets are
impaired on the basis of expected credit losses. The Group’s unconditional right to
receive consideration from customers is presented as a receivable. The Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to customers for consideration received or receivable is
presented as a contractual liability.

(2) Specific accounting policies related to the Company’s principal activities
in obtaining revenue

1) Sales of goods

The realization of sales revenue is recognized when control of the product has been
transferred to the purchaser, continuing management and control of the product is no
longer exercised and the related costs can be measured reliably. The Group recognizes
revenue when the products are shipped to the designated location in accordance with the
terms of the agreements or contracts and the acceptance is confirmed by the purchaser.

2) Quality and technology services

The Group provides quality and technology services to other companies producing
ready-mixed concrete. Revenue from quality and technology services is recognized on
the basis of the volume of work confirmed by the purchaser.

26. Government grants

The Group’s government grants include fiscal subsidies and tax rebates. Among them,
asset-related government grants refer to those obtained by the Group for the acquisition,
construction, or other formation of long-term assets; income-related government grants
refer to those other than asset-related government grants. If the recipients of the grants
are not specified in the government documents, the Group will judge in accordance with
the above principle of distinction, and if it is difficult to distinguish, it will be classified
as income-related government grants as a whole.

Government grants are measured at the amount actually received if they are monetary
assets. For subsidies allocated according to a fixed flat rate, or when there is conclusive
evidence at year-end that the relevant conditions specified in the financial support policy
can be met and the financial support funds are expected to be received, the subsidies
are measured at the amount receivable; government grants are measured at fair value
if they are non-monetary assets, or at a nominal amount (RMB1) if the fair value cannot
be reliably obtained.

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

= EESRBERKERMEE
(#&)

25. WA(#E)

(1) WARRERE(H)

AW E R R S ok RS T A R
BREANIEAAREESR  ARBENEY
ERBXAEBIIDNE - AEEELNER
1) 5 U ER B 0 R e 5 FE M R T B1) R o
AEED WS ERESWERMEASSEEN
REBBHEBIEASRBENFR -

(2) EFXRAFARERANEZEEIDHHEENR
BEEE

1) HERM
EEREMNEHEEREESS  THHEZ
EnEmARTIEMZES - HENKAERE
FAEREAHEERANER - FEEBER
REHEARRTESHE T - ARBEE
REFUR - FERUA -

2) B SRR
AEEREMEERHERLIOARRHTEE
B ARG o E B R AR A5 U A TR i R T R
B ITIEE T IARER ©

26. BUNFWEED
AEBNBEFHDOEN BB - HEERE
%o Hoh o BAEMBENBITHE - fEAE
BEREY  BRBRIUEMTRERESRE
EOBRFHE  RUSIEENRITEE - 215
% 824 7 4 R B0 B AT RS B 2 SN B R B - 4
EHRFX R REEET RIS NEER
Rt RALETHE - BUB S - R
SR AEYCHRBRITED

BB AEEIEEEDN  BR
BT E - HRERBEAENERFEER NN

iN|
o
5B
ST
o
F
k>

By - HERBHEZBRPLAT S M BK
Fr S AR TE B AR BR {6k BL TR AT BE 50 I B B R

FEZR  RREENSEFE  BEHBA
FEBMEEN  RRANEBEFE  ARE
ETREAI RGN - RREESE(IT)AE -

ETHERGESMUREERLIBROBRAR 91
20247 Hf 5 &
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
26. Government grants (Cont’d)

Asset-related government grants are recognized as deferred income and charged to
current profit or loss in accordance with a reasonable and systematic method over the
useful life of the related assets.

If the related assets are sold, transferred, scrapped, or destroyed before the end of
their useful life, the unallocated balance of the related deferred income is transferred
to profit or loss in the period in which the assets are disposed of.

Income-related government grants that are intended to compensate for related costs or
losses in subsequent periods are recognized as deferred income and charged to current
profit or loss in the period in which the related costs or losses are recognized. Government
grants related to ordinary activities are recorded in other income in accordance with the
substance of economic operations. Government grants that are not related to ordinary
activities are included in non-operating income and expenses.

When the Group obtains policy-based preferential loan subsidies, based on whether
the interest subsidies are allocated to the lending banks or to the Group, the Group
accounts for them in accordance with the following principles:

(1) If the interest subsidies are allocated to the lending bank and the lending bank
provides a loan to the Group at a policy-based preferential interest rate, the
Group uses the actual amount of the loan received as the recorded value of
the loan and calculates the relevant borrowing fee according to the principal
amount of the loan and the preferential interest rate.

(2) If the interest subsidies are allocated directly to the Group, the Group offsets
the interest subsidies against the relevant borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
26. Government grants (Cont’d)

If the Group's recognized government grants need to be refunded, the accounting
treatment in the period requiring refund shall be as follows:

(1) If the book value of the relevant asset was written off on initial recognition,
the book value of the asset is adjusted.

(2) If there is a related deferred income, the book balance of the related deferred
income is written down and the excess is recognized in the current profit or
loss.

(3) In other cases, it is recognized directly in current profit or loss.

27. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

The Group's deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are recognized on the basis
of the difference between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their book values
(temporary differences). For deductible losses that can be offset against taxable income
in subsequent years in accordance with the tax law, a corresponding deferred tax asset is
recognized. For temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwill, no
corresponding deferred tax liabilities are recognized. For temporary differences resulting
from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities arising from transactions that neither
affect accounting profit nor taxable income (or deductible losses) in a non-business
combination, the corresponding deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized. At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied in the period in which
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled.

The Group recognizes deferred tax assets at the amount limited by future taxable income
that is likely to be obtained to offset deductible temporary differences, deductible
losses, and tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

Ill. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
27. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented net of offset if the following
conditions are also met:

(1) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the same taxpayer within the Group;

(2) This taxpayer within the Group has a legal right to settle current tax assets and
current tax liabilities on a net basis.

28. Lease

(1) Identification of the lease

A lease is a contract in which the lessor transfers the right to use an asset to the lessee
for a certain period of time in return for consideration. At the contract start date, the
Group assesses whether the contract is a lease or contains a lease. A contract is a lease
or contains a lease if one party to the contract cedes the right to control the use of one
or more identified assets for a specified period of time in exchange for consideration.
To determine whether the contract cedes the right to control the use of the identified
assets for a certain period of time, the Group assesses whether the customer under the
contract is entitled to receive substantially all of the economic benefits arising from the
use of the identified assets during the period of use and has the right to dominate the
use of the identified assets during that period of use.

If a contract contains several separate leases, the Group splits the contract and accounts
for each separate lease separately. If a contract contains both lease and non-lease
components, the Group accounts for the lease and non-lease components after splitting
them.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

28. Lease (Cont’d)

(2) The Group as the lessee

1) Lease recognition

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the lease at the
commencement date of the lease. For the recognition and measurement of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, please refer to Note Ill. “18. Right-of-use assets” and

“23. Lease liabilities”.

2) Lease changes

A lease change refers to a change of lease scope, lease consideration, or lease term
other than the original contract terms, including adding or terminating the right to use
one or more leased assets, extending or shortening the lease term stipulated in the
contract, etc. The effective date of a lease change refers to the date when both parties
agree on the lease change.

If a lease change occurs and the following conditions are met, the Group accounts for
the lease change as a separate lease: M the lease change expands the scope of the
lease or extends the lease term by adding the right to use one or more leased assets;
@ the increased consideration is equivalent to the separate price of the expanded
portion of the lease scope or the extended portion of the lease term adjusted for the
circumstances of the contract.

If a lease change is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group re-determines the
lease term after the change by apportioning the consideration of the modified contract
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Lease Guidelines on the effective
date of the lease change, and discounts the changed lease payment amount using the
revised discount rate to re-measure the lease liability. In calculating the present value of
the changed lease payments, the Group uses the interest rate implicit in the lease for
the remaining lease term as the discount rate. If the interest rate implicit in the lease
for the remaining lease term cannot be determined, the Group uses the interest rate
of the lessee’s incremental borrowing on the effective date of the lease change as the
discount rate. With respect to the impact of the above lease liability adjustment, the
Group distinguishes the following circumstances for accounting treatment: @ If the lease
change results in a smaller scope of the lease or a shorter lease term, the lessee shall
reduce the book value of the right-of-use asset and record the gain or loss related to
the partial termination or complete termination of the lease in current profit or loss. @
If other lease changes result in a remeasurement of the lease liability, the lessee adjusts
the book value of the right-of-use asset accordingly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

28. Lease (Cont’d)

(2) The Group as the lessee (Cont’d)

3) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group chooses not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases with lease terms of less than 12 months and leases of low-value assets where
the individual leased assets are brand-new assets. The Group recognizes lease payments
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets in the cost of the related assets or
in current profit or loss on a straight-line basis or other systematic, reasonable basis in
each period of the lease term.

3) The Group as the lessor

Based on the assessment that the contract is a lease or contains a lease according to (1)
above, the Group, as the lessor, classifies the leases into finance leases and operating
leases at the commencement date of the leases.

If a lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards associated with the ownership
of the leased asset, the lessor classifies the lease as a finance lease and leases other
than finance leases as operating leases.

A lease is generally classified by the Group as a finance lease if one or more of the
following circumstances exist: M at the end of the lease term, the ownership of the
leased asset is transferred to the lessee; @ the lessee has an option to purchase the
leased asset and the purchase price entered into is sufficiently low compared with the
fair value of the leased asset at the time the option is expected to be exercised, so that
it is reasonably certain at the inception date of the lease that the lessee will exercise the
option; @ although ownership to the asset does not transfer, the lease term represents
a substantial portion of the useful life of the leased asset (not less than 75% of the
useful life of the leased asset); @ at the lease commencement date, the present value
of the lease receipts is nearly equal to the fair value of the leased asset (not less than
90% of the fair value of the leased asset); and ® the leased asset is special in nature
and can only be used by the lessee if no major modifications are made. The Group may
also classify a lease as a finance lease if one or more of the following indications exist:
@ if the lessee revokes the lease, the loss to the lessor caused by the revocation is
borne by the lessee; @ the gain or loss arising from fluctuations in the fair value of the
residual value of the asset is attributable to the lessee; and @ the lessee has the ability
to continue the lease to the next period at a rental rate well below the market level.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

28. Lease (Cont’d)

3) The Group as the lessor (Cont’d)

1) Accounting for finance leases

Initial measurement

On the commencement date of the lease term, the Group recognizes finance lease
receivables for finance leases and derecognizes the finance lease assets. When the Group
makes an initial measurement of finance lease receivables, the net lease investment is
used as the recorded value of the finance lease receivables.

The net lease investment is the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the present
value of the lease payments not yet received at the commencement date of the lease
term discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. The lease receipt amount,
which is the amount receivable by the lessor from the lessee for ceding the right to
use the leased asset during the lease term, includes: @ the amount of fixed payments
to be paid by the lessee and the amount of substantive fixed payments; if there is a
lease incentive, the amount related to the lease incentive is deducted; @ the amount of
variable lease payments depending on an index or rate, which is determined at the time
of initial measurement based on the index or rate at the start date of the lease term; @
the exercise price of the purchase option, provided that it is reasonably certain that the
lessee will exercise the option; @ the amount to be paid by the lessee to exercise the
option to terminate the lease, provided that the lease term reflects that the lessee will
exercise the option to terminate the lease; and ® the residual value of the guarantee
provided to the lessor by the lessee, a party related to the lessee, and an independent
third party with the financial ability to meet the guarantee obligation.

Subsequent measurement

The Group calculates and recognizes interest income for each period of the lease term
based on a fixed periodic interest rate. This periodic interest rate is the revised discount
rate determined in accordance with the relevant provisions when the implicit discount
rate is used to determine the net lease investment (in the case of a sublease, if the
interest rate implicit in the lease for the sublease cannot be determined, the discount
rate of the original lease (adjusted based on initial direct costs associated with subleases)
is used) or when a change in a finance lease is not accounted for as a separate lease
and the condition that the lease would have been classified as a finance lease had the
change been effective at the lease commencement date is met.

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

28. Lease (Cont’d)

3) The Group as the lessor (Cont’d)

1) Accounting for finance leases (Cont’d)

Accounting for lease changes

If a change in a finance lease occurs and the following conditions are met, the Group
accounts for the change as a separate lease: @M the change expands the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or more leased assets, and @ the increased
consideration is equivalent to the separate price of the expanded portion of the lease-
adjusted for the circumstances of the contract.

If a change in a finance lease is not accounted for as a separate lease and the condition
that the lease would have been classified as an operating lease had the change been
effective on the commencement date of the lease is met, the Group accounts for the
change as a new lease from the effective date of the lease change and uses the net
lease investment prior to the effective date of the lease change as the book value of
the leased asset.

2) Accounting for operating leases

Treatment of rent

The Group recognizes lease receipts from operating leases as rental income using the
straight-line method over the respective periods of the lease term.

Incentives offered

Where a rent-free period is provided, the Group allocates the total rent on a straight-line
basis over the entire lease term without deducting the rent-free period, and rental income
should be recognized over the rent-free period. If the Group bears certain expenses of
the lessee, such expenses are deducted from the total rental income, and the balance
of rental income after deductions is allocated over the lease term.

Initial direct costs

The initial direct costs incurred by the Group in connection with operating leases should
be capitalized to the cost of the underlying leased assets and recognized in current profit
or loss over the lease terms on the same recognition basis as rental income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

lll.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont‘d)

28. Lease (Cont’d)

3) The Group as the lessor (Cont’d)

2) Accounting for operating leases (Cont’d)

Depreciation

For fixed assets under operating leases, the Group depreciates them using the depreciation
policy for similar assets; for other operating lease assets, the Group uses a systematic
and reasonable method to amortize them.

Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments acquired by the Group in connection with operating leases
that are not included in the lease receipts are recognized in profit or loss when they
are actually incurred.

Changes in operating leases

If a change in an operating lease occurs, the Group accounts for it as a new lease from
the effective date of the change, and the amount of lease receipts received in advance
or receivable in connection with the lease before the change is considered to be the
amount of lease receipts for the new lease.

29. Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that meets one of the following
conditions and is capable of being separately distinguished, which has been disposed
of or classified as held for sale: (1) the component represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations; (2) the component is part of an associated
plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations;
and (3) the component is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

30. Significant changesin accounting policies and accounting
estimates

(1) Significant changes in accounting policies

The Group had no significant changes in accounting policies from January to June 2024.

(2) Significant changes in accounting estimates
The Group had no significant changes in accounting estimates from January to June 2024.
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IV. Taxation

1. The main tax categories and tax rates 1.

Tax category

BB

- BiE
FEHERBE

Tax rate

B

Basis for taxation

Bk E

Corporate income tax
RERSH
VAT

SR

Taxable income 25%, 15%

JERTFTISER

Taxable value-added amount (Taxable amount is calculated
using the taxable sales amount multiplied by the
effective tax rate less deductible input tax of the current
period)

FEMNE L ERE (FR T SN - FEARTH R R e AN T 1 & 3k

13%, 9%, 6%, 5%, 3%

VASE P AR 8 B0 AR IR R R SR AR T B

Urban maintenance and construction tax

Turnover tax payable

7%, 5%, 1%

U T SR AR B FEMR M EE D ER
Education surcharges Taxable turnover 3%
BE BN JER R EE D ER
Local education surcharge Turnover tax payable 2%
752 B Bt hn JER R EE D ER

Descriptions of taxpayers with different corporate income tax rates:

TNREEMEHR RN -

Income tax rate

Name of taxpayer MB AR FigBH=E
YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company ERERGFeRERER RO BERAR]

Limited 15%
YCIH Polymer Materials Co., Ltd. EMEERS TMEBRAR 15%
YCIH Qujing Building Materials Co., Ltd. TR MEEM AR A 15%
YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. TR EREMBRAA 15%
YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building Materials Co., Ltd. EFBIERILKEEMBRAR 15%
YCIH Green Development Co., Ltd. THRERGCERBRAA 25%
YCIH Aggregate Co., Ltd. SRR ARBR A 25%
Yunjian Green Concrete Kunming Green Building ERGMERSZCEMBRATR

Materials Co., Ltd. 25%
Yunjian Green Concrete Chuxiong Green Building ERGM RS CEMBRAR

Materials Co., Ltd. 25%
Jiantou Group Lijiang Green Building Materials Co., Ltd. EREBETI4EEMBR AR 25%
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TAXATION (Cont‘d)

Tax benefits

Enterprise income tax

The Company obtained the Certificate of High-tech Enterprise
(No.GR202353000263) in 2023, with a validity period of 3 years. The Company
is subject to the preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% from January
to June 2024.

YCIH Polymer Materials Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, obtained the
Certificate of High-tech Enterprise (No.GR202253000186) in 2022, with a validity
period of 3 years. YCIH Polymer Materials Co., Ltd. is subject to the preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15% from January to June 2024.

YCIH Qujing Building Materials Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, obtained
the Certificate of High-tech Enterprise (No.GR202153000068) in 2021, with a
validity period of 3 years. YCIH Qujing Building Materials Co., Ltd. is subject to
the preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% from January to June 2024.

YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, obtained
the Certificate of High-tech Enterprise (No.GR202253000186) in 2022, with a
validity period of 3 years. YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. is subject to
the preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% from January to June 2024.

YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building Materials Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company, obtained the Certificate of High-tech Enterprise (No.GR202353000696)
in 2023, with a validity period of 3 years. YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building
Materials Co., Ltd. is subject to the preferential corporate income tax rate of
15% from January to June 2024.
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TAXATION (Cont‘d)

Tax benefits (Cont’d)

Value-added tax (VAT)

Pursuant to the Announcement on Relevant Policies on Deepening Value-added
Tax Reform (Announcement No. [2019] 39 of the Ministry of Finance, the
State Taxation Administration and the General Administration of Customs) and
the relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation
Administration and the General Administration of Customs, the applicable
value-added tax rates for value-added tax taxable sales activities incurred by the
Group since April 1, 2019 are 13% and 9%, and the applicable value-added
tax rates for such business before April 1, 2019 were 16% and 10%.

According to the Announcement of the Ministry of Finance and the State Taxation
Administration on the Policies of Applying Low VAT Rates and Simplified Methods
in Collecting VAT on Certain Goods (Cai Shui [2009] No. 9), the Announcement
of the Ministry of Finance and the State Taxation Administration on the Policies
of Simplifying the Collection Rates of VAT (Cai Shui [2014] No. 57) and other
relevant regulations, the Group may choose to calculate and pay value added
tax on the sale of self-produced commercial concrete under the simple method
at the rate of 3%

According to the Announcement of the Policies on Additional Value-added Tax
Credits for Enterprises in Advanced Manutacturing Industry (Announcement of
the Ministry of Finance and the State Taxation Administration of [2023] No.
43) issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State Taxation Administration,
as advanced manufacturing enterprises, the Company and the Company’s
subsidiaries, YCIH Polymer Materials Co., Ltd., YCIH Qujing Building Materials
Co., Ltd. and YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd., are entitled to offset their
VAT payables from January to June 2024 based on the current period’s deductible
input tax plus 5%.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # : M EHRRETEEB
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =2

Except for special notes, for the financial statement data disclosed below, “Opening” AT HENHERERER  BERIFEH 2

refers to January 1, 2024, and “Closing” refers to June 30, 2024. “Current period”  4b » [HI#) | Z$52024F1 A18 » [HIR &R

refers to the period from January 1, 2024 to June 30, 2024, and “Prior period” refers 2024968308 - [ AHI | Z452024F1 818 =

to the period from January 1 to June 30, 2023. The currency unit is RMB. 6H30H ' [ FHB ] % $52023F1A1HE6H30
B G¥BMAARET -

1.  Monetary funds 1. EB¥E&ES

Closing balance  Opening balance
Items BH BAREREE HAYERTE
Cash on hand EFRe
Cash in bank RITIER 36,137,871.84  69,873,194.18
Other monetary funds HihE¥ES 199,094,354.71  252,592,104.32
Total &t 235,232,226.55  322,465,298.50
Including: Total amount deposited abroad Hep : FERIMIRIEREE 134.71 133.76
Note: Other monetary funds at the end of the period include accrued interest receivable of = HAREMEEKESLDBESHIRNEKRF B

RMB2,064,465.61. 2,064,465.617T °

Monetary funds whose use is restricted FAZIRHNELES

Closing balance  Opening balance

Items 1BH HiREREE HR%IEREE
Bank acceptance note deposits RITERREEZRES 111,697,781.30  147,011,409.96
Guarantees for reclamation costs BREERES 470,809.03 469,706.84
Frozen funds REEE 84,861,298.77  103,166,934.77
Total 6% 197,029,889.10 250,648,051.57

2. Notes receivable 2. EREE
(1) Presentation of notes receivable by category (1) BRREDE5 R

Closing balance  Opening balance

Items EHH HAReREE HAYEREE
Bank acceptance bills RITAGLER 12,866,516.56 1,270,668.67
Commercial acceptance bills PSR LIESR 44,656,665.11 26,504,321.46
Total |t 57,523,181.67  27,774,990.13
THERGECRMERETIRNERAA 103
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V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # : M EHRRETEEB T

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) =(E)
2. Notes receivable (Cont’d) 2. FEREEE)

2) Notes receivable pledged at the end of the period 2) HARE AREFRNEREE
Pledged amount
at the end of
the period
Items HH HMREERSE
Bank acceptance bills RITALESR 10,500,000.00
Total &t 10,500,000.00

3) Notes receivable endorsed or discounted at the end of the period and  (3) HAEREERHRBEEEABRA
not yet due at the balance sheet date i R 2 B 19 FE WL R 95

Amount Amount not
derecognized at  derecognized at
the end of the the end of the

period period

HR#LE HZRAR#R 1

Items BHH BReE R
Bank acceptance bills RITA R ESR 234,211,520.84 3,491,592.00
Commercial acceptance bills R ER 39,173,552.50  131,317,379.34
Total &ast 273,385,073.34 134,808,971.34

(4) Notes transferred to accounts receivable due to non-performance by the  (4) HAR B ZE A K B A T i L e U BR 3K
drawer at the end of the period VRIE

Amounts
transferred
to accounts

receivable at

the end of the

period

HARER

Items BH EWEREREE

Commercial acceptance bills AN EE 2,080,203.19

ik

Total & 2,080,203.19
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
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V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # : M EHRRETEEB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) B¥(E)
2.  Notes receivable (Cont’d) 2. REWREE)
(5) Presentation by bad debt accrual method (5) BRERTIRGEDEIR

Closing balance

HARERE
Book balance Bad debt provision
AR TE BRER RRER
Proportion Accrual ratio
Amount (%) Amount (%) Book value
Category =l &8 Bl (%) S8 FHREAI(%) REEE
Bad debt provision on an 1R EIEFHREIRERE
individual basis
Bad debt provision by RIBEFHREREH  57,609,182.06 100.00 86,000.39 0.15 57,523,181.67
portfolio
Including: Aging portfolio  EH : BREAEAE 57,609,182.06 100.00 86,000.39 0.15 57,523,181.67
Total &5t 57,609,182.06 100.00 86,000.39 0.15 57,523,181.67
Opening balance
H V)RR
Book balance Bad debt provision
FRE A AR
Proportion Accrual ratio
Amount (%) Amount (%) Book value
Category kWl ok LB (%) SR FHEHAI(%) FEEE
Bad debt provision on an  {REIEFHRERER
individual basis
Bad debt provision by RIBEFHRERE®  27,867,652.86 100.00 92,662.73 0.33  27,774,990.13
portfolio
Including: Aging portfolio  EH : BRER#EE 27,867,652.86 100.00 92,662.73 0.33 27,774,990.13
Total &5t 27,867,652.86 100.00 92,662.73 0.33 27,774,990.13
1) Provision for bad debts on notes receivable by portfolio 1) RBEFHREWREIERAEE
Closing balance
HREAEE
Bad debt
Book balance provision Accrual ratio (%)
Name =18 BREBRER RERER FHREEBI(%)
Within 1 year 1F AR 57,609,182.06 86,000.39 0.15
Total &t 57,609,182.06 86,000.39 -
EHERGERMRRERLIRHAR AR 105

20247 Hf 5 &



Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # : M EHRRETEEB T

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) ¥(E)

2.  Notes receivable (Cont’d) 2. RERREEE)

(6) Current period Provision for bad debts on notes receivable accrued, (6) AEGTHR - WE - EE ) ERERER
recovered and reversed during the period %

Amount of change in the current period

EHE B SR
Carry-
Opening Recovery forward or Closing
balance Accrual or reversal write-off Others balance
Category Rl HAWERER R WEHEE  EHRE Hity HARERER
Provision for bad debts on  FEUZEIEIRREE 92,662.73 6,662.35 86,000.39
notes receivable

Total &t 92,662.73 6,662.35 86,000.39

(7) Aging of notes receivable at the end of the period (7) HA R e UL ZE 55 1Y BR IR

AREE L RSB AR E1FIAR -

At the end of the period, the aging of the Group’s notes receivable described above
was within one year.

FE WSt BR 7R
YRR IR HR 77 R D 5 T

3. Accounts receivable 3.
(1) Accounts receivable presented according to the bad debt accrual method (1)

Closing balance

HREE
Book balance Bad debt provision
AREERE BIRER
Accrual ratio
Amount Proportion (%) Amount (%) Book value
Category EEl k] oI (%) €8 FHREEAI(%) REEE
Bad debt provision on an REERRER 3,417,190.40 0.09 3,417,190.40 100.00
individual basis
Bad debt provision by portfolio #ZABA FHRIERERE 3,613,321,088.33 99.91 104,380,756.28 2.89 3,508,940,332.05
Including: Aging portfolio He - RS 3,613,321,088.33 99.91 104,380,756.28 2.89 3,508,940,332.05
Total &% 3,616,738,278.73 100.00 107,797,946.68 2.98 3,508,940,332.05
106 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

Interim Report 2024



Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B H5 R M et (48D

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

BLE2024F6H30H 1F 1B A
V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE & - 6#fHiEHBRETEZEAH
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) =(E)
3.  Accounts receivable (Cont’d) 3. FEWERN(E)
(1) Accounts receivable presented according to the bad debt accrual method (1) EWRRIRRRT IR ED B R (E)
(Cont’d)
Opening balance
s
Book balance Bad debt provision
RESRE EHRER
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Accrual ratio (%) Book value
Category 5l ik H (%) &% FHRHHI(%) REEE
Bad debt provision on an REFRRIRER 3,417,190.40 0.09 3,417,190.40 100.00
individual basis
Bad debt provision by portfolio 1&4A SHZEERR S 3,803,392,187.81 99.91 116,702,938.24 3.07 3,686,689,249.57
Including: Aging portfolio Hep o RRAA 3,803,392,187.81 99.91 116,702,938.24 3.07 3,686,689,249.57
Total &t 3,806,809,378.21 100.00 120,120,128.64 3.16  3,686,689,249.57
1) Bad debt provision for accounts receivable on an individual basis 1) REIETREUR TR AR
Closing balance
HReREE
Bad debt Accrual ratio Reason for
Book balance provision (%) accrual
Name £ BRI BRER AR TR (%) HRER
Lin Liansheng R 3,417,190.40 3,417,190.40 100.00 FE ST S
Not expected to
be recovered
Total B 3,417,190.40 3,417,190.40 - -
2) Bad debt provision for accounts receivable by portfolio 2) RIS FHR YR RIZ RS
a. Aging portfolio — YCIH Group and its subsidiaries a. fRicEA —CREREERETAA
Closing balance
BReRER
Book balance Bad debt provision Accrual ratio (%)
Aging AR FREEREE BIRES sTREEAI(%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 1EAR(E14E) 821,134,820.54 5,503,973.04 0.67
1-2 years 1-24F 700,283,156.36 4,795,824.45 0.68
2-3 years 2-3%F 521,657,563.60 3,714,629.28 0.71
3-4 years 3-44F 780,134,554.39 5,193,943.95 0.67
4-5 years 4-5%F 35,331,419.36 235,227.90 0.67
Over 5 years S5FPA 8,987,732.48 5,592,346.90 62.22
Total a% 2,867,529,246.73 25,035,945.52 0.87

EHERGERMERERLIRNDERAA
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B A5 R T ot ()

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A
V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE & - §#tMBHRRETEEE T

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) B(E)
3.  Accounts receivable (Cont’d) 3. REWERN(E)
(1) Accounts receivable presented according to the bad debt accrual method (1) EWRRIRRRT IR ED B R (E)

(Cont’d)
2) Bad debt provision for accounts receivable by portfolio (Cont’d) 2) REEFHREWBRFUBRER(F
b. Aging portfolio — Third parties and other related parties b. BRI ABE — 15 0 TR 71 e L At A st 77

Closing balance
BARERER
Book balance Bad debt provision Accrual ratio (%)

Aging BRie BRI EREE HRERE FHREEAI(%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 1FAR(E1F) 230,309,566.58 8,087,090.26 3.51
1-2 years 1-24 184,552,872.42 10,146,190.31 5.50
2-3 years 2-3% 166,136,068.00 11,324,520.46 6.82
3-4 years 3-4%5 104,997,732.54 12,899,550.31 12.29
4-5 years 4-5% 31,861,125.38 8,952,982.74 28.10
Over 5 years S E 27,934,476.68 27,934,476.68 100.00
Total &% 745,791,841.60 79,344,810.76 10.64

IR} R

(2) Accounts receivable presented by aging @ PSR 2 A e 5
Closing balance
Aging R BAREREE
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 1FEAR(E14E) 1,051,444,387.12
1-2 years 1-24F 884,836,028.78
2-3 years 2-3%F 687,793,631.60
3-4 years 3-44F 885,132,286.93
4-5 years 4-5%F 67,192,544.74
Over 5 years SEPAE 40,339,399.56
Total A&t 3,616,738,278.73

(3) Bad debt provision for accounts receivable in current period (3) AHEBRFRREFER
Amount of change in current period
rHSBHEE
Recovery or Carry-forward Closing
Opening balance Accrual reversal or write-off Others balance
Category H5 HARE R WEREE  EHHAE Hith ARBE
Bad debt provision for R R R 120,120,128.64 12,322,181.96 107,797,946.68
accounts receivable

Total a5t 120,120,128.64 12,322,181.96 107,797,946.68
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V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

ITEMS OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

3.  Accounts receivable (Cont’d)
(4) Accounts receivable of the top five closing balances, grouped by party  (4)

in arrears

3.

B H5 R M et (48D

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

B E2024F6 H30H 1L A

T AFMBBRXREERBH

B(E)

P& s Bk (4 )
1R R 77 B S B R 4 A T 9 PR
SR ER

As a percentage

of the total
closing balance
of accounts Bad debt provision

Closing balance Aging receivable (%) Closing balance
1 FE R BR TR H R BR 58 HRERE
Company name BAE HReREE BRER  AETEAELHI(%) HREREE
Entity 1 B 1 1,188,317,601.57 Within 1 year, 32.86 7,911,526.27
1-5 years
1F8R - 1-5%
Entity 2 B2 300,109,618.71 Within 1 year, 8.30 1,998,056.01
1-4 years
158K - 145
Entity 3 B3 230,115,667.39 Within 1 year, 6.36 4,318,450.21
1-5 years
1F8R - 1-5%
Entity 4 B4 153,464,222.00 Within 1 year, 4.24 1,021,727.04
1-5 years
1F8R - 1-5%
Entity 5 Bf75 133,527,959.40 Within 1 year, 3.69 888,996.31
1-4 years
158K - 145
Total SHEr 2,005,535,069.07 55.45 16,138,755.84
4. Receivables financing 4, RBRFHIERE
Closing balance Opening balance
Items BHH HRerEE R EREE
Notes receivable and debt obligations FEU AR K FE W (B KRR RE 3,999,830.71 7,288,317.02
receivable
Total &5t 3,999,830.71 7,288,317.02
Note:  As at June 30, 2024, the Group did not make provisions for impairment of bank acceptance bills ~ &F : 202456 A308 « AEEEEETIRFEER
and debt obligations receivable on an individual basis, and bad debt provision was accrued based HOSRTT A KL TE A0 R K (B IR R E
on expected credit losses over the entire duration. The Group considers that bank acceptance bills FEAEAERBAGRERER - X&ERA

and debt obligations receivable held by the Group are not exposed to material credit risk and will
not incur significant losses due to default of the acceptors.

THERGERUEREREIRNERAR

Fr#s A AV IRTT AL E R M B U B RURE TN FE
EXERARER  TEEALAZOMELEAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

V.

NOTES TO THE

PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

T AFMBBRXREERBH
B(E)

5. Prepayments 5. FENNIE
(1) Aging of prepayments (1) A RERRER
Closing balance Opening balance
HRERE HAYIERER

Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
ltems EHE =8 Ee (%) TR LB (%)
Within 1 year 1F AN 8,045,841.69 60.05 8,333,128.31 70.20
1-2 years 1-24F 4,219,904.79 31.49 2,375,247.58 20.01
2-3 years 2-3F 37,329.56 0.28 43,939.14 0.37
Over 3 years 3FEMLE 1,095,853.81 8.18 1,118,352.74 9.42
Total &5t 13,398,929.85 - 11,870,667.77 -
(2) Prepayments of the top five closing balances, grouped by prepaid objects  (2) RAEMNYSESENSHRSEIRAZWAE

Closing balance

FIRER
As a percentage
of the total
closing balance of
Aging prepayments (%)

R FRIER R

BREESETEAILL B

Company name BUEHE FAREREE BRiR (%)

Entity 1 B 1,976,814.60 1-2 years 1-24 14.75

Entity 2 B2 1,862,385.32 1-2 years 1-24 13.90

Entity 3 Bf73 1,219,752.85  Within 1 year 15K 9.10

Entity 4 B4 769,256.64  Within 1 year 15L& 5.74

Entity 5 B5 731,647.70  Within 1 year 15L& 5.46

Total &% 6,559,857.11 48.96
110 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

ITEMS OF THE

T AFMBBRREEREHE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) ¥(E)
6. Other receivables H i fE YLK
Closing balance  Opening balance
Items BH BAREREE HXERER
Interest receivable FENF S
Dividends receivable FEU AR F
Other receivables E h FEUGK 22,581,155.26 19,683,070.15
Total &t 22,581,155.26 19,683,070.15
6.1 Other receivables HbFEUW TR
(1) Classification of other receivables by nature of payment Hib el ZIR B E 5 R
Closing book Opening book
balance balance
Nature of payment MIEME FRERE A5 HRAARE fR%E
Related party transactions AR 77 R 8,479,956.99 7,801,758.00
Imprest, deposit, margin ERe  #e  RER 12,450,213.20 12,834,593.01
Transactions with other units HithBAI AR 9,871,022.07 9,046,894.21

Less: Bad debt provision for other receivables

W A AR UR AR E A

8,220,037.00

10,000,175.07

Total

a5t

22,581,155.26

19,683,070.15

EHERGERMERERLIRNDERAA
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

T AFMBBRXREERBH
B(E)

Hfth R R (A7)
H A K ()
E b MR R R R

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

6. Other receivables (Cont’d) .
6.1 Other receivables (Cont’d) 6.1
(2) Bad debt provision for other receivables (2)

Phase |
BB

Expected credit

Phase I
BE-RR

Expected credit
losses over the
entire duration

Phase IlI
FoE
Expected credit
losses over

the entire
duration (credit

losses over the (no credit impairment has
next 12 months impairment) occurred) Total

BREFESHED ZEAFZESHED

RFRI12BA ERBR(REE ERBX(ERE
Bad debt provision RRER EHERBX ERRE) ERRE) =5
Balance as of January 1, 2024 20241 A1 B4 10,000,175.07 10,000,175.07

Book balance of other receivables as of 202441 A 1 B E b fE Yk R @

January 1, 2024 in the current period PARETE AR - - - -

- Transferred to Phase Il

- Transferred to Phase Il

- Reversed to Phase |l

- Reversed to Phase |
Current period accrual
Current period reversal
Current period carry-forward
Current period write-off
Other changes
Balance as of June 30, 2024

—EAEZFEE
—BASRE
— 80 5 KB
—BEE R

RERETR

A

REE

REZ

Hofm

202446 A30H 58

1,780,138.07

8,220,037.00

1,780,138.07

8,220,037.00

(3) Other receivables presented by aging

®3) H b FEU IR AR IR DI R

Closing balance

Aging IR BARERER
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 1FEAR(E14E) 7,978,198.65
1-2 years 1-24F 9,485,195.22
2-3 years 2-3F 2,558,098.24
3-4 years 3-44F 2,375,778.66
4-5 years 4-5% 513,644.76
Over 5 years S E 7,890,276.73
Total &t 30,801,192.26
112 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B H5 R M et (48D

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

BLE2024F6H30H 1F 1B A
V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE & - 6#fHiKHBRETEZEAH
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) =(E)
6. Other receivables (Cont’d) 6. HEWRE)
6.1 Other receivables (Cont‘d) 6.1 g A ENE )
(4) Bad debt provision for other receivables in current period (4) H b U ARE RIS N
Amount of change in current period
RARHEH
Carry-
Opening Recovery or  forward or Closing
balance Accrual reversal write-off Others balance
Category EHl HiesE R KEREE  EHERS Hity HREAE
Bad debt provision for other — HhEIFEEIREMR 10,000,175.07 1,780,138.07 8,220,037.00
receivables
Total &% 10,000,175.07 1,780,138.07 8,220,037.00
(5) Other receivables of the top five closing balances, grouped by party in arrears (5 MRS GEN RS EN AR E M
FEMRIES
As a percentage
of the total
closing balance Bad debt
Nature of Closing of other provision
payment balance  Aging receivables(%) Closing balance
16 H o FE R R
REBEATTEM BERER
Company name BHAE RIENEE HRBE RE 61 (%) HREE
Entity 1 B Current account  3,333,771.93  Within 1 year, 1-2 years 10.82 1,744.63
R 1R - 1-2F
Entity 2 B2 Current account  2,300,000.00  Within 1 year 7.47 254,466.14
R 1 LR
Entity 3 B3 Current account  2,000,000.00 Over 5 years 6.49 2,000,000.00
R S5FHE
Entity 4 Bhr4 Current account  2,000,000.00 1-2 years 6.49 13,315.51
ERH 12
Entity 5 Bf5 Current account  1,803,240.08 Over 5 years 5.85 1,803,240.08
R S5FLE
Total = - 11,437,012.01 - 37.13 4,072,766.36
ERRRGEHMERRLREARAR 13
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

T AGEBHRETEEAS
B(E)
e

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
7. Inventories 7.

Closing balance
HARERE

Provision for

Opening balance
BT

Provision for

decline in decline in
the value of the value of

Book balance inventories Book value  Book balance inventories Book value
Items BH RESKE REREEE REEE RE#E HFELEER REEE
Raw materials ErE 16,034,830.75 16,034,830.75 16,951,553.72 16,951,553.72
Goods in stock EEER 3,795,664.53 3,795,664.53  4,950,361.60 4,950,361.60
Turnover materials [EaE R 377,623.70 377,623.70 456,741.85 456,741.85
Total ait 20,208,118.98 20,208,118.98  22,358,657.17 22,358,657.17

8.  Other current assets 8. HMtRBEE
Closing balance  Opening balance
Items HH BARERER HXTIERER
Input tax to be deducted RN TE R R 19,911,176.50 15,941,602.54
Prepaid income taxes TEB RS 233,055.82 495,028.70
Total &5t 20,144,232.32 16,436,631.24

=
9. Fixed assets 9. EE&E

Closing book Opening book
value value
Items HH BAREREEE HFAREEE
Fixed assets EEEE 217,037,837.35  219,924,809.43

Disposal of fixed assets EE & EFE 24,859.52
Total S 217,062,696.87 219,924,809.43
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # : M EHRRETEEB T

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) =B(E)
. Fixed assets (Cont’d) 9. ETEEE)
9.1 Fixed assets 9.1 EE&E
(1) Details of fixed assets (1) EEEEBR
Houses and Machinery and  Transportation Electronic Other
buildings equipment tools equipment equipment Total
Items EH EEREY HWERE EHIH ETRf AR fi
1. Original book value - RERE
1. Opening balance 1. B4 231,837,813.88  260,007,622.53  152,916,377.67  12,094,288.85 4,812,540.46  661,668,643.39
2. Increase in current period LAREENEE 5,211,494.85 5,753,022.80 6,847,018.89 108,349.60 53,814.07  17,973,700.21
(1) Acquisition (1EE 2,572,358.68 5,753,022.80 6,847,018.89 108,349.60 53,814.07  15,334,564.04
(2) Transfer from construction in QERIEEA 2,639,136.17 2,639,136.17
progress
(3) Increase due to business BiEEAHEN
combinations
3. Decrease in current period 3AER EE 10,374,481.20 2,460,527.66  19,779,337.00 58,555.29 334,478.19  33,007,379.34
(1) Disposal or scrapping (EEZRE 10,374,481.20 2,460,527.66  19,779,337.00 58,555.29 334,478.19  33,007,379.34
4. Closing balance 4 HiRGE 226,674,827.53  263,300,117.67 139,984,059.56  12,144,083.16 4,531,876.34  646,634,964.26
Il. Accumulated depreciation = BithE
1. Opening balance 1. B%E 146,273,444.56  182,209,450.32  97,667,188.07 9,595,082.04 3,986,011.43  439,731,176.42
2. Increase in current period LAEEMEE 5,024,444.64 8,713,465.64 4,488,111.87 678,581.24 24334443 19,147,947.82
(1) Accrual (1342 5,024,444.64 8,713,465.64 4,488,111.87 678,581.24 24334443 19,147,947.82
3. Decrease in current period 3AHR S 9,339,800.47 2,386,711.84  19,185,956.89 57,456.83 324,728.84  31,294,654.87
(1) Disposal or scrapping (EEZRE 9,339,800.47 2,386,711.84  19,185,956.89 57,456.83 324,728.84  31,294,654.87
4. Closing balance 4 BRHBE 141,958,088.73  188,536,204.12  82,969,343.05  10,216,206.42 3,904,627.02  427,584,469.37
Il Provision for impairment = iEER
1. Opening balance 158 2,012,657.54 2,012,657.54
2. Increase in current period LAHENSE
(1) Accrual (17HR
3. Decrease in current period 3AHRS 2 E
(1) Disposal or scrapping (NEERTE
4. Closing balance 4 R 2,012,657.54 2,012,657.54
IV. Book value m - REEE
1. Closing book value 1 HRERER 84,716,738.80  72,751,256.01  57,014,716.51 1,927,876.71 627,249.32  217,037,837.35
2. Opening book value LHTRAERE 85,564,369.32  75,785,514.67  55,249,189.60 2,499,206.81 826,529.03  219,924,809.43
THERGECRMERETIRNERAA 115
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # : M EHRRETEEB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) B¥(E)
9.  Fixed assets (Cont'd) 9. ETEEE)
9.2  Disposal of fixed assets 9.2 EEEEBE
Closing balance  Opening balance
Items BHH HREREE H¥eREE
New Town Construction Project for Huize Poverty — SZS5 kBB ERIEER 24,859.52

Alleviation and Relocation

Total At 24,859.52
10. Construction in progress 10. #EEIRE
Closing balance  Opening balance
Items BHH MRerEE ¥ EREE
Construction in progress EEIR 21,228,768.07 16,068,374.55
Engineering materials ITEYME
Total &5t 21,228,768.07 16,068,374.55
1) Details of construction in progress 1) EEZIREBR
Closing balance Opening balance
BARGBE B
Provision for Provision for

Book balance impairment Book value  Book balance impairment Book value
Items EHE REEE REEE REEE RN REER REEE
Construction in progress IR 21,228,768.07 21,228,768.07 16,068,374.55 16,068,374.55
Total a5t 21,228,768.07 21,228,768.07 16,068,374.55 16,068,374.55
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # : M EHRRETEEB T

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) B¥(E)
10. Construction in progress (Cont’d) 10. EEIRE(E)

() EZGEETIREBLHEHER

Decrease in current period

EHRD

(2) Changes in significant construction projects in progress during the period

Opening Increase in Transfer to Other Closing
balance  current period fixed assets decreases balance
Project name IRER HisE R BABEEE Hitg D BARBE
Infrastructure ERE R 10,724,259.56 351,898.09  10,372,361.47
Jingkai Green Production Base KRZEEEEMIRE 2,310,573.76 4,113,388.04 2,015,371.40 4,408,590.40
Project
Changshui Airport Project RK#5IEE 1,830,638.96 1,830,638.96
Mixing Plant Equipment Relocation B Ui ERELRRIEE 1,106,194.69 1,106,194.69
and Installation Project
Other sporadic works HiZTETRE 1,927,346.54 2,207,400.78 623,764.77 3,510,982.55
Total it 16,068,374.55 8,151,427.78 2,639,136.17 351,898.09 21,228,768.07
Including:
Accumulated Amount Interest
amount of interest capitalization
Progress of the of interest  capitalized for rate for the
project capitalized the period period (%) Source of funds
FEgEAL Hi: ZHFE RHAE
Project name IREH IREE E-4a - e BERLE(%) EERR
Infrastructure ERRiE In progress f£3 Self-raised &%

Jingkai Green Production Base Project & B4k @ £ EE AR

In progress f£3

Self-raised B 5

Changshui Airport Project RKESER In progress f£3 Self-raised &%

Mixing Plant Equipment Relocation — HBH A ERiELHEEE In progress f£ Self-raised &%
and Installation Project

Other sporadic works HpZTETRE In progress fE5& Self-raised &%

Total A&t - -

ETHERGESMUREERLIBROBRAR
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g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # : M EHRRETEEB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) =(E)
11. Right-of-use assets 11. FERAEEE
Houses and Machinery and
buildings equipment Total
Items EH EEREEY BERE BF
|. Original book value — - RERME
1. Opening balance 1. YRR 45,307,642.97 22,638,758.11 67,946,401.08
2. Increase in current period 2 KHRE &R 10,385,439.14 12,218,713.52 22,604,152.66
(1) Leased-in (MBEA 10,385,439.14 12,218,713.52 22,604,152.66
(2) Increase due to business combinations () EAGHEM
3. Decrease in current period 3AHBL SR 35,251,660.84 10,773,237.47 46,024,898.31
(1) Disposal MEE 35,251,660.84 10,773,237.47 46,024,898.31
4. Closing balance 4 HiRAEE 20,441,421.27 24,084,234.16 44,525,655.43
IIl. Accumulated depreciation = BEtiE
1. Opening balance 1. BV 33,887,510.79 12,154,712.60 46,042,223.39
2. Increase in current period 2 RERE NS RR 11,110,203.45 14,209,413.29 25,319,616.74
(1) Accrual ()&% 11,110,203.45 14,209,413.29 25,319,616.74
3. Decrease in current period 3AHRBLEE 26,264,612.68 10,051,858.87 36,316,471.55
(1) Disposal MEE 26,264,612.68 10,051,858.87 36,316,471.55
4. Closing balance 4 HiRAAEE 18,733,101.56 16,312,267.02 35,045,368.58
IIl. Provision for impairment = REEE
1. Opening balance 1. B 9EREE
2. Increase in current period 2ARHEMEE
(1) Accrual (1)&t#E
3. Decrease in current period AR &
(1) Disposal MNEE
4. Closing balance 4 BAREREE
IV. Book value m - REEE
1. Closing book value 1 HREREERE 1,708,319.71 7,771,967.14 9,480,286.85
2. Opening book value 2. HREEE 11,420,132.18 10,484,045.51 21,904,177.69
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V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL

ITEMS OF THE

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

T AFMBBRXREERBH

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) B¥(E)
12. Intangible assets 12. BEEE
Land use right Software Total
Items EH Tt fE P B4 aF
I. Original book value — - RERME
1. Opening balance 1. BYIEREE 49,256,317.04 1,557,279.20 50,813,596.24
2. Increase in current period 2 KHRE &R 16,000.00 16,000.00
(1) Acquisition MBE 16,000.00 16,000.00
(2) Internal research and development (2) R EpER B
(3) Increase due to business combinations B)EEAGHEM
3. Decrease in current period 3AHRSEHE
(1) Disposal MEE
4. Closing balance 4 HAREAEE 49,256,317.04 1,573,279.20 50,829,596.24
II. Total accumulated amortization = - REHEE
1. Opening balance 1. 89418458 8,539,136.25 926,624.76 9,465,761.01
2. Increase in current period 2 KHE NS R 492,563.22 94,310.74 586,873.96
(1) Accrual (NsTR 492,563.22 94,310.74 586,873.96
3. Decrease in current period 3RS
(1) Disposal MEE
4. Closing balance 4 HAREAEE 9,031,699.47 1,020,935.50 10,052,634.97
IIl. Provision for impairment = OREEE
1. Opening balance 1. BREREE
2. Increase in current period 2ARHE NG
(1) Accrual (1)&H=
3. Decrease in current period 3AHRSEHE
(1) Disposal MEE
4. Closing balance 4 BAREREE
IV. Book value m - BREEE
1. Closing book value 1 HREEEEE 40,224,617.57 552,343.70 40,776,961.27
2. Opening book value 2 B EBE 40,717,180.79 630,654.44 41,347,835.23

THERGERUEREREIRNERAR
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL

ITEMS OF THE

T AFMBBRXREERBH

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) =(E)
13. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 13. EEFBHEENELEFRSH
afE
(1) Deferred tax assets without offset (1) RS HELFIESHEE
Closing balance Opening balance
HARERER BRRIEREE
Deductible Deductible
temporary Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax
differences assets differences assets
GIE$iE 2 EZEFTE CIE:wik g EREFTIS
Items HH Z8 BE =2 BE
Asset impairment provision & ZE R {EXER 118,116,641.60 19,981,300.35  132,225,623.98 22,367,955.73
Deductible losses AIENE S 98,001,457.80 16,131,649.10 98,001,457.80 16,131,649.10
Lease liabilities HESE 9,779,589.01 1,516,894.38 24,373,352.42 3,660,615.49
Depreciation of fixed assets [EEEENE 7,529,218.78 1,129,382.82 7,965,651.47 1,194,847.72
Provisions SEE =N 3,373,094.57 515,887.40 4,452,489.74 688,296.90
Total ST 236,800,001.76 39,275,114.05 267,018,575.41 44,043,364.94
(2) Deferred tax liabilities without offset 2) RBIRHHELEFTEBAE
Closing balance Opening balance
HREREE BRRIRREE
Taxable
temporary Deferred tax Taxable temporary Deferred tax
differences liabilities differences liabilities
FE 4B B BEEFREHR JE AR50 B BRF 1 BIEFREH
Items 1BH =8 aE =2 afs
Right-of-use assets EREEE 9,587,320.49 1,447,983.09 21,904,177.69 3,217,310.68
Depreciation of fixed assets [EE&ENTE 32,378.41 5,183.97 45,139.20 6,770.88
Total a5 9,619,698.90 1,453,167.06 21,949,316.89 3,224,081.56
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE 1 :r 64t EHERFTEEBHF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) =(E)
13. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (Cont’d) 13. gﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%*ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%
&(#&)
3) Deferred tax assets or liabilities shown in the net amount after offset (3) UK B F I ANIELEFSHEER
=F

Offset amount
of deferred
income tax

Offset amount
of deferred tax
assets against
deferred tax

Opening balance
of deferred

Closing balance

of deferred assets against

tax assets or deferred tax tax assets or

liabilities at deferred tax liabilities at the deferred tax
the end of the liabilities after beginning of liabilities after
period offset the period offset
EAEFTSH EHEREL EEFTISB HIHRIEA
EENEE FRBHEESR BEENER FBHEER
Items EHE BHAREESH BEHRGRE MY ERSHE S EHRARE
Deferred tax assets RIEFTIS T A EE 1,453,167.06 37,821,946.99 3,224,081.56 40,819,283.38
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTSHIAE 1,453,167.06 3,224,081.56
14. Other non-current assets 14. HtuFERBEE
Closing balance Opening balance
AR HERE
Book Provision for Provision for
balance impairment Book value Book balance impairment Book value
Items HAE AR 8A5E HEEE REEE ARMEEAEE REEE REEE
Prepayments of engineering ~ TiZ:REBMF 285,663.72 285,663.72  322,800.00 322,800.00
equipment
Mining royalties FEELES 800,000.00 800,000.00  800,000.00 800,000.00
Total &5t 1,085,663.72 1,085,663.72 1,122,800.00 1,122,800.00
15. Short-term borrowings 15. JEHIfERX
Closing balance  Opening balance
Category of borrowings ERER BARERER HAYEREE
Pledged loans BRER 54,237,725.06 62,250,000.00
Guaranteed loans RIFBE 55,094,879.19
Fiduciary loans EREXR 351,978,052.37  322,155,074.51
Total &5t 461,310,656.62 384,405,074.51
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE

T AFMBBRXREERBH

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) B(E)
16. Notes payable 16. ENRE
Closing balance Opening balance
Category of notes REES HREAEE R EATE
Bank acceptance bills RITERIESR 174,190,000.00 356,088,531.88
Commercial acceptance bills A ESR 39,814,698.88 50,531,852.67
Total aaf 214,004,698.88 406,620,384.55

Note: As at the end of the period, the aging of the Group’s notes payable described above was within one year.

17. Accounts payable

(1) Presentation of accounts payable

i AKE ERARENRERORKIGEIFIAA -

17. ENERR
(1) EAERIT

Closing balance

Opening balance

Items BEH HREREE HYerEE
Payables to suppliers FEAT it FE R TR IR 1,768,295,147.01  1,878,323,338.46
Total &t 1,768,295,147.01 1,878,323,338.46
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

17. Accounts payable (Cont’d)

(2) Significant accounts payable aged over 1 year

Company name

BUEE

T AFMBBRREEREHE

B(E)

17. BRI E)

() IRECHBI1FH

Closing balance

EEEMIRK

Reasons for non-
repayment or non-
carry-forward
REBEREEN
RER

Entity 1 LA 31,156,020.51 Not yet settled i AR%E
Entity 2 {72 21,807,880.08 Not yet settled iAR%E
Entity 3 BB{73 19,166,321.25 Not yet settled HAR#EH
Entity 4 B4 13,683,404.58 Not yet settled HAR#EEH
Entity 5 {75 13,264,197.32  Not yet settled HAR#EH
Entity 6 B{16 13,073,407.97 Not yet settled HAR#EH
Entity 7 B{77 12,492,825.74  Not yet settled HAR#EH
Entity 8 B{78 11,880,096.00 Not yet settled HAR#EH
Entity 9 B{79 11,719,901.97  Not yet settled HAR#EEH
Entity 10 B{710 10,719,508.74  Not yet settled HAR#EH
Entity 11 BEf11 10,052,272.87  Not yet settled HAR#EH
Total &5t 169,015,837.03 —

3) Accounts payable presented by aging

The aging analysis of accounts payable (including related party payables) based on the

transaction dates is as follows:

(3) EMRRERRIIR
RIER S B RN RR (BB R MR

FOREDMTIT

Closing balance

Opening balance

Aging R HREREE ¥R %E
Within 1 year (including 1 year) TFEURAR(E1F) 860,992,105.31 911,001,866.85
1-2 years 1-26F 311,971,168.33 239,709,185.92
2-3 years 2-3F 174,582,548.02 336,068,951.93
Over 3 years 3FMUE 420,749,325.35 391,543,333.76
Total a5t 1,768,295,147.01 1,878,323,338.46
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024

B F2024F6 H30H 1E N 1ELA

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL

ITEMS OF THE

T AFMBBRXREERBH

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) B(E)
18. Contract liabilities 18. ERIAME
Closing balance Opening balance

Items 1BH HAREREE R EATE
Advance payments of goods AW E 7,274,228.82 9,093,770.02
Total CEl 7,274,228.82 9,093,770.02
19. Employee benefits payable 19. FEATHE T E
(1) Classification of employee benefits payable 1) EBABIFMIE

Opening Increase in Decrease in

balance  current period current period Closing balance
Items HH AR Z<H33E b0 TR HRERE
Short-term employee benefits ySEGET)| 97,150,214.02 68,579,237.35 48,503,292.04  117,226,159.33

Post-employment benefit — defined BER e A — RERTRE 660,872.59 6,152,670.51 5,592,729.40 1,220,813.70
contribution plans

Termination benefits BHEARR 8,970.81 8,970.81
Other benefits due within 1 year —FAE|EE M EF
Total &t 97,811,086.61 74,740,878.67 54,104,992.25 118,446,973.03
() Short-term employee benefits (2) 52 HA A

Opening Increase in Decrease in

balance  current period current period Closing balance
Items A % AHRE REED HREAEE

Salaries, bonuses, allowances and

TE 85 - 2EMMHE

80,434,596.29

53,875,573.97 35,416,252.57

98,893,917.69

subsidies
Employee welfare costs BT iEH 1,353,656.14  3,421,497.73  3,476,358.80  1,298,795.07
Social insurance HERERE 124,525.78 4,123,758.07 4,114,967.10 133,316.75
Including: Medical insurance Hep: BERRE 112,010.66 3,703,944.79 3,695,504.42 120,451.03
Employment injury insurance ITERBE 12,515.12 419,813.28 419,462.68 12,865.72
Maternity insurance EERBRE
Housing provident fund FEAESR 342,644.00 5,373,791.24 4,935,318.24 781,117.00
Trade union funds and employee ITERENBIHELE 14,894,791.81 1,784,616.34 560,395.33  16,119,012.82
education expenses
Short-term paid leaves Sl )
Short-term profit-sharing plans REFIES Z5TEl
Total = 97,150,214.02 68,579,237.35 48,503,292.04 117,226,159.33
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024

HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A
V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # - §fBiI¥BHRFTEEHF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) B(E)
19. Employee benefits payable 19. BENBIEME)
(3) Defined contribution plans 3) REREE
Opening Increase in Decrease in
balance  current period current period Closing balance
Items HE HEEE RERIZ N RER D HREREE
Basic endowment insurance ERBERR 634,663.05 5,856,844.50 5,292,136.02 1,199,371.53
Unemployment insurance RERBE 26,209.54 295,826.01 300,593.38 21,442.17
Enterprise annuities TEFSHE
Total aar 660,872.59 6,152,670.51 5,592,729.40 1,220,813.70
Note:  The Group participates in social insurance programs established by government agencies as E AN B IR AR E 2 BT R R L e g R B 5T
required. According to the programs, the Group makes contributions in accordance with the 2 o IRIEFTE - AEEZRBEHBRTNEBETE
relevant regulations of local governments. Apart from these contributions, the Group has no MZEAEAFER - B ERATFERIN - AR
further payment obligations. Corresponding expenses are recognized in profit or loss or in the BErHEREE—PINEL - HENZEREE
cost of the related assets when incurred. Bt A HRIB R S A ER A ©
20. Taxes and dues payable 20. EXBE
Closing balance  Opening balance
Items BH HiREREE HER¥IERER
VAT HER 2,694,610.82 2,983,680.05
Corporate income tax EFEH 281,139.24 1,574,332.08
Real estate tax FEER 594,829.15 655,159.37
Urban maintenance and construction tax T MR 325,166.10 453,470.57
Land use tax + b {E R 405,748.61 405,748.61
Stamp duty ENFERE 215,121.30 335,618.29
Education surcharge B &M 153,719.41 212,458.60
Local education surcharge 52 B & i 102,475.19 141,634.66
Others At 8,687.89 13,029.45
Total a% 4,781,497.71 6,775,131.68
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V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE & : M EHRRETEEB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont‘d) =169,
21. Other payables 21. HMEENR
Closing balance  Opening balance
Items HA HARERE HW R

Interest payable AR
Dividends payable FEAT AR A) 12,516,288.09 15,134,758.09
Other payables H A e 55K 255,162,379.80  255,282,320.04
Total &t 267,678,667.89  270,417,078.13
21.1 Dividends payable 211 ERRA

Closing balance  Opening balance
Items BHH MRerEE H¥IeREE
Dividends on ordinary share I3 AR AR A 12,516,288.09 15,134,758.09
Total &5t 12,516,288.09 15,134,758.09
21.2 Other payables 21.2 HtEMRRK
(1) Classification of other payables by nature of payment (1) Hib N iR B E A

Closing balance  Opening balance
Nature of payment REME HRehEE BV ERTE
Engineering payments TR 132,029,874.91  120,004,934.35
Withholding fees R 49,441,162.70 43,461,475.46
Rental fees HER 14,929,668.63 24,198,791.81
Guarantee, quality assurance deposit REE F BRE 20,359,274.49 13,162,274.49
Others HA 38,402,399.07 54,454,843.93
Total |t 255,162,379.80  255,282,320.04
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

21. Other payables (Cont’d)
21.2  Other payables (Cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

(2) Significant other payables aged over 1 year

ITEMS OF THE

T AFMBBRREEREHE

B(E)

21. HAENRE)
212 EfEARAE)
(2 A FHEEEMEK

Closing balance

Reasons for non-
repayment or non-
carry-forward

REBREEN

Company name BUEE BMAR#E REAE

Entity 1 {71 11,933,539.89  Not yet settled HARLEE
Entity 2 B2 6,672,737.93  Not yet settled H&R4EE
Entity 3 B3 5,000,000.00 Not yet settled HARAEE
Entity 4 B4 4,263,353.32  Not yet settled HAR#EHE
Entity 5 {75 2,010,000.00 Not yet settled HFR4EE
Entity 6 Bf76 1,908,800.00 Not yet settled HARLEE
Total &t 31,788,431.14 —

22. Non-current liabilities due within one year

22. —HSRIHMVFERBEE

Closing balance  Opening balance

Items BHH HREREE H¥IeREE
Long-term borrowings due within 1 year —FARENREBER 48,440,275.84 1,740,000.00
Provisions due within one year —FREEREGTEE 2,510,378.31 3,874,126.65

Lease liabilities due within 1 year

—FRIHNEEAE

5,717,706.17 16,066,728.06

Total S 56,668,360.32 21,680,854.71
23. Other current liabilities 23. HttRBAaE

Closing balance Opening balance
Items BH BREREE ¥R EE
Output tax to be transferred FrEESHIaTI R 921,467.42
Total a5 921,467.42

EHERGES T

& JEE /5

BRRTBRNARRA
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V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

24. Long-term borrowings
(1) Classification of long-term borrowings

Category of borrowings

fERIER

ITEMS OF THE

T AFMBBRXREERBH

B(E)

2. REIER
(1) EHERsSE

Closing balance

MR EREE

Opening balance

HATRRER

Guaranteed loans

RIEMHER

10,203,666.67

21,000,000.00

Mortgage loans B HR{E R 2,067,735.85 2,067,735.85
Fiduciary loans ZREHR - 27,960,000.00
Total &t 12,271,402.52 51,027,735.85

Note: As at June 30, 2024, the interest rates of the Group’s long-term borrowings ranged from 3.20%

t0 5.50%.

(2) The maturity dates of long-term borrowings are analyzed below:

Category of borrowings

fERIER

i 202456 A30H - AEERBBEROMERE R

3.20%-5.50% °

) RUEEREHEIHAOT :

Closing balance

MR EREE

Opening balance
HAYEREE

Guaranteed loans

RAE K

30,615,538.89

22,700,000.00

Fiduciary loans EREXR 28,025,615.55 28,000,000.00
Mortgage loans IR {E R 2,070,523.92 2,067,735.85
Total &t 60,711,678.36 52,767,735.85

The book balances of the above borrowings
shall be repaid in the following periods:

Within one year

More than one year but less than two years
after the balance sheet date

More than two years but less than five years after
the balance sheet date

More than five years after the balance sheet date

Less: Amounts due within one year shown
under current liabilities

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities

AR R BREME R LA TS S A 2

—FR

48,440,275.84

BERERARBE—F  ETEBWMF

EEABERBBBERT  BTHBBAT 12,271,402.52

BEABERARBAERLSF

W REBEEE AR - FEREPHRIE 48,440,275.84

FREEEIE T RRIE

12,271,402.52

1,740,000.00

51,027,735.85

1,740,000.00

51,027,735.85

25. Lease liabilities 25. HEAE

Closing balance  Opening balance
Items HH HREREE B
Lease liabilities HEBE 9,779,589.01 24,373,352.43

Less: Non-current liabilities due within one year

B —FREHRSERE A E

5,717,706.17

16,066,728.06

Total

4,061,882.84

8,306,624.37

128 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

Interim Report 2024



Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
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V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # : M EHRRETEEB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) =(E)
26. Provisions 26. FEFTAE
Reason for
Closing balance  Opening balance  formation
Items BA BAREREE g ERRE
Reclamation costs L=EEE = 1,047,980.24 1,021,000.95
Pending litigation RIRFFFR 84,111.09
Product Warranty EmmERE 456,500.00
Total CEl 1,504,480.24 1,105,112.04 —
27. Share capital 27. BX

Increase/decrease in the current period (+, -)
RASBEHE(+ - -)

Transfer from

Opening Issuance of Bonus provident Closing
balance new shares shares fund to shares Others Subtotal balance
Items HE HRE BITHR i3 AESER Hito Nt BARBE
Total amount of shares [ #8%E 446,272,000.00 446,272,000.00
28. Capital reserve 28. EXRRQE
Opening Increase in Decrease in Closing
balance  current period current period balance
Items HH HAERE AHRE N FHRD HREBE
Capital premium ER(E 303,383,982.18 303,383,982.18
Other capital reserve HEADIR
Total = 303,383,982.18 303,383,982.18
29. Special reserve 29. HERME
Opening Increase in Decrease in Closing
balance  current period current period balance
Items HH HANRE A EERED HREBE
Safety production fees RELES 9,013,952.98 285,236.05 279,579.83 9,019,609.20
Total = 9,013,952.98 285,236.05 279,579.83 9,019,609.20
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V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE & : M EHRRETEEB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) =(E)
30. Surplus reserve 30. EHBAE
Opening Increase in Decrease in Closing
balance  current period current period balance
Items ER B AERE N EED HRERE
Statutory surplus reserve EEBBAE 94,909,590.28 94,909,590.28
Discretionary surplus reserve FERBHRAR
Total &t 94,909,590.28 94,909,590.28
31. Undistributed profit 31. RPOBEFE
Current period Prior period
Items EHH 7 HA 5
Closing balance in prior period EEAEAREREE 386,083,715.52  430,997,279.39
Add: Adjustment to undistributed profit at the hn o HRIR o B A AR
beginning of the period
Opening balance of the current period A E A R EE 386,083,715.52  430,997,279.39
Add: Net profits attributable to the owner of parent il : ZNEAERE IS A BT & B 5 ) H -25,485,659.24  -12,978,353.76
company in the period
Less: Withdrawal of the statutory surplus reserve B REVEE BB ATE
Withdrawal of discretionary surplus reserve REVEBRBRATE
Withdrawal of general risk reserve IR —AR R B A4
Dividends payable on ordinary share FEAT A AR AR A 14,784,560.29
Dividends on ordinary shares transferred to AR AN 7 R AR AR A
equity
Closing balance of the current period AHE R R EE 360,598,056.28  403,234,365.34
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V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # : M EHRRETEEB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont‘d) ¥(E)
32. Operating income, operating costs 32. EEWA - EERE
(1) Details of operating income and operating costs (1) EERAMEEREER
Amount incurred Amount incurred
in the current period in the prior period
Items HH FHRAEHE R
Operating Operating Operating Operating
income costs income costs
=ELON EEME EEBA —E %N
Main operations TRER 342,748,337.62  316,406,397.74  734,499,098.79  660,433,845.54

-Sales of ready-mixed concrete and
related products

—HERHERL RIEHER

317,698,942.68

295,575,977.06

704,383,662.82

636,531,727.21

-Sales of admixtures — SHESMINE 17,803,853.33  14,728,136.01  21,994,714.05  17,834,957.13
-Sales of aggregates —HEDAR 4,578,765.87 2,950,126.81
-Sales of cements and admixtures —HEKEREEHR 6,365,214.94 5,603,813.97 3,541,956.05 3,117,034.39
-Quality and technology services —EERMRH 880,326.67 498,470.70
Other businesses Hit %% 11,414,809.35 10,614,654.36 5,317,190.54 5,202,491.66
-Commissioned processing —XFEMT 5,840,417.18 6,109,427.54 2,599,148.78 4,697,740.96
-Lease —THE 969,475.21 516,829.18 2,324,955.75 483,932.79
-Others —Hfth 4,604,916.96 3,988,397.64 393,086.01 20,817.91
Total 4t 354,163,146.97 327,021,052.10 739,816,289.33 665,636,337.20
(2) Income-related information (2) WA EBAE R
Ready-mixed
concrete Quality and
and related Cements and technology Commissioned
products ~ Admixtures  Aggregates admixtures services Lease processing Others Total
RHERL
Contract category CERE] LEBER Sl DRE  KEREEH  EEKIRE g ZHMT 1) it
Income from main operations ~ TEEHMA 31769894268  17,803,853.33 6,365,214.94 880,326.67 342,748 337.62
Including: Recognition ata £ EE-EHH 317,698,942.68  17,803,853.33 636521494 88032667 342,748,337.61
certain point
Income from ther operations  EfEEHMA 96947521 584041718 460491696 1141480935
Total it 317,698,942.68  17,803,853.33 6,365,214.94 880,326.67 969475.21 584041718 4,604916.96 354,163,146.97
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B A5 R T ot ()

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

B F2024F6 H30H 1E N 1ELA

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE

T AFMBBRXREERBH

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) ¥(E)
33. Taxes and Surcharges 33. Bl KK
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items BH RERREAEER LHRR AR
Urban maintenance and construction tax P T M T R AR A 791,189.45 2,171,074.20
Education surcharges A BN 376,178.03 1,090,907.21
Local education surcharge 5 B BN 250,785.35 727,271.57
Real estate tax BEM 594,829.15 663,081.92
Land use tax i E A 405,748.61 405,748.61
Vehicle usage tax B RS 106,707.00 177,840.90
Stamp duty ENAER: 353,621.30 827,679.17
Environmental protection tax RIBIRER 8,950.58 22,194.37
Total &t 2,888,009.47 6,085,797.95
34. Selling expenses 3. HEEA
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items EHE RERE AR LA
Employee benefits B T %7 A 9,173,880.01 8,725,371.97
Business travel expenses EIRE 231,944.26 288,589.90
Others Hih 95,459.65 155,979.47
Total A&t 9,501,283.92 9,169,941.34
35. Administrative expenses 35. EHEH
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items HH AHEAEE 45 EIEARE
Employee benefits | 23,790,413.06 24,646,357.95
Intermediary fees REMTEEE 1,645,929.94 1,764,247 .62
Depreciation expenses hes 1,547,569.52 2,507,959.75
Litigation expenses AR 960,555.76 2,190,950.37
Business travel expenses EIRE 610,127.94 1,050,335.71
Amortization of intangible assets A B 431,711.92 414,580.71
Others Hih 4,009,500.73 7,642,713.80
Total &t 32,995,808.87  40,217,145.91
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V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

ITEMS OF THE

T AFMBBRREEREHE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) B¥(E)
36. Research & development expenses 36. THHEA
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items BH RERRE AR L EREE AR
Technology development funds BHRFELE 6,046,256.07 8,943,930.96
Total &t 6,046,256.07 8,943,930.96
37. Financial expenses 37. HMKEA
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items EHE REREEARE L EREE AR
Interest expenses FEBA 12,500,818.50 9,396,127.11
Less: Interest income R AEUA 615,919.37 1,160,820.83
Net gain on exchange P 5,5 Wz 8,302.01 339,059.83
Add: Net loss on exchange hn BN SR
Other expenses Hibz 1,401,554.75 635,851.69
Total &5t 13,278,151.87 8,532,098.14
38. Other income 38. Hfhz
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Sources of other income EEH M SRR RERBAER IR
Additional deduction for value-added tax EER IR 795,502.76
Personal tax handling fee refund ERFEERE 48,673.63 18,242.16
Government grants N2/ 570,000.00 1,617,229.29
Total &ast 1,414,176.39 1,635,471.45
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g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL

ITEMS OF THE

T AFMBBRXREERBH

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) B(E)
39. Investment income 39. ®REWH
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items BH AHEAZHAERE LHRR AR
Discount loss on receivables financing that meets the /@42 IEFERR ISR IR E R E ROBAIR -3,001,601.53 -986,255.89
conditions for derecognition Bx

Total &t -3,001,601.53 -986,255.89

40. Credit impairment loss 40. fERARERX
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items HH RHEREE 45 FHAZ AR
Bad debt losses on notes receivable B E IR ARIE R 6,662.35 1,050,323.27
Bad debt losses on accounts receivables PR BR IR AR I8 2K 12,322,181.96 -7,765,740.35
Bad debt losses on other receivables HAb B GREBR B R 1,780,138.07 -3,009,330.53
Total &5t 14,108,982.38 -9,724,747.61

41. Gains on asset disposal 41. BEEEBEWH:
Amount
included in
non-recurring
Amount Amount profit or loss
incurred in the incurred in the of the current
current period prior period period
TTARHEFEREM
Items EHA RHEAR AT FHEARAERE BENEHE
Gain on disposal of fixed assets EEEERE = -14,166.25 144,686.97 -14,166.25
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets FREEELEWR 1,535,473.33 1,535,473.33
Total S 1,521,307.08 144,686.97 1,521,307.08
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B H5 R M et (48D

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

BLE2024F6H30H 1F 1B A
V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE & - 6#fHiKHBRETEZEAH
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) =(E)
42. Non-operating income 42. EEIMEA
Amount
included in
non-recurring
Amount Amount profit or loss
incurred in the incurred in the of the current
current period prior period period
STALRHEREM
Items EHE AHAE AR FHAEE g BaNEE
Gain on destruction and scrapping of IERB) & ERIBREEF 1S 16,652.48 34,839.61 16,652.48
non-current assets
Litigation gains ARG 2,714,936.86 562,852.90 2,714,936.86
Others Efth 150,463.51 290,816.11 150,463.51
Total &t 2,882,052.85 888,508.62 2,882,052.85
43. Non-operating expenses 43. EEIHNZH
Amount
included in
non-recurring
profit or loss
Amount in Amount in of the current
current period prior period period
STARHFEREY
Items EHHE AESHE tHeE BaEsE
Litigation losses EiEN=FS 3,330,263.27 4,370,131.04 3,330,263.27
Losses on destruction and scrapping of FEMENE ERIBWMEEKR 98,000.87 23,221.66 98,000.87
non-current assets
Expenditures on fines Sz 424,504.91 2,929,377.50 424,504.91
Others HAh 15,863.07 133,630.49 15,863.07
Total &5t 3,868,632.12 7,456,360.69 3,868,632.12
EHERGERMRRERLIRHAR AR
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE & : M EHRRETEEB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) ¥(E)
44. Income tax expenses 44. FriBBER
(1) Income tax expenses (1) EHEHR
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items HH HEREE 45T FHAZ AR
Income tax expenses for the period EHMSHER 436,991.16 2,818,128.93
Deferred tax expenses RIEFTSHIER 2,997,336.39 -6,451,410.52
Total At 3,434,327.55 -3,633,281.59
(2) Reconciliations of accounting profit and income tax expense 2) B FHEMSHEARAERE
Amount
incurred in the
current period
Items HE N g
Total consolidated profit for the period NEAE A ERTE -24,511,130.28
Income tax expenses at statutory/applicable tax rates ¥ ATE AR R EMATSHE R -3,676,669.54
Effect of applying different tax rates to subsidiaries 2 alE A NEHR RN FE -1,809,579.51
Adjust the impact of income taxes for prior periods  FHE AT EAREI TS 60 &7 2
Impact of non-taxable income FEEFIU AR 2
Impact of non-deductible costs, expenses and losses A IEFIRIR A « B FAMIBLA L 231,840.89
Effect of using deductible losses for which no FERAARERELEMEHEEN T ENEBERENZE
deferred tax assets were recognized in prior
periods
Effect of deductible temporary differences or NERERBLEMEHEEN TN RIEER 8,688,735.71
deductible losses for which deferred income tax AENEENTE
assets are not recognized in the current period
Income tax expenses st &R 3,434,327.55
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # : M EHRRETEEB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) =B(E)
45. Items presented in cash flow statement 45. RERERIEH
(1)  Other cash received from/paid for operating/investing/financing activities (1)  IWH ‘X HHEMBEKL KE BE
EBARENESE
1) Other cash received from operating activities 1) IR E M B R B B RR €
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items HH REREEARR LA
Current account ERFK 57,300,000.00 14,796,048.85
Recovery of restricted funds Bl 2R E & 53,618,162.47
Guarantee, deposit RER  HE 4,469,172.08 5,490,116.67
Interest income FEMA 615,919.37 1,160,820.83
Government grants BB 370,000.00 1,617,229.29
Others Hih 444,027.98 394,961.20
Total SHEr 116,817,281.90 23,459,176.84
2) Other cash paid for operating activities 2) TAMEMELEFTSHEANES
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items BH RERR AR EREE AR
Current account ERK 7,525,082.56 3,040,072.51
Payment of guarantee and deposit RES - Be 701,241.00 3,667,018.10
Period costs HHEER 5,538,792.05 13,473,958.62
Payment of litigation, penalty expenses SRR - SR 3,469,263.92 5,609,578.19
Payment of restricted funds SHERES 2,813,871.39
Others Hth 984,747.40 1,132,542.03
Total Al 18,219,126.93  29,737,040.84
3) Other cash paid for financing activities 3) SINMEMESEEBFANRS
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items HH AHEAEE 45T IR
Cash paid to settle lease liabilities EEHEERINNES 848,012.64 18,590,207.98
Total a5t 848,012.64 18,590,207.98
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B A5 R T ot ()

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A
V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE # - §#tMBHRRETEEET
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont‘d) B(&)
45. Items presented in cash flow statement (Cont’d) 45. HEREBRER (F)
() Supplementary information to consolidated cash flow statement (2) EHRERERBAER
Amount in Amount in

current period prior period
Items HH THEE FHeE
1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from 1.#FABEATLLLIHREERE - -

operating activities

Net profit A -27,945,457.83 -10,634,377.73
Add: Asset impairment provision m: BEREEE

Credit impairment loss ERRMEEX -14,108,982.38 9,724,747 .61

Depreciation of fixed assets, oil and gas assets, BEEAERE  MREAENE 19,147,947.82 16,699,194.92
and productive biological assets FEEEMEETE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 25,319,616.74 14,699,038.02

Amortization of intangible assets m A ESE 586,873.96 569,742.75

Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses REVGEEREHE

Losses on disposal of fixed assets, intangible REERTAE BFAEMEMRAE -1,521,307.08 -144,686.97
assets, and other long-term assets (“-" for AEMEBR (WAl -13E71)
gains)

Losses on scrapping of fixed assets (“-" for B & E AR (e Al - 13851)) 76,348.39 -11,617.95
gains)

Losses on changes in fair value (“-" for gains) NABEZENER (WasbAl- 3E7))

Financial expenses (“-" for gains) 81758 A (URES AT - J351)) 13,373,005.90 9,125,317.27

Investment losses (“-” for gains) BEBKR (WAl -13851)) 1,547,688.75 986,255.89

Decreases of deferred tax assets (“-" for REFTSBEERR D 2,997,336.39 -6,451,410.52
increases) (3 ACAT-13851))

Increases in deferred tax liabilities (“-" for REFTSH 8 ERE M
decreases) CRIABAT-13851))

Decreases of inventory (“-" for increases) FERR D GEMBAT- 3E7) 2,150,538.19 1,086,905.97

Decrease in operating receivables (“-" for et IE B BB 157,681,261.52 67,378,082.37
increases) (3 ACAT-13851))

Increase in operating payables (“-" for i ERTTE B /3E N -302,428,977.44 -74,575,073.14
decreases) CRIABAT-13851))

Others Hfh -5,656.22 -832,914.90

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

. Significant investing and financing activities

that involve no cash receipts or payments:
Transfer of debt to capital
Convertible bonds due within one year

2AYRASUZNEARENBEES

REEDELNRSRNEFR

—FREIMO BB ARIES

-123,129,763.29

27,619,203.59

Fixed assets under financing lease MERABTEE
3. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents: 3HEERBEEEYFEBER
Closing balance of cash e ERMRE 36,137,871.84  154,697,418.06

Less: Closing balance of cash

Add: Closing balance of cash equivalents
Less: Opening balance of cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

B R H AR

m: ReFEYNERRE
B ReSEYHBIAE
ReRReZEYFEINE

69,873,194.18

-33,735,322.34

133,292,281.25

21,405,136.81
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SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE 1 :r 6t EHRRFTEEH
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) B(E)
45. Items presented in cash flow statement (Cont’d) 45. HEREBRER (F)

3) Cash and cash equivalents

3) HRENRELEEY

Closing balance

Opening balance

Items BH HAR A HYeREE
Cash BHe 36,137,871.84 69,873,194.18
Including: Cash on hand Hep: BERe

Cash at bank readily available for payment AT BER AR AT IRTTIE R 36,137,871.84 69,873,194.18

Other monetary funds readily available for

payment
Cash equivalents

Including: Investments in bonds maturing within

three months

AERARINNECERES

ReEED
Her - =8 A AZIBHEHKE

Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents RSN SEE YT 36,137,871.84 69,873,194.18
Including: Restricted cash and cash equivalents used Hr : AR EBA T A FIEHZREH
by parent company and subsidiaries of MRS MRS EEY
the Group
46. Assets with restricted ownership or use rights 46. FTERREHEZS IR NE
3
Closing book

value Reasons for restriction

Items HE HARREEE ZREE

Monetary funds E¥ES 197,029,889.10 Margin and frozen funds (RiE® « REE S
Notes receivable B EE 10,500,000.00 Pledged loans Z {5k

Accounts receivable FEURBR R 38,664,616.00 Pledged loans E {5k

Intangible assets mIAE 11,274,857.80 Mortgaged borrowings £ 5K

Total il 257,469,362.90 —
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

V. NOTES TO THE PRINCIPAL ITEMS OF THE & : M EHRRETEEB

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) B(E)
47. Foreign currency monetary items 47. MNEEMEMIEHE
Closing
foreign currency Closing
balance Exchange rate balance in RMB
BRITHE
Items HE BRSNS RRER MEEX AR
Monetary funds BE¥RES - -
Including: HKD Hrp o B 1,137,924.84 0.91268 1,038,561.24
Total &=t 1,137,924.84 0.91268 1,038,561.24
48. Government grants 48. BUFBY
Amount
included in the
current profits
Amount  Items presented or losses
FAEH
Category B &8 Hl#H=EA BENEE
Income-related government grants B Uy 55 4 B ) U 476 B 570,000.00  Other income E AUzt 570,000.00
Total &5t 570,000.00 570,000.00
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024

BLE2024F6H30H 1F 1B A
VI. CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION N BOtEERNSL
1.  Changes in the scope of consolidation for otherreasons 1. HttFEENE/HEESE)
Entities newly included in the scope of consolidation in the current period: RERFTIE A RN EBER ¢
Point when
equity is Contribution Proportion of
No. Name of company Equity acquisition method acquired amount contribution (%)
FiR  RARER ARSI IRREERS R B HEHE HELHI(%)
1 Yunjian Green Concrete Kunming Green Establishment by investment 2024-2-29 100.00
Building Materials Co., Ltd.
ERGHRERZECEMBRAR AR
2 Yunjian Green Concrete Chuxiong Green Establishment by investment 2024-3-14 100.00
Building Materials Co., Ltd.
ERGRRIEZCEMBRAR AR
3 Jiantou Group Lijiang Green Building Establishment by investment 2024-3-21 100.00
Materials Co., Ltd.
EREERIZCEMABRAR AR
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024

BE2024F6H30H 1E51EH
VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES t - EEMERPHES
1. Interests in subsidiaries 1. HEFARPHER
(1) Composition of enterprise group (1) LEEENER
Principal Registered
operating capital Shareholding ratio
Name of subsidiary location Registered place  Business nature (RMB10,000) (%) Acquisition method
BREAI(%)
Direct Indirect
EfEx
FREEH TRESH i E3ed (AR®EBR) EE BE BEHA
YCIH Polymer Materials Co., Ltd. Kunming, Yunnan ~ Kunming, Yunnan  Production and sale of concrete 3,300.00 95.00 5.00  Business combination
admixtures under common control
EHERBATHHERAR EmER EHER RETIMIBIEEAHEE R—#HT Ak
YCIH Qujing Building Materials Co., Ltd. Qujing, Yunnan Qujing, Yunnan Concrete production and sales 4,000.00 50.00 Business combination
under common control
EHERMBRIERAR e Mm% RRIEENHE A—ZH T EEAH
YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. Yuxi, Yunnan Yuxi, Yunnan Concrete production and sales 4,000.00 55.00 Business combination
under common control
EHRREERMERAA EREE EHEE RERTEENHEE R—#HT Ak
YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building Baoshan, Yunnan Baoshan, Yunnan Concrete production and sales 2,600.00 50.00 Business combination
Materials Co., Ltd. under common control
EMERRIKERNBRAR el el RRIEENHE RA—EHTARAH
YCIH Green Development Co., Ltd. Kunming, Yunnan ~ Kunming, Yunnan  Sales of concrete and its raw 3,000.00  95.00 5.00  Business combination
materials under common control
EHRREEERERAA EmER EHER R RERMHEE R—#HT ek
YCIH Aggregate Co., Ltd. Kunming, Yunnan ~ Kunming, Yunnan  Processing and sale of 2,300.00 95.00 500  Business combination
aggregates, and purchasing under common control
and selling on behalf of
others
EHERDARERAR EMEH EMEH PEHMINEE  RERH R—EHTERAH
Yunjian Green Concrete Kunming Green Kunming, Yunnan ~ Kunming, Yunnan  Concrete production and sales 10,000.00  95.00 500  Establishment by
Building Materials Co., Ltd. investment
ERGREAZEENERAR E@ER EHER RETEENHE RERY
Yunjian Green Concrete Chuxiong Green Chuxiong, Yunnan  Chuxiong, Yunnan  Concrete production and sales 2,500.00  95.00 500  Establishment by
Building Materials Co., Ltd. investment
ERGREEREENERAR Eezficl Eezficl RETEENHE RERY
Jiantou Group Lijiang Green Building Lijiang, Yunnan Lijiang, Yunnan Concrete production and sales 2,500.00  95.00 500  Establishment by
Materials Co., Ltd. investment
BREEBIZEENERAR E@ET EHET RETEENHE RERY
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024

BLE2024F6H30H 1F 1B A

VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Cont’d) +t - EHMERPNER(EF)

1. Interests in subsidiaries (Cont’d) 1. EFRAPHERE)
(2) Significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries (2) BEENHL2ETAT

Profit and loss Dividends Closing

attributable declared to balance

Minority to minority pay minority of non-

shareholding  shareholders for shareholders controlling

ratio (%) the current period during the period interests

DEHRREFR FHBEBR D AEm D ERR BRDE

Name of subsidiary FARER el (%) BRRAEE EEDTRNERF RRERRE

YCIH Qujing Building Materials Co., Ltd. EE@&HHEEMER AR 50.00 -2,589,106.07 14,149,581.88

YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. EHERR TRV BRAR 45.00 -1,013,442.35 39,038,356.84

YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building EFEERRILKEEMBRAR 50.00 1,142,749.83 24,893,691.20

Materials Co., Ltd.

Notes: 1) According to the articles of association of YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building Materials Co., Ltd.,

the shareholders’ meeting shall be held by the shareholders to exercise their voting rights in
accordance with the proportion of capital contribution. For general resolutions, including issues
related to the Company’s production, operation, and management that do not involve changes in
business registration matters, the Company’s consent is sufficient. In addition, the Company has
the power to appoint a majority of the members of the Board. Therefore, the Company is able
to control the operation and financial decisions of YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building Materials
Co., Ltd.

2) According to the articles of association of YCIH Qujing Building Materials Co., Ltd., the shareholders’

meeting shall be held by the shareholders to exercise their voting rights in accordance with the
proportion of capital contribution. With respect to matters of significance in the Company’s
day-to-day business activities, the exercise of its voting rights shall be consistent with that of the
Company, unless it constitutes a material detriment to the rights and interests of other shareholders.
In addition, the Company has the power to appoint a majority of the members of the Board.
Therefore, the Company is able to control the operation and financial decisions of YCIH Qujing
Building Materials Co., Ltd.

1)

2)

THERGERUEREREIRNERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B A5 R T ot ()

For the six months ended June 30, 2024

HE2024F6 HA30H 1F 518 A
VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Cont’d) + - EHMERPHERE)
1. Interests in subsidiaries (Cont’d) 1. HTETFATHHERE)
(3) Key financial information of significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries  (3) BEEF2EFARNETENBER
Closing balance
HRHE
Non-current Current Non-current

Current assets assets Total assets liabilities liabilities  Total liabilities
Name of subsidiary FARER RBEE FRBEE BEAT RBEE FRBEE BEAH
YCIH Qujing Building Materials Co., Ltd. ~ ZEREHFEERNERA] 91,731,094.82  14,909,523.68 106,640,618.50  78,341,454.75 78,341,454.75
YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. EREREZENBRAR 189,518,755.10  35,586,298.48 225,105,053.58 136,993,977.98  2,403,666.67 139,397,644.65
YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building EERERIKERMBERAR  119817,281.71  7,902,543.12  127,719,824.83  76,368,215.47  1,564,226.93  77,932,442.40

Materials Co., Ltd.
Opening balance
e
Non-current Current Non-current

Current assets assets Total assets liabilities liabilities  Total liabilities
Name of subsidiary SRS TEEE FRBEE BEAH REEE FrRBaE BfEAT
YCIH Qujing Building Materials Co., Ltd. ~ EERZHBENERAA 136,170,604.84  16,899,757.45 153,070,362.29 118,776,079.34 817,875.11  119,593,954.45
YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. ERRREEENERAR 173,676,944.18  38,711,990.84 212,388,935.02 113,025944.16  11,419,830.37 124,445,774.53
YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building EERRRIKEEMARLDR 14472549599  4,587,395.72 149,312,891.71 101,828,729.62 101,828,729.62

Materials Co., Ltd.

Amount incurred in the current period

Amount incurred in the prior period

AERER LEREE
Cash flows
Total from Total Cash flows
Operating comprehensive operating Operating comprehensive from operating
income Net profit income activities income Net profit income activities
Yt | )
Name of subsidiary FRRER BEHA FAE  GRUEEE e EEHA FHE  GakasE e
YCIH Qujing Building Materials Co., ltd. ~ EERREEENERAR 443534210 517821215 -5,178,212.15 60067036 50,01543153  -5335,667.02 -5335,667.02  -8,041,335.49
YCH Yuxi Building Materials Co,, Ltd. ~ ERERTZRMARAR 2,440,08200 225209412 225209412 2,635827.13 9180261429 656563196 656563196 -23,379,436.06
YCIH Baoshan Yongchang Building EEERRIUKERMARAR 2912515057 228549966 228549966  -400,631.15 11701463063 2,413855.40 241385540  9,121,113.53

Materials Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

VIIl. RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk
(primarily foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk.
The Group'’s overall risk management plan focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets, striving to reduce the potential adverse impact on its financial results.

1. Market risk

(1) Exchange rate risk

The Group’s main operations are located in China and its main business is settled
in RMB. The Group's recognized foreign-currency assets and future foreign-currency
transactions (foreign currency assets and liabilities and foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in USD and HKD) are exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Group
continuously monitors the size of foreign currency transactions and foreign currency
assets to minimize exposure to exchange rate risk; as at June 30, 2024, the Group had
no foreign currency borrowings, and the Group may enter into forward foreign exchange
contracts for the purpose of hedging exchange rate risk. The Group did not enter into
any forward foreign exchange contracts or currency swap contracts during the period.

Although the Group conducts its business in the PRC and receives revenue and pays
costs and expenses in RMB, the Company is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and raises funds denominated in HKD. Fluctuations in exchange rates have an impact
on the foreign currency funds held by the Group. As at June 30, 2024, and December
31,2023, the amounts of foreign-currency financial assets and foreign-currency financial
liabilities held by companies within the Group whose carrying currency is RMB are
translated into RMB as follows:

Items EHE

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

N - EHERT BEEBRERE
AEENRL LD eEESRERRER - B
miZER(EERIIMNERBRMMERR) - F/
AR E R o AL B R A R E R
SHHERTSENTAEEMY - AR E AR
SEMBEENEETNZE -

1. TWEERRE

(1) EREE
AEBNEZEEMNFBIEAR - E2EBKMU
ARBGEE o REBDBRNINEEE R KK
MINER Z(INEBEF B BERINER SHETE
BEMEIZAETNEE)FEINERR - ~5H
REEEINER ZMINEBEEMRE + UHEK
EEREmERMEXRR 12024568308 -
REBENSER  NEBAESUEE R
SNEB XM AR AERRBEXZRROE R -
AEERPABRETMEHINESHKERE
BEHR ©

BEREERPERARRER  WAAREK
WEURA R AR AMER - BARRBRES
BEZRT ET - WEBUBETENES - EX
HRBIHAEBRAENIINEESE —ETE -
MR2024%6 A30H £2023F12A318H » AEE
NEREALEAARBHARFENINE S H
EEMINEREBENENAREN IR
R

Closing balance

HRERER

Opening balance

HATER R

Monetary funds BE¥Ew

1,038,561.24 1,495,204.30

As at June 30, 2024, for the Group's financial assets denominated in foreign currencies,
if RMB had strengthened or weakened by 10% against HKD and other factors remained
unchanged, the Group’s net profit would have been decreased or increased by
approximately RMB88,277.71.

202456 A308 + R AEERINESRE
E o MRAREUEEAEREEI0% @ Hi
EE=RFAE - QRSB GR35 % F)E
AR#88,277.717T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

VIIl. RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Cont’d)
1. Market risk (Cont’d)
(2) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from bank deposits, short-term borrowings,
long-term borrowings, and lease liabilities. Financial assets and financial liabilities with
floating interest rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and financial
assets and financial liabilities with fixed interest rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group adjusts the relative proportion of contracts at a fixed rate
and contracts at a floating rate based on the market situation.

The finance department at the Group’s head office monitors the level of the Group’s
interest rates on an ongoing basis. A rise in interest rates would increase the cost of new
interest-bearing debt and interest expense on the Group’s outstanding interest-bearing
debt at floating rates and have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial results,
and management makes timely adjustments based on the latest market conditions, which
may be in the form of interest rate swap arrangements to reduce interest rate risk. The
Group had no interest rate swap arrangements during the period.

As at June 30, 2024, if the interest rate on borrowings at a variable rate had increased
or decreased by 100 basis points, with all other factors held constant, the Group’s net
profit would have decreased or increased by RMB108,379.45.

2. Credit risk

The Group manages credit risk on a portfolio basis. Credit risk arises primarily from
monetary funds, notes receivable, accounts receivable, receivables financing, and other
receivables.

The Group's bank deposits are mainly placed with state-owned banks, other large and
medium-sized listed banks, and finance companies under YCIH Group, which the Group
considers to be free from significant credit risk and will incur almost no significant losses
due to bank defaults.

For notes receivable, accounts receivable, receivables financing, and other receivables,
the Group sets relevant policies to control credit risk exposure. The Group assesses
the credit quality of and sets credit limits on its customers by taking into account their
financial position, the availability of guarantees from third parties, their credit history,
and other factors such as current market conditions. The credit history of the customers
is regularly monitored by the Group. In respect of customers with a poor credit history,
the Group will use written payment reminders, or shorten or cancel credit periods, to
ensure the overall credit risk of the Group is limited to a controllable extent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

VIIl. RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont’d)

2. Credit risk (Cont’d)

In addition, financial guarantees and loan commitments may give rise to risks due to
defaults by counterparties. The Group has established strict application and approval
requirements for financial guarantees and loan commitments, takes into account both
internal and external credit ratings and other information, and continuously monitors
credit risk exposures, changes in the credit ratings of counterparties, and other relevant
information to ensure that the overall credit risk is within a manageable range.

As at June 30, 2024, the Group had no significant collateral held as a result of debtor
mortgages and had no other credit enhancements.

The Group’s accounts receivable mainly consist of concrete receivables. The sales
contracts have agreed on payment ratios and policies have been adopted to control
credit risk exposure. Other receivables mainly consist of performance bonds for sales
contracts, security deposits for land and building rentals, and imprest borrowed by the
Company’s employees. The Group evaluates the credit risk before the formation of
claims and subsequently monitors the credit status of the major debtors on a regular
basis, and adopts the methods of written reminders, shortening the credit period and
requesting guarantees from the counterparties for those with poor credit records, so as
to keep the Group's overall credit risk within the controllable range.

Quantitative data on the Group's credit risk exposures arising from accounts receivable
and other receivables, etc. are disclosed in the respective notes.

3. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to obtain sufficient funds in a
timely manner to meet its business development needs or to pay its debts as they fall
due, as well as to meet other payment obligations.

The Group’s organ is responsible for monitoring the cash flow forecasts of subsidiaries,
branches, and project divisions. On the basis of summarizing the cash flow forecasts
of subsidiaries, branches, and project divisions, the organ continuously monitors the
short-term and long-term funding requirements at the corporate level to ensure that
adequate cash reserves are maintained; it also continuously monitors compliance with
the borrowing agreements and obtains commitments from major financial institutions
to provide sufficient standby funds to meet short and long term funding requirements.

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

N EemT BEAEREGE

2. fEHRRKGE)

BEAN - RS R AR E AR S
FHEATELRR  AEEYHBEENE
HESHTTRENHENSHER - BAZ
BANBEAERZEN  FEEREAAR
WO - 2 BEF AR B R
B EREREARRETROBER -

MR2024F6 A30H @ AEBEEANEEBELEA
EHRMIFH O ERY S E S RGR -

AEEREEREZAEYCRRELR - HES
FIEHIE TR B - I BRENAR B8 B DA F22 1
ERARBMA - ROEYREZ/RITHES
RMENRES  HHEENRES AR AT
BTHEXHNERSSE  ARBAEKEEAT
EEARR  RETHHEIBREEK ST ERMRR
ETEE  HERTEIRNEHETRENER
el - BREERY  BERUTREERES
X EASERBERRRENZEHER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

VIII. RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont’d)

3. Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The maturity period of each of the Group'’s financial liabilities based on the undiscounted

contractual cash flows is analyzed as follows:

N - EE@T AR (A

3. RBREEGE)
FAEESESRABRAARANARARSRE
FrEMEIEARA AT :

June 30, 2024 2024564300
Within one year 1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years Total
Items EH —FHUR -3=F - -3 BELE a5t
Short-term borrowings REER 430,402,919.04 430,402,919.04
Notes payable eSS 214,004,698.88 214,004,698.88
Accounts payable JERERR 1,768,295,147.01 1,768,295,147.01
Other payables HEREAR 267,678,667.89 267,678,667.89
Long-term borrowings REGET 50,755,684.05 10,358,014.87 2,185,183.25 63,298,882.17
Lease liabilities MERE 8,279,463.86 2,070,977.33 576,675.12 917,288.00 11,844,404.31
Total A&t 2,739,416,580.73  12,428,992.20 2,761,858.37 917,288.00 2,755,524,719.30
December 31, 2023 20234 12H31H
Within one year 1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years Total
Items BH —EHR —3=%F —HAREF AERE At
Short-term borrowings FEHERE R 391,531,028.06 391,531,028.06
Notes payable ERRE 406,620,384.55 406,620,384.55
Accounts payable FERTERR 1,878,323,338.46 1,878,323,338.46
Other payables HERNH 270,417,078.13 270,417,078.13
Long-term borrowings RERER 4,411,288.65  49,688,540.00 2,319,356.33 56,419,184.98
Lease liabilities HEAE 19,339,593.80 4,580,791.44 3,862,500.90 1,617,032.51 29,399,918.65
Total A&t 2,970,642,711.65  54,269,331.44 6,181,857.23 1,617,032.51 3,032,710,932.83

The Group's current liabilities, including short-term borrowings, notes payable, accounts
payable, and other payables, are all expected to be due and payable within one year.

Each subsidiary within the Group is responsible for its own cash flow forecasts. On the
basis of summarizing the cash flow forecasts of subsidiaries, the finance department of
the head office continuously monitors short-term and long-term funding requirements at
the Group level to ensure that adequate cash reserves and readily realizable marketable
securities are maintained, and continuously monitors compliance with borrowing
agreements and obtains commitments from major financial institutions to provide
sufficient standby funds to meet short- and long-term funding requirements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

IX. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

1.  Closing fair value of assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

B H5 R M et (48D

For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

N 2ABENESE

1. HURABEFENEENERE
AR 2 R EE

Closing fair value

MRDAEE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

fair value fair value fair value
measurement measurement measurement Total

E-EBRAA BEZERAA BEZERAA
Items HH BETE BETE BETE &5t
I. Fair value measurements on a —  BENAREENE - - - -

recurring basis

Receivables financing W IERE 3,999,830.71 3,999,830.71

Total assets measured at fair value on FEUAARBEFENEELE
a recurring basis
Il. Fair value measurements on a non-

CRRENAABENE -

recurring basis

3,999,830.71 3,999,830.71

2. Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but
disclosed at fair value

The Group's financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost mainly

include notes receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables, short-term borrowings,

payables, and long-term borrowings. As at June 30, 2024, there were no significant

differences between the book values and fair values of financial assets and financial

liabilities not measured at fair value.

2. TUAAARBETFTEEBUQAE
BERENEENERE

AEBUESBKRATENSREENSRARE

ERE: BRERE - BRER - HibElk
A RHER  ENRENMRBERSE - B
2024F6A30H  TUARBEAENESHE
ENcpREENEEEENAABEZRES
REE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

B A5 R T ot ()

For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS + - BB A REBEERZ S

1.  Related party relationships (—) B Bk 5 B R
(1) Controlling shareholders and ultimate controlling party R R R B ARERS
1) Controlling shareholders and ultimate controlling party (1) AR AR R R R AR ) T
Registered Shareholding  Ratio of voting
Name of controlling shareholders and Place of capital ratio in the rights in the
ultimate controlling party registration Nature of business (RMB10,000) Company (%) Company (%)
&R HAENTHN HAQTFM
BERBRRRGREHS AR it EBHE (AR¥ETR) BREAI(%)  RRELLHI(%)
Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Kunming, Yunnan Building 10,347,024.71 51.22 51.22
Group Co., Ltd. Construction
EHAERREEREEERD EHEH BERT
Note:  The ultimate controlling party of the Company is the State-owned Assets Supervision and 3 /N 75’]5’”?1%‘]7?%%@%)\Eﬁﬁﬁ§§
Administration Commission of Yunnan Provincial People’s Government. EEEEEE
2) The registered capital of controlling shareholders and its changes (2) ZRRAR R KO A AR R H (b
Increase in Decrease in
Opening balance current period current period Closing balance
Controlling shareholder ERBR BNRE REE N KEHD BRBE
Yunnan Construction and Investment EHEER }xﬁrﬂxﬁ 103,470,247,051.66 103,470,247,051.66
Holding Group Co., Ltd. EBRA
3) Shares or equity held by the controlling shareholder and their changes (3) 72 IS RS 3R Y BT B9 Bk e ok B HL b
Amount of shareholding Shareholding ratio (%)
BRE BRIH(%)
Ratio at the
Ratio at the end beginning of
Closing balance Opening balance of the period the period
Controlling shareholder BERER HABE HE HiR LA k4]
Yunnan Construction and Investment EHERER ?xﬁ}”ﬂi‘i 228,600,000.00 228,600,000.00 51.22 51.22
Holding Group Co., Ltd. EERA
(2) Subsidiaries 2 Epe
For details of subsidiaries, please refer to “Note VII. 1. Interests in subsidiaries F ARG R LA+ 1. EFA TR AR
(1) Composition of enterprise group”. = (N EEBENBK IBERES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)
1. Related party relationships (Cont’d)

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

T BMAIRBEBIS (&

(=) BB LEERE)

(3) Other related parties 3. HiEaus s
Name of other related parties Relationship with the Company
HABAm S 558 BEARTEE
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries (including Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Controlling shareholder group
Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries)
TEEREERETAR(BEEEAERREEREBERA A RATFAR) PERRAR R SR B
Yongchang Industrial Development Group (including Baoshan Yongchang Industrial Non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
Development (Group) Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries)
KEEFEREE(BERLUTKEEXER(EE)ERARIRAETFRAR) FRAEIMDEARR
KMEIC Group (Including Kunming Economic and Technological Development Zone Shareholders holding more than 5% of the
Investment Development(Group) Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries) Company'’s voting shares
EREBE(DERAKERTRAZERKERE(KE)ERARIRATFAR) FEARRFIS% A EFRIRER D HARR
2.  Related transactions (=) B¥R3
(1) Related transactions for the purchase and sale of goods and the provision 1. BiEm  RUNESEBNEBERS
and receipt of labor services
1) Purchase of goods/Receipt of labor services (1) R, XS
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
Related parties Content of related transactions current period prior period
B BHIZAR REBAER FHAEARR
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries Purchase of goods 131,564,852.34  143,059,951.41
EEEREERATAA BEEm
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries Building construction 5,619,816.25 1,367,462.55
EEEREERAETAA BEMT
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries Interest expenses 143,966.67 165,266.68
EHRREEREFAR MBS
Total 137,328,635.26 144,592,680.64
ait
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

g E =)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS + * BB AR (&
(Cont’d)

2. Related transactions (Cont’d)
(1) Related transactions for the purchase and sale of goods and the provision 1.

(=) BER5Z (&)
WEER - RENEZEBOEBRS

and receipt of labor services (Cont’d) (#&)
2) Sales of goods/Provision of labor services (2) HEMmmIREEH
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
Related parties Content of related transactions current period prior period
2]y BHIXZAR REAERE [ HAEE AR

YCIH Group and its subsidiaries
EEEREERATAA

YCIH Group and its subsidiaries
EEEREERATAA

Yongchang Industrial Development Group

KEEFEREE

Sales of goods
HER M
Interest income
FEWA
Sales of goods

HE Hm

249,348,141.05  527,885,224.36

18,560.83

35,692.51

1,680,986.29

Total

At

249,366,701.88  529,601,903.16

(2) Related leases
1) Leasing

2. BEHASEER
(1 HARE R

Lease income

recognized in the

Lease income
recognized in the

Name of lessee Type of leased assets current period prior period
AELER HEEERSE AHBEANEERA CHRROEERA
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries Equipment 674,342.49 496,991.15
TEEREENRAETAE B4

2) Tenancy

(2) AAER
Lease payments
recognized in the

Lease payments
recognized in the

Name of lessor Type of leased assets current period prior period
HES BB HELEEER THEANEHEE FEmRNEEE
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries Land, buildings, equipment 681,348.80 711,365.88

TRRIREERA T AT

i BE - &E
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

B H5 R M et (48D

For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

T BBAIRBBIS (&)

(Cont’d)
2. Related transactions (Cont’d) (=) B 5 (&)
(3) Related guarantees 3. B H R BN
1) As a guarantor (1) ERERA
Whether the
Guarantee guarantee
Guaranteed Guarantee maturity has been
amount  start date date fulfilled
BRES
Name of the guaranteed party WEREER EREE HBRERKA ERIEMA EREITRE
YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. EMEREEEMARAA 2,700,000.00 2022-12-23  2025-12-20  No &
YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. EMEREEEMARDA 10,000,000.00  2023-9-21 2025-6-23 No &
YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. EMEREEEMARAA 30,000,000.00  2024-3-7 2025-5-31 No &
YCIH Polymer Materials Co., Ltd. EHERES TMRAERAR 5,000,000.00  2023-7-25 2024-7-24 No &
YCIH Polymer Materials Co., Ltd. EHERES TMRARAR 5,000,000.00 2023-8-29 2024-8-29 No &
YCIH Polymer Materials Co., Ltd. EHERES TMRARAR 5,000,000.00 2023-9-28 2024-9-28 No &
YCIH Polymer Materials Co., Ltd. EHERES TMRARAR 9,800,000.00  2023-9-28 2025-3-27 No &
YCIH Aggregate Co., Ltd. EHERYARABRAR 7,800,000.00  2024-6-28 2025-7-27 No &
YCIH Aggregate Co., Ltd. EHERYARABRAR 10,000,000.00  2024-6-18 2024-12-31 No &
Total =) 85,300,000.00
(4) Funds borrowed from and to related parties 4. BB S E S iRE
Amount Maturity

borrowed Start date date Note
Name of related parties )yt FELE BHE E#A B
Borrowing HA
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries EHEREERETAR 18,000,000.00 2024-1-23 2024-1-25
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries EHEREERETAR 20,000,000.00 2024-2-23 2024-2-28
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries EHEREERETAR 30,000,000.00 2024-3-7 2024-3-14
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries EHEREERETAR 15,000,000.00 2024-3-8 2024-3-12
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries EHEREERETAR 8,000,000.00 2024-3-28 2024-3-29
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries EHEREERETAR 20,000,000.00 2024-4-24 2024-4-29
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries EHEREERETAR 20,000,000.00  2024-4-29 2024-5-17
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries EHEREERETAR 5,000,000.00 2024-5-22 2024-5-24
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries EHEREERETAR 10,000,000.00  2024-5-22 2024-6-14
YCIH Group and its subsidiaries EHEREERETAR 30,000,000.00 2024-6-17 2024-6-21

Total

PAS
=)

ok

176,000,000.00
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024

B F2024F6 H30H 1E N 1ELA

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS + - BB E RS ()

(Cont’d)

2. Related transactions (Cont’d)
(5) Remuneration of key management personnel

(Z) BBX5 (&)
5. HWREEASHH

Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period

Items name HE A AHEAEE AT FHAEE AR
Total remuneration 2 = 1,743,909.97 1,901,633.47

3. Balances of related party transactions

(=) BB EIREREE

(1) Items receivable 1. EYER
Items name Related parties Closing balance Opening balance
HEEW )b HARERE HEER
Book balance Bad debt provision Book balance  Bad debt provision
ARE BRER BRRER RESE BEERERE
Monetary funds YCIH Group and its subsidiaries 3,466,643.46 7,778,486.79

g¥ES EHRRERRAEFRAE
Accounts receivable YCIH Group and its subsidiaries  2,867,529,246.73 25,035,945.52  2,995,657,822.60 24,529,086.93
AR EHRRERNAEFRA
Accounts receivable KMEIC Group 1,934,924.30 1,934,924.30 1,939,344.30 1,935,042.71
[EAER R BIREE
Notes receivable YCIH Group and its subsidiaries 25,570,142.69 35,667.26 31,917,751.35 12,533.53
eSS EHRRERRAEFRAE
Prepayments YCIH Group and its subsidiaries 2,681,214.01
AR HIE EHERERREFAT
Other receivables YCIH Group and its subsidiaries 8,479,956.99 1,113,684.32 7,801,758.00 1,014,377.43
H fth R EHRRERRAEFRA
(2) Items payable 2. EIEE

Closing book Opening book
Items name Related parties balance balance
HE AR BAm FRERE SRS HAY)BR TE BARE

Accounts payable
FEATER X

Other payables

H b fE 5K
Payable dividends
JEAT AR F)
Payable dividends
JEATRE A
Contract liabilities
aREE

Lease liabilities
HEBE

Notes payable
ANE ST

YCIH Group and its subsidiaries
TR ER REFAA

YCIH Group and its subsidiaries
EHEREEREFAF

YCIH Group and its subsidiaries
EEEREERATAR
KMEIC Group

KR E

YCIH Group and its subsidiaries
EHEREEREFAR

YCIH Group and its subsidiaries
EEEREERATAR

YCIH Group and its subsidiaries
TR ER REFAR

120,194,195.43

67,350,319.79

1,704,488.80

1,071,392.96

3,441,322.89

1,462,921.11

36,908,933.31

119,821,948.35

73,168,231.50

1,704,488.80

1,071,392.96

7,292,029.95

2,564,605.07
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024

HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A
Xl. CONTINGENCIES - HEER
1. Guarantees provided by the Group to other entities as of June 30, 2024 1. B £20245F6A30H - XEEAHME
R HERIE R
Guaranteed
Guaranteed entity Type of guarantee amount
WIRRE ERER EReE
I. Intra-group
— £EHA
YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. Joint liability guarantee 42,700,000.00
TR REM AR AR EEEEER
YCIH Polymer Materials Co., Ltd. Joint liability guarantee 24,800,000.00
EEERE S TMEERAR BEEFER
YCIH Aggregate Co., Ltd. Joint liability guarantee 17,800,000.00
TR ARBR AT EEEEER
Subtotal of intra-group guarantees 85,300,000.00
SERERDE
Total 85,300,000.00
&t
2. Except for the above contingencies, as of June 30, 2024, the Group has no 2. BT/ Euisk B BB - B ZE2024%F6
other significant contingencies that require disclosure. A308 - AEEEAMTEREMNEXN
HBEEHE o
= At
Xll. COMMITMENTS T EEEIR
As of June 30, 2024, the capital expenditure commitments contracted by the Group B ZE2024F6A30H * REBE L) M = ARE
and not yet presented in the balance sheet: BEABRIITHEARME S HEAE
Closing balance  Opening balance
Term HAPR HRehEE HAYEREE
Within 1 year 1EAA 76,463,253.70 22,374,705.85
1-2 years 1-24F 5,482,663.37 28,505,913.28
2 years later 2 LATR 910,000.00 35,643,192.73
Total ait 82,855,917.07  86,523,811.86
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1~ 1EA

XIll. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

1. Dividend

On March 31, 2023, the Board proposed the distribution of a final dividend
of RMB0.0331 per share for the year 2022, amounting to a total amount of
RMB14,784,560.29 calculated based on the total number of shares in issue of
446,272,000. The abovementioned dividend was approved by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting held on May 30, 2023.

On August 28, 2023 and March 28, 2024, the Board did not propose the distribution
of an interim dividend for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and a final dividend
for the year 2023, respectively.

On August 27, 2024, the Board did not propose the distribution of an interim
dividend for the six months ended June 30, 2024.

2. Other matters

According to the Notice of Execution received by the Group from the court as of August
27, 2024, RMB84,861,298.77 was frozen by the court due to litigation, of which
RMB1,666,444.52 had been withheld by execution.

XIV. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1. Segment information

The Group's income and contribution to consolidated results primarily arise from the
research and development, production and sales of ready-mixed concrete and related
products, which are treated as a single operating segment in a manner consistent with
the utilization of information as a basis for resource management and performance
appraisal to be reported internally to the Group’s senior management. In addition, all
assets used by the Group are located in Mainland China. Therefore, there is no segment
information presented by profit, assets and liabilities other than the disclosure of the
entity as a whole.
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XV.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL t1i B AT BEHRRETEEHE

STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY T
1.  Accounts receivable . EBWERR
(1) Accounts receivable presented according to the bad debt accrual method (1) FEURFIRERET R A D BT
Closing balance
BREE
Book balance Bad debt provision
REGE RIRER
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Accrual ratio (%) Book value
Category 55l K] EeA1(%) £ FTREAI(%) FHEE
Bad debt provision on an individual basis ~ KEEFREHRER
Bad debt provision by portfolio REAHRERER 3,003,728,803.73 10000  61,009,133.63 2.03 2,942,719,670.10
Including: Aging portfolio Hb: R 3,003,728,803.73 100.00 61,009,133.63 2.03  2,942,719,670.10
Total it 3,003,728,803.73 100.00 61,009,133.63 2.03 2,942,719,670.10
Opening balance
AT
Book balance Bad debt provision
RRSE SRER
Amount Proportion (%) Amount  Accrual ratio (%) Book value
Category 5 ki (%) i FTHREAI(%) RAEE
Bad debt provision on an individual basis ~ HEEREHRER
Bad debt provision by portfolio BRI ER 3,068,044,032.18 100.00 72,015,578.73 235 2,996,028,453.45
Including: Aging portfolio Heb : RS 3,068,044,032.18 100.00 72,015,578.73 2.35  2,996,028,453.45
Total it 3,068,044,032.18 100.00 72,015,578.73 235  2,996,028,453.45
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024

B F2024F6 H30H 1E N 1ELA

XV. NOTES TO MAIN

ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL Ti BAFMBEHERFTEEH

STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Cont’d) TR (E)

1.  Accounts receivable (Cont’d)
(1) Accounts receivable presented according to the bad debt accrual method (1) FEWARFIRERET RS £ 2 85I R ()

1. BWERR(AE)

(Cont’d)
1) Bad debt provision for accounts receivable by portfolio 1) RBEFHREUR IR AR EE
a. Aging portfolio — YCIH Group and its subsidiaries a. BREAS —EMEREEREFAR
Closing balance
HRERE
Bad debt Accrual
Book balance provision ratio (%)
Aging B AR BRER RERER FHREEBI(%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 1EAR(E14E) 782,462,074.68 3,816,431.51 0.49
1-2 years 1-24F 673,304,843.11 3,248,045.46 0.48
2-3 years 2-34F 408,410,181.29 2,959,859.51 0.72
3-4 years 3-44F 733,421,346.56 4,882,938.90 0.67
4-5 years 4-5% 26,331,827.92 175,310.83 0.67
Over 5 years S E
Total &5t 2,623,930,273.56 15,082,586.21 0.57
b. Aging portfolio — Third parties and other related parties b. BREQABE — 175 7 TR 72 e EL fth B
Closing balance
HAREREE
Bad debt Accrual
Book balance provision ratio (%)
Aging BRiR IRMEEREE HIRERE sHREEBI(%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year) TFAAR(E1F) 78,579,249.87 2,759,231.83 3.51
1-2 years 1-24F 86,099,147.01 4,733,485.42 5.50
2-3 years 2-3%F 101,912,594.50 6,946,783.30 6.82
3-4 years 3-44F 73,037,500.83 8,973,059.64 12.29
4-5 years 4-5%F 24,556,405.75 6,900,355.02 28.10
Over 5 years SFLAE 15,613,632.21 15,613,632.21 100.00
Total At 379,798,530.17  45,926,547.42 12.09
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Cont’d)

1.  Accounts receivable (Cont’d)

(2) Accounts receivable presented by aging

The aging analysis of accounts receivable (including related party receivables) based on
the transaction dates is as follows:

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

Th BARMBHRREERHE
g (4F)

1. BUWERMR(E)
@)  ERERNKERERIIT

RIER 5 A B e AR R (215 R 77 18 AR
FORBREBRAMAT :

Closing balance

Aging RiER HAREREE
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 1FEAR(E1E) 861,041,324.55
1-2 years 1-24 759,403,990.12
2-3 years 2-3%F 510,322,775.79
3-4 years 3-44F 806,458,847.39
4-5 years 4-5% 50,888,233.67
Over 5 years S5 LA E 15,613,632.21
Total il 3,003,728,803.73
(3) Bad debt provision for accounts receivable in current period (3) ZRHA FE U R R BR E AR R
Amount of change in current period
rHREHLE

Opening Recovery or Carry-forward Closing

balance Accrual reversal  or write-off Others balance
Category 5l BT BE= KERER B Hitr BRBE
Bad debt provision for accounts  EUBEFRRER 72,015,578.73 11,006,445.10 61,009,133.63

receivable
Total ait 72,015,578.73 11,006,445.10 61,009,133.63
ETHERGESMUREERLIBROBRAR 159
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL TH BATMBHERXRETEIEHB

STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Cont’d) aRE(E)
1.  Accounts receivable (Cont’d) 1. BWERRGE)
(4) Accounts receivable of the top five closing balances, grouped by party  (4) BRRRFFENHRAEAN T ERER
in arrears BRRER
As a percentage
of the total

closing balance
of accounts Closing balance of

Company name Closing balance  Aging receivable (%) bad debt provision

1 FE W B R R 8RB
BuEBE HIRERER  BRER BETBHLLHI(%) IEIRERNREGE
Entity 1 1,086,543,189.06  Within 1 year, 1-5 years 36.17 7,233,937.26
vl 1A~ 1-54F
Entity 2 408,166,392.32  Within 1 year, 1-2 years 13.59
B2 1EAR - 1-24F
Entity 3 133,341,479.36  Within 1 year, 1-4 years 4.44 887,754.77
v 1E AR - 1-44F
Entity 4 132,443,853.50  Within 1 year, 1-5 years 4.41 881,778.60
Fhia 1A~ 1-54F
Entity 5 104,818,059.67  Within 1 year, 1-4 years 3.49 697,852.86
vy 1A~ 1-44F
Total 1,865,312,973.91 62.10 9,701,323.49
At
2.  Other receivables 2. HbEWRR

Closing balance  Opening balance

Items BHH BRerEE R EREE
Interest receivable FEWF 2
Dividends receivable JF& Wi B ) 31,672,818.93 31,672,818.93
Other receivables H b 8 YWk 50,861,045.47  103,264,723.60
Total At 82,533,864.40  134,937,542.53
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024

HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A
XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL +I1 BARHKEHRERETEER
STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Cont’d) At ()
2.  Other receivables (Cont’d) 2. HttEWR(E)
2.1 Dividends receivable 2.1 FE U AR F
(1) Classification of dividends receivable (1) FEU AR T 5> 48
Closing balance  Opening balance
Investee WIREB N HiREREE HAERER
YCIH Green Development Co., Ltd. TG EEREGRAT 24,385,146.20 24,385,146.20
YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. TR EREM AR AT 7,287,672.73 7,287,672.73
Total &&t 31,672,818.93 31,672,818.93
) Significant dividends receivable aged over 1 year () EEZMIRERER 1 F 8 ERAZF
Whether
impairment has
occurred and
Reasons for the basis for
Investee Closing balance Aging non-recovery judgment
REERERER
BIREE HAREREE BRR RUEEE H Y B k&
YCIH Green Development Co., Ltd. 24,385,146.20 2-3 years Not yet paid No
EHEEZEERERAR 2-3% EESAN] B
YCIH Yuxi Building Materials Co., Ltd. 7,287,672.73 1-2 years, 2-3 years Not yet paid No
EHEREREMBERRA 1-24F ~ 235 AR ST &
Total 31,672,818.93 - — —
&t
2.2 Other receivables 2.2 H{th FE LR

(1

Classification of other receivables by nature of payment

(1

Hip el iR A E S 1R

Closing book Opening book

balance balance

Nature of payment MIEME HKERE#REE HRA AR fR%E
Related party transactions A 7 7 2R 43,094,840.67 96,772,104.72
Imprest, deposit, margin HRe W - RES 7,509,642.93 6,504,357.01
Transactions with other units HAh B R 4,708,522.98 6,711,894.21
Less: Bad debt provision for other receivables & : E-fth fE U FUZER 4,451,961.11 6,723,632.34

Total

&t

50,861,045.47

103,264,723.60

EHERGES T

b 38

BE JEE /A

RERMHDERR A
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024

B F2024F6 H30H 1E N 1ELA

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL TH BATMBHERXRETEIEHB

STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Cont’d)

2. Other receivables (Cont’d)

2.2 Other receivables (Cont’d)

i (E)
2. EHiEWR(E)

22 HsFEWRRK(H)

(2) Bad debt provision for other receivables () H AR R EE TR B
Phase | Phase I Phase IlI Total
E—RR BB FE=E
Expected credit
Expected credit losses over
losses over the the entire
Expected credit entire duration duration (credit
losses over the (no credit impairment has
next 12 months impairment) occurred)
EEFEGED EECEDED
KE12EA ERBA(RRE FRABX(ERLE
Bad debt provision HIRER FRHEREX ERRE) ERAE) &5t
Balance as of January 1, 2024 2024551 A1 HERER 6,723,632.34 6,723,632.34
Book balance of other receivables as of 20241 518 E Rk
January 1, 2024 in the current period AR ERFETE A - - - -
-Transferred to Phase I —BABZ[RR
-Transferred to Phase III —BAB=[RR
-Reversed to Phase Il —HEEE_[RER
Reversed to Phase | —HEEE—[EER
Current period accrual REREHR
Current period reversal ZRERE D] 2,271,671.23 2,271,671.23
Current period carry-forward PANCHEL Xis
Current period write-offs ZRERZ 8
Other changes H &
Balance as of June 30, 2024 202446 A30H %8 4,451,961.11 4,451,961.11
(3) Other receivables presented by aging (3) o W IR AR e 1 R
Closing balance
Aging BRI HARERER
Within 1 year (including 1 year) 1EAR(E14E) 35,172,483.07
1-2 years 1-24F 7,801,840.20
2-3 years 2-3%F 1,226,189.16
3-4 years 3-44F 2,159,588.83
4-5 years 4-5% 417,497.48
Over 5 years S&A 8,535,407.84
Total &t 55,313,006.58

162 YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited
Interim Report 2024



Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)

SRR 5T (&)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL TH BATSMBHERXRETEIEHB

STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Cont’d) i (E)
2.  Other receivables (Cont’d) 2. HtEWR(E)
2.2 Other receivables (Cont’d) 2.2 Hib W (&)
(4) Bad debt provision for other receivables (4) H BRI REEER
Amount of change in current period
rHEBHEE
Carry-
Opening Recovery or  forward or Closing
balance Accrual reversal write-off Others balance
Category 5l HORE iR KEREBE SR Hith HRBE
Bad debt provision for other Eft U RER 6,723,632.34 2,271,671.23 4,451,961.11
receivables
Total &t 6,723,632.34 2,271,671.23 4,451,961.11
(5) Other receivables of the top five closing balances, grouped by party in arrears  (5) BRI R B HARERFE A A B0 H A
PR
As a percentage
of the total Bad debt
closing balance provision
Nature of of other Closing
Company name payment Closing balance Aging receivables(%) balance
4 L FE WCRR A R
EREES RTEMILL Bl BIRES
BuERE MIEME HIRERER  BRER (%) BARERER
Entity 1 Current account 15,654,128.80  Within 1 year 28.30
vl ERFK 1F AR
Entity 2 Current account 15,288,311.57  Within 1 year, over 5 years 27.64
) ERFK 1 AR ~ 5 E
Entity 3 Current account 3,330,000.00 1-2 years 6.02 76,720.20
B3 ERK 126
Entity 4 Current account 2,831,000.00 Within 1 year 5.12
Fhia R TR
Entity 5 Current account 2,319,023.32  Within 1 year 4.19
EfI5 R 18R
Total = 39,422,463.69 — 71.27 76,720.20
&t
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL TH BATMBHERXRETEIEHB

STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Cont’d) i (E)
3. Long-term equity investments 3. RERERE
(1) Classification of long-term equity investments (1) RIREREDSE
Closing balance Opening balance
BRGE HHE
Provision for Provision for
Book balance impairment Book value Book balance impairment Book value
Items HAE IRHEE HEEE FHEE RERE REER REEE
Investments in subsidiaries HFARERE 148,135,602.32 148,135,602.32  148,135,602.32 148,135,602.32
Investments in associates and ~ #BtE - SEMERE
joint ventures
Total &t 148,135,602.32 148,135,602.32  148,135,602.32 148,135,602.32
) Investments in subsidiaries 2) HFATRE

Provision for
impairment Closing balance

Opening Increase in Decrease in Closing in the current  of provision
balance current period current period balance period for impairment
KGR HEER
Investee RREEN BNHE RER M KHRED HABE BEER BRBE
YCIH Green Development Co.,, EmEEHEERERAR 38,891,121.97 38,891,121.97
Ltd.
YCIH Polymer Materials Co., Ltd. EFREZEH FHRAERAE 24,585,160.74 24,585,160.74
YCIH Baoshan Yongchang EEERRIKEEMBRAR  24,521,042.30 24,521,042.30
Building Materials Co., Ltd.
YCIH Yuxi Building Materials ~ EFEETEEMEBRAR 24,433,969.78 24,433,969.78
Co., Ltd.
YCIH Qujing Building Materials ~ EFEZHEEM BB AR 21,788,039.08 21,788,039.08
Co., Ltd.
YCIH Aggregate Co., Ltd. EEREYAMERAR 13,916,268.45 13,916,268.45
Total /it 148,135,602.32 148,135,602.32
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024

HFE2024F6 H30H 1F 518 A
XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL ti -BAFRMBHREREEERR
STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Cont’d) A
4. Operating income, operating costs 4. EEWA - EEXEE
(1) Details of operating income and operating costs (1) EERAME EREER
Amount incurred in the current
period Amount incurred in the prior period
AHR AR FHAZE AR
Operating Operating Operating Operating
income costs income costs
Items HE [=ESLON [=E 4% =ESLON SES%N
Main operations FREEK 240,185,367.46 219,140,418.85 557,149,400.42 527,634,601.17
-Sales of ready-mixed —HEBENMERLIR 239,305,040.79 218,641,948.15 557,149,400.42 527,634,601.17
concrete and related HERAZE M
products
-Quality and technology —E ERTRE 880,326.67 498,470.70
services
Other businesses Hi xR 15,381,983.65 9,411,430.42 9,819,123.04 3,612,361.67
-Commissioned processing — 51T 190,134.35 266,003.15 1,478,208.16 510,915.39
-Lease —HE 11,130,181.24 5,934,768.41 7,960,678.34 2,788,127.59
-Others —Hh 4,061,668.06 3,210,658.86 380,236.54 313,318.69
Total S 255,567,351.11 228,551,849.27 566,968,523.46 531,246,962.84
(2) Income-related information (2) WA EBEER
Ready-mixed
concrete  Quality and
and related technology Commissioned
products services Lease processing Others Total
BHERL EER
Items EH REEER R HE FHEMT Hith At
Income from main operations ~E&EHMA 239,305,040.79 880,326.67 240,185,367.46
Including: Recognition at a Heh: EE-BEER 239,305,040.79 880,326.67 240,185,367.46
certain point
Income from other operations  E AR UA 11,130,181.24 190,134.35  4,061,668.06 15,381,983.65
Total &t 239,305,040.79 880,326.67 11,130,181.24 190,134.35  4,061,668.06 255,567,351.11
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For the six months ended June 30, 2024
ElF2024F6 HA30H 1F51E A

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS OF THE FINANCIAL TH BATMBHERXRETEIEHB

STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Cont’d) A
5. Investment income 5. ®REWS
Amount Amount
incurred in the incurred in the
current period prior period
Items 1HH RHEREE 45 FHABE AR
Discount loss on receivables financing that R AR I FERR G A FE MR TE R & A BRER 1B 2K -291,917.37 -84,357.36

meets the conditions for derecognition

Total &st -291,917.37 -84,357.36
XVI. FINANCIAL REPORT APPROVAL TA BBmEHE

This financial report was approved for reporting on August 27, 2024 by the Board of ~ AN EN20245F8H27TEHARAEES
Directors of the Company. HOERE -
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Supplementary information to the financial statements

B ErmaTER
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
A 22024F6 A30H 1F N 1EA

1. STATEMENT OF NON-RECURRING PROFITORLOSS 1. ZAHIFEKEMEZAME
FOR THE PERIOD

Amount in
current period  Note
Items EH FHEE B
Profit or loss on the disposal of non-current assets FRBEERERR 1,521,307.08
Tax returns and reliefs approved beyond authority, or no official MR B S I B S B B
approval document, or occasional MBUCRE R
Government grants recognized in current profit or loss (except AR BERNBUN B (E 570,000.00
for those closely related to the business of the enterprise, and BEEE - ZRERG—ITETE
enjoyed on a fixed or quantitative basis in accordance with FNTE 2 Z XM BUR R BIBRSMN)

uniform national standards)
Capital occupancy fees from non-financial enterprises included in 3 A& EAIE2S A% IS RO EUELHY

current profit or loss EeGRE

Income from the fair value of identifiable net assets of investees PERBFAR - BEPERAER
when the investment cost of the enterprise for the acquisition ENRERA NG AR E=Z
of subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures is less than the BHRBREENABHRFEEDNE
investment obtained EEENNE

Profit or loss from the exchange of non-monetary assets FEREMEER SRS

Profit or loss from entrusting others to invest or manage assets Ei AREREREENER

Asset impairment provision due to force majeure factors such as AN AEER - mEZBAKEM
natural disasters SRR B IHEEREERE

Profit or loss from debt restructuring B EAER

Enterprise restructuring costs, e.g., expenses for relocating CESHER  MLXERINZHS -
employees, integration costs, etc. BLERSE

Profit or loss in excess of fair value arising from transactions with ~ X ZERBLRA LN FELNREB
materially unfair transaction prices RABEHS KB

Current net profit or loss of subsidiaries from the business F—1ZH TREEEHEENFRAIF
combination under common control from the beginning of the VZEEHENEEFER
year to the date of combination

Profit or loss arising from contingencies irrelevant to the normal AR EEEEEBERNSEER
business operations of the Company EENER

Profits or losses from changes in fair value of financial assets held ~ Br[FE/ARIIEFE L E£EHBHERE
for trading, derivative financial assets, financial liabilities held PREXBI  HFARHUEHE
for trading and derivative financial liabilities, and investment E TESREE  Rokem
income from the disposal of financial assets held for trading, B  TESRBBEENAARE
derivative financial assets, financial liabilities held for trading, EE2FEE URERERSIEER

derivative financial liabilities, and other debt investments, except BE  TESREE  XHHe
for effective hedging operations related to the Company’s normal @& {& « 1AL RE BN ERE

business operations BARBHRE NS
Reversal of provision for impairment of accounts receivable and BEETRENRNELIE - &R
contract assets individually tested for impairment AERELERE
g
Profit or loss from external entrusted loans HINEREREGHER
Profit or loss from changes in fair value of investment properties RAANEBEESETRETENE
subsequently measured using the fair value model AMEHEANBEZBELNE
=

ETHERGESMUREERLIBROBRAR 167
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Supplementary information to the financial statements (Cont’d)

BsmRmaER (8)
For the six months ended June 30, 2024
A 22024F6 A30H 1F N 1ELA

1. STATEMENT OF NON-RECURRING PROFIT ORLOSS 1.

R GFEEHERRAMAR

FOR THE PERIOD (Cont’d) (&)
Amount in
current period  Note
Items EH FHEE
Effects of one-time adjustment to current profit or loss on current ~ BEFI - @5 E%EE ERNESL
profit or loss according to tax and accounting and other laws and & #B2SET XA E & 5
regulations BRNgE
Trusteeship fee income from entrusted operations R EERSHEEERA
Non-operating income and expenses other than those mentioned & &3t & 18 7 41 #O Eo A 4 £ 5 AN -142,402.88

above

Other profit and loss items that meet the definition of non-recurring

profit or loss
Subtotal
Less: Income tax effect
Effects of non-controlling interests (after tax)

X
Hio o Rt RRERNERA
B
et
B SR RS
DRy B (TiR)

1,948,904.20
244,853.75
278,485.04

Total

o

1.425,565.42 —

2. RETURN ON NET ASSETS AND EARNINGS PER 2.

SHARE

Weighted
average return
on net assets

FEEWRRRRZRKE

Earnings per share (RMB/share)
SR (T B])

(%) Basic earnings Diluted earnings
ke g per share per share
Profit for the reporting period &5 HAFE FEEWRZEZE(%) BEARSR K wmESRkKE
Net profit attributable to ordinary BFEREARERRRERFAE -2.08 -0.06 -0.06
shareholders of the parent
company
Net profit attributable to ordinary MBRIFEEEEREFBNE AR -2.19 -0.06 -0.06

shareholders of the parent
company after deducting non-
recurring profit or loss

B AR H A

YCIH Green High-Performance Concrete Company Limited

August 27, 2024
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